Millennium Pacific
GRS MBI S TS ETE D
B R FEEZERERA A
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

(MASHEBEMKIZZAR AT
Stock Code &SR : 8147

5 2 ] T 1 ¢ T e %,
-----------

. Annual Report %[

2020

b

ry 4
e =i E
. il
- B
i
O =
i : I 4

ol *
e e F
= i

#



CHARACTERISTICS OF GEM OF THE STOCK EXCHANGE OF HONG KONG LIMITED (THE “STOCK
EXCHANGE”)

GEM has been positioned as a market designed to accommodate small and mid-sized companies to which a
higher investment risk may be attached than other companies listed on the Stock Exchange. Prospective
investors should be aware of the potential risks of investing in such companies and should make the decision to
invest only after due and careful consideration.

Given that the companies listed on GEM are generally small and mid-sized companies, there is a risk that
securities traded on GEM may be more susceptible to high market volatility than securities traded on the Main
Board of the Stock Exchange and no assurance is given that there will be a liquid market in the securities traded
on GEM.

Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited and The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited take no responsibility for the
contents of this report, make no representation as to its accuracy or completeness and expressly disclaim any liability
whatsoever for any loss howsoever arising from or in reliance upon the whole or any part of the contents of this report.

This report, for which the directors (the “Directors”) of Millennium Pacific Group Holdings Limited (the “Company”) collectively
and individually accept full responsibility, includes particulars given in compliance with the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on GEM of the Stock Exchange (the “GEM Listing Rules”) for the purpose of giving information with regard to the
Company. The Directors, having made all reasonable enquiries, confirm that to the best of their knowledge and belief the
information contained in this report is accurate and complete in all material respects and not misleading or deceptive, and
there are no other matters the omission of which would make any statement herein or this report misleading.
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Corporate Information
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EEENWR DN

OVERVIEW

The Group is principally engaged in the research and development,
manufacture and sale of consumer electronic products, such as fitness
bracelets, GPS personal navigation devices, mobile internet devices, TV set-
top boxes and provision of application software development services (the
“Principal Business”). The Group provides one-stop services to our
customers by offering design, prototyping/sampling, manufacturing,
assembling and packaging of their products. The revenue of the Group for the
year ended 31 December 2020 (the “Reporting Period”) was approximately
HK$119.3 million, representing a decrease of approximately 60.4% from
approximately HK$301.2 million for the year ended 31 December 2019 (the
“Corresponding Period”). The decrease in revenue was mainly attributable
to the decrease in revenue of sales of manufactured products by HK$20.6
million and decrease in revenue of sales on trading of electronic products,
accessories and raw materials by HK$157.3 million.

Revenue
The following table sets forth the breakdowns of the turnover of the Group for
each of the years ended 31 December 2020 and 2019:

BE

AEEFZREWE  HEREEHBEETER  flEs
FIR - GPSEABMAHE « THEERE  BEEKEIRIER
HEARGFERE ([EEEK]) - AEEBRBREHERS
REVE B RS - Bl KERBERESMAZTSE
H—URRSE - AEBRBEE_Z-_TF+-_A=+—H1t
FE(HREHHE)NKENAE1193E5EB T BHE-Z
—NF+ZA=+—AEFE(R#H) 301 2E5EH TR
L #760.4% o WzR D E B R AN EKEMESHERL 206
BEATREEEFER BEHREMEEOHEEERD
157.3BEETT °

W 22
TREJIAEEEE T ZEER_TE-NAFT_A=+—
SRR DR v F <L

2020 2019
—EZEHF —T-NEF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Products transferred at a point in time: RRANEFF E R 2 ED -
Sales of manufactured products SHERKE M 3,258 23,865
Sales on trading of electronic products, BrER RUEMEMHESHE
accessories and raw materials 116,079 273,400
119,337 297,265
Services transferred over time: PEREIEE IR TS -
Provision of application software development services ~ HEHIE R #1535 IR - 3,949
119,337 301,214
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EEENWR DN

Cost of Sales and Gross Profit

The majority of the Group’s cost of sales was costs of merchandises and raw
materials. The Group’s cost of sales during the Reporting Period decreased
by 60.2% to approximately HK$115.3 million compared to the Corresponding
Period which was driven by the decrease in revenue.

The gross profit margin of the Group decreased from approximately 3.8% for
the Corresponding Period to approximately 3.4% for the Reporting Period.
The decrease in gross profit margin was mainly attributable to the increase in
the revenue proportion from sales on trading of electronic products with lower
gross profit.

Expenses

Staff costs for the Reporting Period was approximately HK$6.2 million (2019:
approximately HK$15.2 million), representing a decrease of approximately
HK$9.0 million as compared with the Corresponding Period, which was mainly
due to the decrease of recognition of share-based payments and decrease in
headcount during the Reporting Period.

Administrative expenses for the Reporting Period was approximately HK$18.4
million (2019: approximately HK$25.8 million), representing a decrease of
approximately HK$7.4 million as compared with the Corresponding Period,
mainly due to the decrease of recognition of share-based payments and salary
expenses during the Reporting Period.

Taxes

Under the two-tiered Profit Tax Regime, one of the Company’s Hong Kong
subsidiaries is subjected to Hong Kong Profits Tax at the rate of 8.25% for the
first HK$2 million of its estimated assessable profits and at 16.5% on its
estimated assessable profits above HK$2 million. Other Hong Kong
subsidiaries not qualifying for the two-tiered Profit Tax Regime are subjected
to Hong Kong Profit Tax at the rate of 16.5% (2019: 16.5%) for the year ended
31 December 2020.

No provision for Hong Kong Profit Tax is required since the Hong Kong
subsidiaries have sufficient tax losses brought forward to set off against

current year’s assessable profits.

The tax rate applicable to the Group’s other PRC subsidiaries was 25% (2019:
25%) during the year.

No provision for PRC EIT is required since the PRC subsidiaries have no
assessable profit for the year.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EEENWR DN

Loss for the Year

The Group recorded a net loss of approximately HK$15.0 million for the
Reporting Period (2019: net loss of approximately HK$0.3 million). The
increase in loss for the year was mainly due to (i) there is an absence of a gain
on disposal of subsidiaries; (i) the decrease in gross profit; and (iii) the netting
off by a decrease in administrative expense as compared to the same period
last year.

Liquidity, Financial Resources and Capital Structure

Historically, the Group has funded its liquidity and capital requirements
primarily through operating cash flows, borrowings and funds from the listing
of the Company’s shares on GEM of the Stock Exchange. The Group requires
cash primarily for working capital needs. As at 31 December 2020, the Group
had approximately HK$1.3 million in bank and cash balances (31 December
2019: approximately HK$1.5 million).

As at 31 December 2020, the net assets of the Group amounted to
approximately HK$42.3 million (including non-controlling interests of
approximately HK$2.0 million) (31 December 2019: approximately HK$40.6
million with non-controlling interests of approximately HK$1.9 million).

Issuance of Convertible Bonds

Pursuant to a subscription agreement dated 5 March 2019, the Company
issued convertible bonds in an aggregate principal amount of HK$20,000,000
with 4% interest per annum and two-year lifespan (the “Convertible Bonds”)
to Radiant Assets Management Limited on 15 March 2019 under the general
mandate granted to the Directors by way of an ordinary resolution of the
shareholders passed at the annual general meeting of the Company held on
21 June 2018. Assuming full conversion of the Convertible Bonds at the initial
conversion price of HK$0.045, the Convertible Bonds will be convertible into
444,444,444 conversion shares. As a result of the share consolidation of the
Company becoming effective on 29 May 2019, the conversion price of the
Convertible Bonds had been adjusted from HK$0.045 per old share to
HK$0.36 per consolidated share and the number of the conversion shares to
be issued upon conversion of the Convertible Bonds had been adjusted from
444,444 444 old shares to 55,555,555 consolidated shares. Details are
disclosed in the announcements of the Company dated 5 March 2019, 15
March 2019 and 28 May 2019. As at 31 December 2020, approximately
HK$10 million of the net proceeds from the subscription was used for the
repayment of the outstanding liabilities of the Group and approximately HK$10
million was used for general corporate purposes, including salary payments,
rental payments, utilities and other operating expenses as intended. As at 31
December 2020, none of conversion shares were issued.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EEENWR DN

Placing of New Shares under General Mandate

On 20 April 2020, an aggregate of 138,864,000 new shares were issued upon
completion of the placing pursuant to the placing agreement entered into by
the Company and the placing agent, Aristo Securities Limited, on 27 March
2020 (as supplemented by the supplemental agreement dated 14 April 2020)
at the placing price of HK$0.10 per placing share (the “Placing”). The new
shares were issued under the general mandate granted to the Directors of the
Company at the annual general meeting of the Company held on 20 June
2019. The gross proceeds and net proceeds from the Placing were
approximately HK$13.9 million and HK$13.3 million, respectively which was
intended to be used for providing additional general working capital of the
Group. Details are set out in the announcements of the Company dated 27
March 2020, 14 April 2020 and 20 April 2020. As at the date of this report, the
total net proceeds of approximately HK$13.3 million from the Placing had
been used as working capital as intended.

In order to strengthen the Group’s capital base and liquidity in the foreseeable
future, the Group is trying to take various measures, including but not limited
to issuance of bonds, obtaining additional financial assistance from
shareholders or Directors, negotiating new banking facilities and carrying out
further cost controls.

Gearing Ratio
As at 31 December 2020, the Group’s gearing ratio was approximately 0.5
(2019: 0.5).

Note:  Gearing ratio is calculated as the total debt divided by total equity. For the
avoidance of doubt, total debt includes liability component of convertible bonds
and lease liabilities.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EEENWR DN

OPERATION REVIEW

Outlook

The management carefully considered the market factors such as market
trends, capital expenditures and development cycles when selecting the
appropriate product mix to which the Group should focus and devote its
resources. To diversify its income streams and counter balance the market
trends, the Group will continue to further develop and expand business that
can be beneficial to the Principle Business and/or the Group.

It is the Group’s corporate mission to continue to explore ways to improve its
financial performance and to broaden the sources of revenue within
acceptable risk level. Hence, the Company does not rule out the possibility of
investing in or changing to other business as long as it is in the interest of the
Company and the shareholders as a whole. Also, as part of its routine
exercise, the Company reviews the performance of its existing business
portfolio and evaluates possible investment opportunities available to the
Company from time to time. Subject to the result of such review and the then
market and economy situation, the Company may make suitable investment
decisions which may involve the disposal of part of its existing business
portfolio and/or change of the asset allocation of its business and investment
portfolio and/or expanding its business portfolio with a view of realizing and/or
optimizing the expected return and minimizing the risks. Meanwhile, the
Company does not preclude the possibility that the Company may implement
debt and/or equity fund raising plan(s) to satisfy the financing needs arising out
of any business development of the Group as well as to improve its financial
position in the event that suitable fund raising opportunities arise, as the
Company has from time to time been approached by investors for potential
investment projects. In these regards, the Company will publish
announcement as and when appropriate according to applicable rules and
regulations.

Employees and Remuneration Policies

As at 31 December 2020, the Group had a total of 37 employees (as at 31
December 2019: 51 employees). The Group’s staff costs for the year ended
31 December 2020 amounted to approximately HK$6.2 million (2019:
HK$15.2 million). The Group’s remuneration policies are in line with the
prevailing market practice and are determined on the basis of qualification,
responsibility, experience and performance of the individual and the
performance of the Group. The Group recognises the importance of a good
relationship with its employees. The remuneration payable to its employees
includes salaries and allowances. Other benefits and incentives include training
and share options.

In Hong Kong, the Group has participated in the mandatory provident fund
prescribed by the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance (Chapter
485 of the Laws of Hong Kong). In the PRC, the Group has participated in the
basic pension insurance, basic medical insurance, unemployment insurance,
occupational injury insurance, maternity insurance prescribed by the Social
Insurance Law of the PRC ({1 2 A R A B+t &R 2% )), and housing fund
prescribed by the Regulations on the Administration of Housing Fund ({£5 2
e EIEKD). Al PRC based employees have the right to participate in the
social insurance and housing provident fund schemes.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EEENWR DN

Share Option Scheme

The share option scheme (the “Share Option Scheme”) adopted by the
Company on 20 June 2014 is a share incentive scheme and is established to
recognize and acknowledge the contributions that eligible participants (as
defined therein, including employees) have made or may make to the Group.

The Share Option Scheme shall be valid and effective for a period of 10 years
commencing from the adoption date (i.e. 20 June 2014) pursuant to the terms
of the Share Option Scheme.

On 19 December 2017, the Company granted share options to certain eligible
participants to subscribe for a total of 500,000,000 ordinary shares of
HK$0.0002 each (the “Old Shares”) in the issued share capital of the
Company (the “Old Options”). The Old Options were outstanding and not yet
exercised. As a result of the share consolidation of the Company becoming
effective on 29 May 2019 whereby eight shares were consolidated into one
consolidated share (the “Share Consolidation”), the exercise price of the Old
Options had been adjusted from HK$0.1632 per Old Share to HK$1.3056 per
consolidated share and the number of shares of the Company to be issued
upon exercise of the outstanding Old Options had been adjusted from
500,000,000 Old Shares to 62,500,000 consolidated shares.

The overall limit on the number of shares which may be issued upon exercise
of all outstanding options granted and yet to be exercised under the Share
Option Scheme and any other schemes of the Company must not exceed
30% (or other percentage as stipulated in the GEM Listing Rules) of the shares
in issue from time to time. Subject to the aforesaid limit, the number of shares
of the Company which may be issued upon the exercise of all options granted
or to be granted under the Share Option Scheme and any other share option
schemes of the Company (the “Scheme Limit”) was refreshed to 68,722,500
shares pursuant to an ordinary resolution passed by the shareholders of the
Company at its annual general meeting held on 21 June 2018 (the “2018
Refreshment”), representing 10% of the issued shares of the Company as at
21 June 2018 and as adjusted following the Share Consolidation. Following
the 2018 Refreshment, on 4 June 2019, it was resolved by the Company to
cancel the 62,500,000 outstanding Old Options and subject to the irrevocably
and unconditionally agreement of each of grantees to the cancellation of their
respective Old Options, to grant 68,720,000 new share options with exercise
price of HK$0.2412 per share (the “New Options”) entitling the grantees to
subscribe for 68,720,000 shares of the Company. Details are set out in the
announcement of the Company dated 4 June 2019. The closing price of the
shares, immediately before the grant date was HK$ HK$0.131 per share. The
average closing price of the shares for the five business days immediately
preceding the grant date was HK$0.2412 per share. Out of the 68,720,000
New Options, 30,016,000 Options had lapsed and none of the Options had
been exercised and/or cancelled as at the date of this report.
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As at 31 December 2020, 38,704,000 effective share options were
outstanding.

The Scheme Limit was further refreshed pursuant to an ordinary resolution
passed by the shareholders of the Company at its annual general meeting
held on 26 June 2020 and the Scheme Limit as refreshed was 103,073,897
shares, representing 10% of the issued shares of the Company as at 26 June
2020 and the date of this report.

The maximum entitlement of each participant under the Share Option Scheme
is 1% of the issued shares of the Company unless such grant has been duly
approved by resolution of the shareholders of the Company in general
meeting.

The exercise period of any option granted under the Share Option Scheme
must not be more than 10 years commencing on the date of grant.

The acceptance amount for the option is determined by the Board from time
to time.

The exercise price determined by the Board shall be at least the higher of (i)
the closing price of the shares of the Company as stated in the Hong Kong
Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheet on the date of grant, which must be
a business day; and (ii) the average of the closing prices of the shares as
stated in the Hong Kong Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheet for the five
business days immediately preceding the date of grant.

Subject to earlier termination by the Company in a general meeting or by the
Board, the Share Option Scheme shall be valid and effective for a period to be
determined and notified by the Board to the grantee during which the option
may be exercised and in any event shall not be more than 10 years
commencing on the date on which the offer in relation to such option is
deemed to have been accepted in accordance with the terms of the Share
Option Scheme and expiring on the last day of the ten-year-period. The
remaining life of the Share Option Scheme was up to 19 June 2024.

The details of the valuation model are set out in note 34 to financial

statements. The value of options are subject to a number of assumptions and
limitations that may be subjective and uncertain.
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The following table discloses movements in the Company’s outstanding
options under the Share Option Scheme during the Reporting Period.

No. of options

TR B BRI P 2 TR SRR AR 810 MR 17 (AR
w2 -

granted exercised lapsed exercise price
on  duringthe  during the during the on exercise of the options
date of grant 1 January Reporting Reporting Reporting 31 December Vesting period of the per share
of the options 2020 Period Period Period 2020 period options @ (HKD)
R BEAR R SRERE
name of grantee BRE ~2CEf & #E v k-3 2B
ARALA RHRH -B-H Filabbe Bk BRE®E +-A=t-H SEH BRETEHR (B7)
Mr. Wu Yong Fu 4 June 2019 6,756,000 Ni Nil Nil 6,756,000 N/A 4 June 2019- 02412
AKERE “INE z z Z NER 3June 2029
7~AMA ZE-NERRMAZ
ZEZNFAAZH
Mr. Chong Yu Keung 4 June 2019 6,756,000 Nil Nil Nil 6,756,000 N/A 4June 2019- 02412
ERakE ZIhE z z 2 TER 3June 2029
~ABA ZE-NERAMAZ
Z2NFRAZH
Other grantees 4 June 2019 24,226,000 Ni Nil 11,630,000 12,596,000 4 June 2019- 4 June 2020 - 02412
HAERA “FNE z z 3June 2020 3June 2029
~ABA “T-NERABBRE  ZE-TERANAZR
“T-ZERAZR ZZCAEAAREA
Other grantees 4 June 2019 24,226,000 Ni Nil 11,630,000 12,596,000 4 Jung 2019 - 4 Jung 2021 - 0.2412
EtAEA “INE z Z 3June 2021 3June 2029
7~AWA ZE-NERRRAE  ZE--%5AMAZE
“E--fXAZR ZECAERAZH
Total 61,964,000 Ni Nil 23,260,000 38,704,000
it Z Z
Notes: Bier -

1) The New Options granted to the directors will be vested immediately upon their
acceptance of such New Options.

) The New Options granted to the employees have a vesting period of 2 years, i.e.
one-half of the New Options shall be vested on the first (1st) anniversary (round
down to the nearest New Option) and the remaining one-half of the New Options
shall be vested on the second (2nd) anniversary of the date of grant respectively.

Capital expenditure

The Group purchased property, plant and equipment amounting to
approximately HK$27,000 for the year ended 31 December 2020 (2019:
approximately HK$1,000).

Capital commitments
The Group did not have any significant capital commitments as at 31

December 2020 (2019: Nil).
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Foreign Currency Risk
The Company does not have significant exposure on foreign currency risk.

The functional currencies of the Group’s entities are principally denominated in
HK$ and Renminbi (‘RMB”). The Group has certain exposure to foreign
currency risk as some of its business transactions, assets and liabilities are
denominated in currencies other than the functional currencies of the
respective Group entities such as United States dollars. The Group currently
does not have a foreign currency hedging policy in respect of foreign currency
transactions, assets and liabilities.

The Group did not engage in any derivatives agreement and did not commit to
any financial instruments to hedge against its foreign exchange exposure
during the year ended 31 December 2020.

Significant Investments held, Material Acquisitions and Disposals
of Subsidiaries, and Future Plans for Material Investments or
Capital Assets

MOU for Potential Investment

On 2 December 2019, the Company entered into a non-legally binding
memorandum of understanding (the “MOU") with JE I T AR BIERE B
fR 2 &) (Shenzhen MX Investment Holdings Co., Ltd.*) (“Shenzhen MX
Investment”). Pursuant to the MOU, subject to entering into a formal
agreement, the Company will through its wholly-owned subsidiary
incorporated in the PRC invest in the form of capital injection by taking up the
equity interests in 5 31| T 27 51 e 18 B 52 B BR A 8] (Shenzhen MX Longfeng
Technology Co., Ltd.*) (the “Target Company”), representing 51% of the
registered capital of the Target Company after the capital injection (the
“Potential Investment”). The MOU was intended to record the preliminary
mutual understanding between the parties to the MOU and to serve as a start
for exploration and negotiations before formal agreement being signed and for
commencement of due diligence review and was not intended to be legally
binding on the relevant parties. The consideration for the Potential Investment
will be subject to the result of the due diligence review and feasibility study to
be conducted by the Company. Directors considered that the Potential
Investment represents an opportunity for the Group to form strategic alliance
with Shenzhen MX Investment to enhance its stake in Cable-TV set-top box
market in the PRC (the “Project”) and is in line with the investment objectives
and development strategy of the Group. Details are set out in the
announcements of the Company dated 2 December 2019 and 2 March 2020.
As disclosed in the announcement of the Company dated 2 March 2020, both
parties agreed to extend the due diligence period to 1 September 2020 having
considered the outbreak of the Novel Coronavirus (COVID-19). As at the date
of this report, the MOU and its supplemental arrangement were lapsed.
Neither party has any obligations nor liabilities towards the other party.

12

SRR
ARE L EBARINE R o

FEEBRNDEERIZR/BTRARB(ARKE] - K
KEEERETIINERR  DRREETEERS  BENRA
BEUAAREERERROERE LI EE (IT)FHE -
AEEB AL ERINER S - BERBESEINEEIPE
& o

HE_Z-ZF+-_A=+—HILFE  FEETESRE
EATET RpE - INEEAER SR T AP EEL R -

FREZEARE EAUBRUEEHBLAARE
ABREREFREE 2 RRE:E

JEIEIR B AR R 5 7

R-Z—hF+-A=8  ARARERYFEALEERE
BAR(CRINERRE DT A RERORNDRHE TS
(IR EsR]) - BERBERS SV EXBHE - &
AR BBERP BRI ENE A RERRERY
MR SR ARAR ([BEAR]) REMLEFEFR
RS HENFARBERREMER51% ([EIE
BRE]) - R E TS ERS R E RO ZH Y2
HBRIERREITEXNBHATEITRR RERIARRARE
BENMS - WESHBBINTEROEEORN - BHE
ERENREBIURN AR AT TRBES KAl TIE 5
WER - ERRABEIRE A S ERYEIEE FAK B
BB ARRTPEEREREBET S ([EE )
R HEAKEKREREREREE - FBHNART
AT - NF+-_AZARZZT-TF=A-HZA
Lo HNARTRMA-E_EFE=-A A2 AEHAEE
HRBEEFTRSER FTHETRAZEKRBRESHHRLER
BT TFNA-HB -BEAREAH  REETHEEE
WAZHERS - AR —FHBS—AHETRERREME -

Millennium Pacific Group Holdings Limited / Annual Report 2020



Management Discussion and Analysis
EEENWR DN

Charges over Assets of the Group
As at 31 December 2020 and 31 December 2019, there was no charges over
assets of the Group.

Contingent Liabilities
As at 31 December 2020 and 31 December 2019, there was no contingent
liabilities of the Group.

Dividend
The Directors do not recommend the payment of a final dividend for the year
ended 31 December 2020 (2019: Nil).

The declaration and payment of dividends and the amount of dividends in
future will be at the discretion of the Board and will depend on future
operations and earnings, capital requirements and surplus, general financial
conditions, contractual restrictions and other factors that the Board considers
relevant.

Litigation

As disclosed in the announcement of the Company dated 9 December 2019,
a claim in respect of dispute over certain tenancy agreements was made
against a former indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company disposed in
March 2019, namely Central Pacific Int Technology Ltd.* (4 FEME F (=)
BBR/AT]) in respect of outstanding rental and charges and the Company as
guarantor for such tenancy agreements by Shenzhen Yucan Industrial Co.,
Ltd.* CFRIITHREE X B A R)) in a city of Mainland China (the “Litigation”).
As the Company announced on 26 November 2020, a judgement was issued
by the People’s Court, Shenzhen, Guangdong Province in relation to the
Litigation (the “Judgement”), pursuant to which, among others: 1. the
Company shall within ten days after the Judgement becoming effective, repay
to the plaintiff the outstanding rental in the sum of approximately RMB0.63
million and interest on the outstanding rental (consisting of (i) interest in the
amount of approximately RMB16,000 accrued from May 2018 to 11
September 2019; and (ji) interest at National Loan Prime Rate accrued on the
outstanding rental of approximately RMB0.63 million from 11 September 2019
to the date of repayment); 2. out of the litigation cost in an aggregate amount
of RMB11,109, the Company shall bear approximately RMB8,900; and 3. the
Company has the rights to appeal to the Intermediate Court, Shenzhen,
Guangdong Province within thirty days after the Judgement becoming
effective. As at the date of this report, the Company had appealed and the
results is yet to be released. The Company will publish announcement(s) to
update its shareholders of any major progress to the matter as and when
appropriate in accordance with the requirements of the GEM Listing Rules.

The Directors are of the view that the abovementioned claim will not have
material impact on the business and operation of the Company.
Notwithstanding the final judgement which subject to further hearing at the
Intermediate Court, the Company had recognised full provision under other
payables for the abovementioned claim during the reporting period according
to applicable accounting standards.
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The directors (the “Directors”) of Millennium Pacific Group Holdings Limited
(the “Company”) present their report together with the audited financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively, the “Group”) for
the year ended 31 December 2020.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND ANALYSIS OF
OPERATIONS

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The principal
activities of its subsidiaries are research and development, manufacture, sale
of electronic devices and provision of application software development
services. Details are set out in note 35 to the financial statements.

The analysis of geographical locations of the Group for the year is set out in
note 7 to the consolidated financial statements.

BUSINESS REVIEW

A review of the Group’s business during the year and analysis of the Group’s
performance using financial key performance indicators and prospects of the
Group’s business are provided in the sections headed “Management
Discussion and Analysis” on pages 4 to 13 of the annual report.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATION

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2020 and the state
of the Company’s and the Group’s affairs as at that date are set out in the
consolidated financial statements on pages 62 to 139.

The Directors do not recommend the payment of any dividend for the year
ended 31 December 2020.

RESERVES

Details of the movements in reserves of the Group and the Company during
the year are set out in the “Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity” and
note 33 to the consolidated financial statements respectively.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements in the share capital of the Company during the year are
set out in note 31 to the consolidated financial statements.
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DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

The Company’s reserve available for distribution as at 31 December 2020 was
Nil.

DONATIONS

There was none donation made by the Group during the year ended 31
December 2020 (2019: HK$ Nil).

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment of the Group
during the year are set out in note 17 to the financial statements.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s articles of
association or the laws of the Cayman Islands which would oblige the
Company to offer new shares on a pro rata basis to existing shareholders.

FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY
A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group for the
last five financial years is set out on page 140 of the annual report.

PURCHASES, SALES OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED
SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or redeemed
any of the Company’s listed securities during the year ended 31 December
2020.

DIRECTORS
The directors of the Company during the year and up to the date of this report
were:

Executive Directors
Mr. Wang Li

Mr. Wu Yong Fu

Mr. Zhou Chuang Qiang

Non-executive Director
Mr. Chong Yu Keung

Independent non-executive Directors
Mr. Huang Jian

Mr. Zheng Wan Zhang

Mr. Wong Tik Tung
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BIOGRAPHIES OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT

Executive Directors

Mr. Zhou Chuang Qiang (“Mr. Zhou”), aged 56, has been appointed as an
executive director of the Company on 4 June 2019. Mr. Zhou is also the
Compliance Officer, Authorized Representative, a member of the
Remuneration Committee and Compliance Committee of the Company. He is
also the director of various subsidiaries of the Company. He mainly engages in
production management, research and development management and
marketing management. Mr. Zhou has accumulated rich work experience in
management and leadership positions. Since 2017, he has served as the
marketing manager and the deputy general manager of Shenzhenshi
Jingxingcheng Technology Electronics Co., Ltd* (T & EBRREFAR
AF]). From 2013 to 2017, he was the deputy general manager of
Shenzhenshi Keming Property Investment Co., Ltd* (ZYITRIB B EILEE
[RAa]).

Mr. Wu Yong Fu (“Mr. Wu”), aged 33, has been appointed as an executive
director of the Company on 16 April 2019. Mr. Wu graduated with a master
degree in laws from Xiamen University in the People’s Republic of China
(“PRC”) in 2013. Mr. Wu is a practising lawyer in the PRC. He worked in
DeHeng Law Offices (12 15 7 £l 28 75 FT) as a lawyer from February 2016 to
July 2017. Since then, he has been working as a lawyer in China Commercial
Law Firm (BREFE R EATEFT). Starting from December 2017, Mr. Wu was
assigned by China Commercial Law Firm to provide legal services to
subsidiaries of the Company in relation to the PRC legal matters and such
provision of services was terminated before the executive Director
appointment on 16 April 2019.

Mr. Wang Li (“Mr. Wang”), aged 33, has been an executive Director of the
Company since 17 July 2017. Mr. Wang holds a master’s degree issued by
Rutgers, the State University of New Jersey, majoring in quantitative finance.
Mr. Wang is currently the director of Leveraged and Acquisition Finance
Department of Haitong International Securities Company Limited, a wholly-
owned subsidiary of Haitong International Securities Group Limited (the shares
of which are listed on the Stock Exchange (stock code: 665)). Mr. Wang has
extensive experience in the area of merger and acquisition, listed company
corporate action and derivatives trading, and has participated in a number of
deals relating to such areas.
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Non-Executive Director

Mr. Chong Yu Keung (“Mr. Chong”), aged 55, has been a non-executive
Director of the Company since 17 July 2017. Mr. Chong holds a Bachelor’s
degree in E-commerce with over 20 years of financial experience in securities
brokerage, investment, corporate finance, wealth management and private
banking. Mr. Chong is the holder of Responsible Officer licences issued by the
Hong Kong Securities and Futures Commission to carry on type 1, 4 and 9
regulated activities under the SFO. Mr. Chong had served various positions in
leading financial companies and banks including The Chase Manhattan Bank
N.A., Prudential-Bache Securities (HK) Ltd., UBS Warburg, Dryden Securities
(HK) Ltd., Fortis Bank, Hong Kong, Forties Wealth Management (HK) Ltd., FT
Securities (HK) Ltd. and Standard Chartered Bank Hong Kong. Mr. Chong
had served as a director in a number of non-listed financial institutions in the
past 10 years. In 2016, Mr. Chong had been an executive director of Glory
Flame Holdings Limited (the shares of which are listed on the Stock Exchange
(stock code: 8059)). Mr. Chong is also a non-executive director of Momentum
Financial Holdings Limited (the shares of which are listed on the main board of
the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”)) (stock
code: 1152) appointed on 30 May 2019.

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Mr. Huang Jian (“Mr. Huang”), aged 47, has been an independent non-
executive Director of the Company since 17 July 2017. He is the chairman of
the audit committee, a member of the nomination committee and compliance
committee of the Company. Mr. Huang obtained a Bachelor’s degree in Audit
from Sun Yat-sen University (7 IL A 2)in 1996. He received a Master’s
degree in International Accounting from the City University of Hong Kong in
2005. He is also a Certified Public Accountant in China. He was Certified
Public Accountant (Practising) in 1t 5 ok ¥ & 51 8 = 75 A7 He has business
consulting and accounting audit experience. Currently, he is an independent
director of &R & = & B & 10 A PR A 7 (stock code: 400012CH) and an
investment director of J.Q. Pictures Holdings Limited. From 2003 to 2006 he
has worked in & £ & &R OF Y1) AR 2 5 which was a subsidiary of
China HKBridge Holdings Ltd (formerly “Topsearch International (Holdings)
Limited” (stock code: 2323HK) as financial manager. From 2007 to 2015 he
worked at a number of subsidiaries of Auto ltalia Holdings Limited (formerly
“Wo Kee Hong (Holdings) Limited”) (stock code: 0720HK), as assistant
financial controller and director. Mr. Huang has also been appointed as the
chairman of the Audit Committee and a member of each of the Nomination
Committee and the Compliance Committee with effect from 17 July 2017. Mr.
Huang has also been appointed as an executive director of Momentum
Financial Holdings Limited (the shares of which are listed on the main board of
the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”)) (stock
code: 1152) on 30 May 2019. Since July 2020, Mr. Huang, has ceased to be
a Certified Public Accountant (Practising) in Beijing Yongtuo Certified Public
Accountants* and has been a Certified Public Accountant (Practising) in
Shenzhen Yongxin Ruihe Certified Public Accountants (Special General
Partnership)*. Since November 2020, Mr. Huang has been a partner in
Shenzhen Yongxin Ruihe Certified Public Accountants (Special General
Partnership)*
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Mr. Zheng Wan Zhang (“Mr. Zheng”), aged 50, has been an independent
non-executive Director of the Company since 17 July 2017. He has also been
a member of the audit committee and remuneration committee of the
Company since 31 July 2018. Mr. Zheng graduated from Jinan University, is
qualified as building construction management engineer. He has strong
leadership and management experience in the construction, real estate
investment, asset management fields. From 2003 to 2006, he was appointed
as the vice president of & M &2 1% & H R 2 &], being responsible for the
company'’s real estate development and management, investment and
financing business; In 2006, he set up EMXE MHLEEE B R AR and
has acted as deputy general manager of the company which is engaged in
real estate development, asset management and other aspects.

Mr. Wong Tik Tung (“Mr. Wong”), aged 64, has been an independent non-
executive Director of the Company since 17 July 2017. He is the chairman of
the remuneration committee and compliance committee of the Company. He
is also a member of the nomination committee and audit committee of the
Company. Mr. Wong, FCCA, CPA, ATIHK, has over thirty years’ experience in
the fields of accounting, auditing and financial management. Being an
accountant in Hong Kong, he is also a fellow member of the Association of
Chartered Certified Accountants (ACCA) and an associate member of the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Over the past years, Mr.
Wong had taken directorships in the capacity of (i) an executive director of
Auto ltalia Holdings Limited (the shares of which are listed on the Stock
Exchange (stock code: 720)), (i) an independent non-executive director of Chi
Cheung Investment Company Limited (the shares of which are listed on the
Stock Exchange (stock code: 112)) and (jii) a non-executive director of Glory
Flame Holdings Limited (the shares of which are listed on the Stock Exchange
(stock code: 8059)). Mr. Wong has also been appointed as the chairman of
each of the Remuneration Committee and the Compliance Committee and a
member of each of the Audit Committee and the Nomination Committee with
effect from 17 July 2017.

Senior Management

Mr. Lu Zhiming (“Mr. Lu”), aged 45, has been the Chief Executive Officer of
the Company since 17 January 2018. Mr. Lu is a graduate from Ningbo Yucai
Technical Institute with majoring in electricity and electronics. Mr. Lu has
diversified management experience in the fields of petrochemical and
electronic business in China. For the period from January 2000 to March
2002, Mr. Lu was the vice general manager of marketing of China JinLun Tyre
Fabrics Factory. For the period from July 2002 to July 2004, he was an
executive director of a Hong Kong listed company Yanchang Petroleum
International Limited (previously also known as Minglun Group (Hong Kong)
Limited) (stock code: 346). Mr. Lu was the vice general manager of LED
International (Hong Kong) Company Limited from November 2006 to
December 2009 and Shen Zhen Shi Ai Ying Zhuo Er Technology Company
Limited from January 2010 to April 2011. From May 2011 to May 2017, Mr.
Lu was the president of Guang Dong Jian Long Optoelectronic Company
Limited.

Save as disclosed herein, there is no other relationship between each of
Directors and the senior management as required to be disclosed under the
GEM Listing Rules.
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ROTATION OF DIRECTORS IN THE FORTHCOMING
ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

Pursuant to Article 108 of the Company’s Articles of Association, Mr. Wu Yong
Fu, Mr. Chong Yu Keung and Mr. Zheng Wan Zhang shall retire from office as
Director by rotation at the forthcoming annual general meeting. Each of Mr.
Wu Yong Fu, Mr. Chong Yu Keung and Mr. Zheng Wan Zhang being eligible,
shall offer himself for re-election at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Executive Directors

Mr. Zhou Chuang Qiang has entered into a service agreement with the
Company for a term of three years commencing on 4 June 2019 and shall
continue thereafter and can be terminated by not less than three months’ prior
notice in writing. Mr. Wu Yong Fu has entered into a service agreement with
the Company for a term of three years commencing on 16 April 2019 and
shall continue thereafter and can be terminated by not less than three months’
prior notice in writing. Mr. Wang Li has entered into a service agreement with
the Company for a term of three years commencing on 17 July 2017 and shall
continue thereafter and can be terminated by not less than three months’ prior
notice in writing.

Non-executive Director

Mr. Chong Yu Keung has entered into a service agreement with the Company
for a term of three years commencing on 17 July 2017 and shall continue
thereafter and can be terminated by either party by giving three months’ notice
in writing.

Independent Non-executive Directors

Each of the independent non-executive Directors has entered into a service
agreement with the Company for a term of three years commencing on 17
July 2017 and shall continue thereafter from year to year until terminated by
one month’s notice in writing served by either party on the other party.

No Director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual general
meeting has entered into a service contract which is not determinable by the
Group within one year without payment of compensation, other than statutory
compensation.

DIRECTORS’ MATERIAL INTERESTS IN
TRANSACTIONS, ARRANGEMENTS AND CONTRACTS
THAT ARE SIGNIFICANT IN RELATION TO THE
COMPANY’S BUSINESS

No transactions, arrangements and contracts of significance in relation to the
Group’s business to which the Company’s subsidiaries was a party and in
which a director of the Company had a material interest, whether directly or
indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the year.
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EMOLUMENT POLICY

The emolument policy of the employees of the Group is set up by the
Remuneration Committee on the basis of their merit, qualifications and
competence.

The emoluments of the Directors are decided by the Remuneration
Committee, having regard to the Company’s operating results, individual
performance and comparable market statistics.

REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND FIVE
INDIVIDUALS WITH HIGHEST EMOLUMENTS

Details of the emoluments of the Directors and five individuals with highest
emoluments are set out in note 13 to the consolidated financial statements.

RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEME
Details of the retirement benefit scheme of the Group are set out in note 16 to
the consolidated financial statements.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’ INTERESTS
AND/OR SHORT POSITIONS IN THE SHARES,
UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES OF THE
COMPANY OR ANY SPECIFIED UNDERTAKING OF THE
COMPANY OR ANY OTHER ASSOCIATED
CORPORATION

As at 31 December 2020, the interest and short position of the Directors and
chief executive of the Company in the shares, underlying shares and
debentures of the Company and its associated corporations (within the
meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SFO”)), as
recorded in the register maintained by the Company pursuant to Section 352
of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to the required standard of dealings by directors of listed issuers as
referred to in Rules 5.46 of the GEM Listing Rules were as follows:

Long positions
Ordinary shares of the Company

FEBOR
AEEES 2 FMEREFHEE R RERS 2R - AR
REEABIE

ERFHEFNEEE2EAR
KA LR TIS MR EFEE

AlzEeEE  AAKRR

EERTEBEHFALTZHMH

EERDERSFALTZMSHBRNGSFBREKME
13°

BB
AR E 2 SRE R RIS B R A BT RRM 16 «

EERIRTHRABREQARAAFEADN
TEIEMEBEBREEORD - HERO K
BHEPNERER KA

RIZB-ZZF+-A=+—H  EFERARFAETRTHAER
RARB REREEE (&R EH LS G ([#25 R
BIRGID EXVED WD - R REFHEARELCAR
R 7 M B R 352 (f1F B M A A B B AL M #O#E 25 FOR
B HIRBGEM EARRIFE 546 5Pl EBITAEEE
TR SHREFELAME AN R E RE TR @ FOA R I

Percentage of

Number of the Company’s
Capacity and nature of shares issued share
Name interest Class of shares (note 1) capital
RHEE (hAARERT
®E S RERME PR 45 %8 5 (Mtat1) [ A= o
Wu Yong Fu Beneficial owner Share Option (Note 2) 6,756,000 (L) 0.66%
RoKE EmEB A AR (Bt 5t 2)
Chong Yu Keung Beneficial owner Share Option (Note 2) 6,756,000 (L) 0.66%
R EmEB A i nRiE (ffat2)
Notes: Kist -
1. The letter “L” denotes a long position in the shareholder’s interest in the share 1. [L] ERRAEARRAE SN TR -

capital of the Company.
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2. These represented the interests in underlying shares in respect of share options
granted by the Company, details of which are disclosed in section headed
“SHARE OPTION SCHEMES” below.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2020, none of the Directors and
chief executive of the Company had any interests or short positions in any
shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company or any of its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) as
recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company pursuant to
Section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange pursuant to the required standard of dealings by directors of
listed issuers as referred to in Rule 5.46 of the GEM Listing Rules.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ AND OTHER
PERSONS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN THE

2. EARRRM 2 BEAES AR D FERERT
S BB ERt &) — 8 o

W EXFHBEEN  RZZEZEF+_A=+—H8 #HE=E
ERARBEEZTHABRAARKEEMBEEEE(EE
RS RHEE IS XVE) ST RD - HERDSESF
BB ATAR A RIBREE S KBS IKGIE 352 (57 E R ERL
fiEzSsA R SRR GEM ETTAR B S5 5.46 fF ATl £ T ek
TABSETR IR EERES TG AR T KB AFTH
EEmSORR °

FTERRREMATREQARG REBERSG
HEEKR KA

SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES OF THE

COMPANY

As at 31 December 2020, the following persons (other than a Director or chief
executive of the Company) had interests or short positions in the shares and
underlying shares of the Company as recorded in the register required to be
kept under section 336 of the SFO:

Long positions
Ordinary shares of the Company

%

E:3

0)

=]

¥y oE»
W » o
=0
5

>
|
s
@
S

55 R HIE 1515 336 1

ZZEFA=+—H TIHAL(BEEFREARAE
BABBIN RARD R RAER RO F B ALAR
RAFEMECMAERSN

Percentage of

Number of the Company’s

Capacity and shares issued share

Name nature of interest Class of Shares (note 1) capital

EARDE

RHEE ERTRE

®E S RERMEE R38R (Kyat1) ZED

Martford Limited (note 2) Beneficial owner Ordinary shares 316,981,250 (L) 30.75%
Martford Limited (/1 2) EnfAA LR

CITIC Group Corporation (note 3) Interest of controlled corporation Ordinary Shares 55,555,555 (L) 6.23%
FEFEERAERAR (M 3) S EE gl

CITIC Polaris Limited (note 3) Interest of controlled corporation Ordinary Shares 55,555,555 (L) 6.23%
RIEREBRAR (A:E3) EESEEER LR

CITIC Glory Limited (note 3) Interest of controlled corporation Ordinary Shares 55,655,555 (L) 6.23%
FIEREBR AR (AiF3) SRS EE R gl

CITIC Limited (note 3) Interest of controlled corporation Ordinary Shares 55,555,555 (L) 6.23%
FEPEROBRAR (AiE3) EESEEER LR

CITIC Corporation Limited (note 3) Interest of controlled corporation Ordinary Shares 55,655,555 (L) 6.23%
CITIC Corporation Limited (ff7#3) REGDEEER EBAR

China CITIC Bank Corporation Interest of controlled corporation Ordinary Shares 55,555,555 (L) 6.23%

Limited (note 3)
FRERITRODBR AR (AiE3) REHEEER il
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Percentage of

Number of the Company’s

Capacity and shares issued share
Name nature of interest Class of Shares (note 1) capital
LER NG|
RHEE ERITRA
®E S RERME R4 285BI (Ftet1) ZBED
Citic Investment (HK) Limited (note 3) Interest of controlled corporation Ordinary Shares 55,555,555 (L) 6.23%
FEREEE (BB)AERAR (MFE3) ZEGDEE R B
Fortune Class Investments Interest of controlled corporation Ordinary Shares 55,555,555 (L) 6.23%
Limited (note 3)
BAREBRAR (HE3) EESEEER il
Metal Link Limited (note 3) Interest of controlled corporation Ordinary Shares 55,555,555 (L) 6.23%
Metal Link Limited (/7 3) REGDEE R B
CITIC International Financial Interest of controlled corporation Ordinary Shares 55,555,555 (L) 6.23%
Holdings Limited (note 3)
FEERS/RIERER AR (A:£3) RS EEER il
CITIC International Assets Interest of controlled corporation Ordinary Shares 55,555,555 (L) 6.23%
Management Limited (note 3)
P EEREEERERAR (M:13) S A E R il
CITIC Merchant Co., Limited (note 3) Interest of controlled corporation Ordinary Shares 55,555,555 (L) 6.23%
FEEBEEEEARAR (M:13) SR A E il
Radiant Assets Management Beneficial owner Ordinary Shares 55,555,555 (L) 6.23%
Limited (note 3)
Radiant Assets Management Limited EnlEEA il
(BfE3)
Notes: Kt -

The letter “L” denotes a long position in the shareholder’s interest in the share
capital of the Company.

The 316,981,250 shares were held by Martford Limited which is wholly and

The entire issued share capital of Radiant Assets Management Limited is owned
by CITIC Merchant Co., Limited, which is in turn owned as to 51% by CITIC
International Assets Management Limited (“CITIC Asset Management”). CITIC
Asset Management is owned as to 46% by CITIC International Financial Holdings
Limited (“CITIC Financial Holdings”), which is in turn wholly owned by China
CITIC Bank Corporation (“China CITIC Bank”). China CITIC Bank is owned as to
65.37%, 0.02% and 0.58% by CITIC Corporation Limited, Fortune Class
Investments Limited (“Fortune Class”) and Metal Link Limited respectively.
Fortune Class is owned as to 100% by Citic Investment (HK) Limited, which is
wholly owned by CITIC Corporation Limited (“CITIC Corporation”). CITIC
Corporation is wholly owned by CITIC Limited which owns 100% of CITIC
Corporation and 100% of Metal Link Limited. CITIC Limited is owned as to
25.60% and 32.53% by CITIC Glory Limited and CITIC Polaris Limited
respectively. CITIC Glory Limited and CITIC Polaris Limited are wholly owned by

2.

beneficially owned by Mr. Wang Lianghai.
3.

CITIC Group Corporation.
22
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Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2020, no other interests or short
positions in the shares or underlying shares of the Company were recorded in
the register required to be kept by the Company under section 336 of the
SFO.

SHARE OPTION SCHEMES

Purpose of the Share Option Scheme

The share option scheme (the “Scheme”) adopted by the Company on 20
June 2014 is a share incentive scheme and is established to recognize and
acknowledge the contributions that eligible participants (as defined therein)
have made or may make to the Group.

The Scheme will provide the Eligible Participants with an opportunity to
acquire proprietary interests in our Company with the view to achieving the
following principal objectives:

i) motivate the Eligible Participants to optimise their performance and
efficiency for the benefit of our Group; and

(ii) attract and retain or otherwise maintain ongoing business relationship
with the Eligible Participants whose contributions are, will or expected
to be beneficial to our Group.

The Board may at its discretion grant right(s) to subscribe for Share(s)
pursuant to the terms of the Scheme (the “Option”) to any of the following
persons (the “Eligible Participants”):

i) any Director, employee or officer of any company in our Group who is
employed by any company in our Group (whether full time or part time)
(the “Employee”), consultant, professional, customer, supplier, agent,
partner or adviser of or contractor to our Group or a company in which
our Group holds an interest or a subsidiary of such company (the
“Affiliate”); or

(ii) the trustee of any trust the beneficiary of which or any discretionary
trust the discretionary objects of which include any Director, Employee,
consultant, professional, customer, supplier, agent, partner or adviser
of or contractor to our Group or an Affiliate; or

(iii) a company beneficially owned by any Director, Employee, consultant,
professional, customer, supplier, agent, partner, adviser of or contractor
to our Group or an Affiliate.

The total number of Shares which may be issued upon exercise of all
outstanding options granted and yet to be exercised under the Scheme and
any other share option schemes of the Company must not in aggregate
exceed 30% of the Shares in issue from time to time.
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Subject to the aforesaid limit, the number of Shares which may be issued
upon the exercise of all options granted or to be granted under the Scheme
and any other share option schemes of the Company is 103,073,897 Shares,
representing 10% of the issued Shares as at 26 June 2020, being the date of
approval of refreshment of the existing scheme limit by the shareholders.

The total number of Shares issued and to be issued upon exercise of all
Options granted to an Eligible Participant (including exercised and outstanding
Options) in any 12-month (i.e. maximum entitlement) period must not exceed
1% of the Shares in issue from time to time, unless approved by the
shareholders in general meeting.

An option may be exercised in accordance with the terms of the Scheme at
any time during a period as our Board may determine which shall not exceed
10 years from the date of grant subject to the provisions of early termination
thereof.

The exercise price per share under the Scheme (the “Exercise Price”) shall
be a price determined by the Board, but shall not be less than the highest of:

i) the closing price of a Share as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily
quotations sheet on the date of grant of the relevant Option, which
must be a day on which the Stock Exchange is open for the business of
dealing in securities (the “Trading Day”);

(ii) an amount equivalent to the average closing price of a Share as stated
in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheets for the five Trading
Days immediately preceding the date of grant of the relevant Option;
and

(i)~ the nominal value of a Share on the date of grant.

On 19 December 2017, the Company granted share options to certain eligible
participants to subscribe for a total of 500,000,000 ordinary shares of
HK$0.0002 each (the “Old Shares”) in the issued share capital of the
Company (the “Old Options”). The Old Options were outstanding and not yet
exercised. As a result of the Share Consolidation (as defined above), the
exercise price of the Old Options had been adjusted from HK$0.1632 per Old
Share to HK$1.3056 per consolidated share and the number of shares of the
Company to be issued upon exercise of the outstanding Old Options had
been adjusted from 500,000,000 Old Shares to 62,500,000 consolidated
shares.

On 4 June 2019, it was resolved by the Company to cancel the 62,500,000
outstanding Old Options and subject to the irrevocably and unconditionally
agreement of each of grantees to the cancellation of their respective Old
Options, to grant 68,720,000 new share options with exercise price of
HK$0.2412 per share (the “New Options”) entitling the grantees to subscribe
for 68,720,000 shares of the Company. Details are set out in the
announcement of the Company dated 4 June 2019.
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As at 31 December 2020, 38,704,000 effective share options were ~ R-ZT=ZTF+=F=+—H - 38,704,00017 /& ZXEE A& i#
outstanding. RITEE ©

The following table discloses movements in the Company’s outstanding — FRBEERIREHRAR RIRIRE T 818 15 K17 F B
options under the Share Option Scheme during the Reporting Period. e -

No. of options

granted exercised lapsed exercise price
on  duringthe  during the during the on exercise of the options
date of grant 1 January Reporting Reporting Reporting 31 December Vesting period of the per share
of the options 2020 Period Period Period 2020 period options @ (HKD)
R BEAR R SRERE
name of grantee BRE —2CEf & #E v k-3 2B
ARALA RHRH -B-8 Filabbe HBhfak BRE®E +-A=t-H SEH BREGEHOR (B7)
Mr. Wu Yong Fu 4 June 2019 6,756,000 Ni Nil Nil 6,756,000 N/A 4 June 2019- 02412
AKERE “INE S Z Z NER 3June 2029
7~AMA ZE-NERRMAZ
“EZNFAAZH
Mr. Chong Yu Keung 4 June 2019 6,756,000 Nil Nil Nil 6,756,000 N/A 4June 2019- 02412
ERREE ZINE z z 2 TER 3June 2029
~ABA ZE-NERAMAZ
Z2INFRAZA
Other grantees 4 June 2019 24,226,000 Nil Nil 11,630,000 12,596,000 4June 2019- 4 June 2020 - 02412
EfpERA “I-nE Z £ 3 June 2020 3 June 2029
~ABA “T-NERABBRE  ZE-TERANAZR
“T-ZERAZA ZECAEARZA
Other grantees 4 June 2019 24,226,000 Ni Nil 11,630,000 12,596,000 4 Jung 2019 - 4 Jung 2021 - 0.2412
EtAEA “E-NE z z 3June 2021 3June 2029
7~AWA “E-NEXBRAE —E--FAANAZ
“E--fAAZR ZECAERAZH
Total 61,964,000 Ni Nil 23,260,000 38,704,000
it Z Z
Notes: Btat -

(1) The New Options granted to the directors will be vested immediately upon their (1) BT ERNMBERERE LN 2GS -
acceptance of such New Options.

@ The New Options granted to the employees have a vesting period of 2 years, i.e. @) BT EENMERENGBHA2F - AIDRIRE L A BN

one-half of the New Options shall be vested on the first (1st) anniversary (round E—()EFHB—FMERE(MTHEZSEINOMER
down to the nearest New Option) and the remaining one-half of the New Options HHE) RE_QBEF2MEEAT —LHBERE -

shall be vested on the second (2nd) anniversary of the date of grant respectively.
@) The details of the valuation model are set out in note 34 to financial statements.  (3) HERREFH BN B RERMFE4 - BREEEZEURR &
The value of options are subject to a number of assumptions and limitations that BEBRATHEEEZBERR2FE -

may be subjective and uncertain.

(4 Other grantees were employees of the Group. ) Hip AR ARKEEES -
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ARRANGEMENTS TO PURCHASE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

At no time during the year was the Company or any of its subsidiaries or fellow
subsidiaries, a party to any arrangements to enable the Directors to acquire
benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the
Company or any other body corporate.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the whole or
any substantial part of the business of the Company were entered into or
existed during the year.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS
The information in respect of the Group’s sales and purchases attributable to
the major customers and suppliers respectively during the year are as follows:

BEROBEZ ZLZH

RERERIFRE - AR A REERHERRKRRME QR
BEST A2 REESEBRBE AR A SUEME M
88 2 B 2 A £ S A8 75 1 JE AR &

EEEN
R ARTER BRI MEALD EHHERRITR
THRETSIRETA K -

IREFRHER
TR XBEEFPREEESHIEGEASEZ HERIKE &
BT

Sales Purchases

HE g

The largest customer BAREF 17.8% N/A i A
Five largest customers in aggregate AREFEE 63.7% N/A A5
The largest supplier SAMERE N/A 7~ 53.8%
Five largest suppliers in aggregate AR EEAR N/A 7~ 94.5%

None of the Directors, their close associates or any shareholders (which to the
knowledge of the Directors owned more than 5% of the Company’s share
capital) had any interest in the Group’s five largest customers or suppliers.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

On 26 March 2021, the Company and an independent third party (the
“Subscriber”) entered into a memorandum of understanding. Pursuant to
which the Subscriber is willing to subscribe for the Company’s promissory
note in an aggregate principal amount of HK$20,000,000. The promissory
notes will bear fixed interest at 4% per annum and repayable in 2 years.

COMPETING INTERESTS

The Directors confirm that none of the controlling shareholders or Directors
and their respective close associates (as defined in the GEM Listing Rules) is
interested in any business apart from the business operated by the Group
which competes or is likely to compete, directly or indirectly, with the business
of the Group during the Reporting Period.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company and within the
knowledge of the directors, at least 25% of the Company’s total issued share
capital was held by the public as at the date of this report.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

The related party transactions as disclosed in Note 41 to the consolidated
financial statements does not fall under the definition of “connected
transaction” or “continuing connected transaction” in Chapter 20 of the GEM
Listing Rules. No disclosure requirement is needed accordingly.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
The Company’s corporate governance report is set out on pages 28 to 45 of
this annual report.

BORROWINGS
Particulars of borrowings as at 31 December 2020 and 2019 are set out in
note 28 and 29 to the consolidated financial statements in this annual report.

AUDITORS

The financial statements of the Group were audited by McMillan Woods (Hong
Kong) CPA Limited. McMillan Woods (Hong Kong) CPA Limited will retire and
a resolution for their reappointment as auditors of the Company will be
proposed at the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company.

ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD

Zhou Chuang Qiang
Executive Director

Hong Kong
29 March 2021
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Group has committed to upholding high standards of corporate
governance. The Board considers that enhanced public accountability and
corporate governance are beneficial for the healthy growth of the Group,
improving customer and supplier confidence and safeguarding the interests of
shareholders of the Group.

The Company has adopted the Corporate Governance Code (the “CG Code”)
contained in Appendix 15 to the GEM Listing Rules as its own code and had
complied with the CG Code during the year ended 31 December 2020, except
for the following deviations. The Board has continued to monitor and review
the corporate governance principles and practices to ensure compliance.

Code provision C.1.2 of the CG Code provides that management should
provide all members of the board with monthly updates giving a balanced and
understandable assessment of the issuer’s performance, position and
prospects in sufficient detail to enable the board as a whole and each director
to discharge their duties under Rule 3.08 and Chapter 17 of the GEM Listing
Rules. The management of the Company provided quarterly update to the
members of the Board and the management keeps providing information and
updates to the members of the Board as and when appropriate.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS
The Company has adopted a code of conduct regarding securities
transactions by Directors (the “Model Code”) on terms no less exacting than
the required standard of dealings set out in Rule 5.48 to 5.67 of the GEM
Listing Rules effective from the listing date on 18 July 2014.

Upon the specific enquiry made to all the Directors, the Company was not
aware of any non-compliance with the Model Code regarding securities
transactions by the Directors during the year ended 31 December 2020.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Composition

The Board for the year ended 31 December 2020 comprised the following
Directors:

Executive Directors
Mr. Wang Li

Mr. Wu Yong Fu

Mr. Zhou Chuang Qiang

Non-executive Director
Mr. Chong Yu Keung

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. Huang Jian

Mr. Zheng Wan Zhang

Mr. Wong Tik Tung
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Details of backgrounds and qualifications of all Directors are set out in the
Directors’ Report. All Directors have given sufficient time and attention to the
affairs of the Group. Each executive Director has sufficient experience,
knowledge and execution ability to hold the position so as to carry out his
duties effectively and efficiently.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, 1 annual general meeting, 4
regular Board meetings and other 4 Board meetings were held in addition to
circulation of written board resolutions. The composition of the Board and
Board committees during the year and up to the date of this report, and its
members’ attendance record of meetings held in 2020 are shown below:

Annual
General
Name of member Meeting

HEESR RRBEAE

MEEENESREABRFEHIINEEERSE - MEEZC
BEReARREEIRAEEER - SRTEEABZE
B MBEBITEES  RABEEBRL - YERMSME
TTREAS -

B2 T ZF+-_A=+-HULFE KRTEHNEDES
BARR ERMIRBRREFREG 4REREZSEH
RAREMERSEH - FAREEAREAY EEFN
BEEZEGVENKEKER S TEMBTERNLE
EDIRAT

Attendance record of meetings held in 2020

CECREFETERNLRLEE

Audit Remuneration Nomination ~ Compliance
Board Committee Committee Committee Committee

E3¥® EHEEE  FMEEE REZEE ARZEE

Number of total meetings 1

gaay

Number of Meetings attended/Total
BHEEENY/ B

Executive Directors

Y783

Mr. Wu Yong Fu il
RKELE

Mr. Wang Li il
IRxE

Mr. Zhou Chuang Qiang il
Rels%E

Non-executive Director

FHTES

Mr. Chong Yu Keung il
iERREE

Independent non-executive Directors

BUFHTES

Mr. Huang Jian il
By

Mr. Zheng Wan Zhang il
Ly

Mr. Wong Tik Tung il
TRREE
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6/8  NATEA N/A TEH N/A TEH N/A 1@ H

88 NATEA 171 N/A TEH 1

8/8 N/A TEH N/A TEF N/A TEH N/A T8 H

8/8 4/4 N/A TEF 1 il
6/8 3/4 11 11 N/A T H
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THE RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE BOARD

The Board is responsible for the control and leadership of management
company’s business and is collectively responsible for the Company’s affair
under the Board’s direction and supervision. All the Directors should make
decision objectively in the interests of the Company.

The overall responsibilities of the Board include considering and making
decisions on the following matters:

i) Setting the cooperate goals of the Group and formulating the Group’s
strategy and monitoring the implementation;

(ii) Diversification and extension of activities into new business area;
(i) Approving the annual, half year and quarterly results;

(iv) Dividend policy;

(v) Material acquisitions and disposal;

(v Reviewing and monitoring the Group’s internal control systems;

(vii)

Monitoring the performance of the Management; and

(viii)  Determining and reviewing the composition and diversity of the Board.
BOARD COMPOSITION AND DIVERSITY POLICY

The Company has adopted the board diversity policy since 20 June 2014. The
policy sets out the approach to achieve diversity in the Board that should have
a balance of skills, experience and diversity of perspectives appropriate to the
requirements of the Group’s business and compliance with policies. The
composition and diversity policies of the Board is reviewed annually and
regularly. The Board should ensure that its changes in composition will not
result in any undue interruption. The Board members should possess
appropriate professionalism, experience and trustworthiness in performing
their duties and functions. The Board would diversify its members according
to the Company’s situations and need. While participating in nomination and
recommendation of director candidates during the year, each member of the
Board may consider a range of diversity perspectives, including but not limited
to gender, age, cultural and educational background, or professional
experience in achieving diversity for the benefit of the Company’s various
business development and management.
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A summary of the Board Diversity Policy (the “Policy”), which describes the
Company'’s approach to ensuring adequate diversity, is set out below:

i) consideration and selection of candidates for appointment to the Board
will be based on a range of diversity perspectives, including but not
limited to gender, age, cultural and educational background, ethnicity,
professional experience, skills, knowledge and length of service;

(ii) the ultimate decision will be based on merit and contribution that the
selected candidates will bring to the Board; and

@iy the nomination committee of the Company will report annually to the
Board on the Board’s composition under diversified perspectives, and
monitor the implementation of the Policy.

In 2020, the Board has reviewed the diversity of the Board and considered the
Board composition and diversity is appropriate.

MANAGEMENT

The daily management, administration and operation of the Company are
delegated to the Chief Executive Officer and senior management (the
“Management”). The delegated functions and assignments are periodically
reviewed by the Board. Approval has to be obtained from the Board prior to
entering into any significant transactions by the Management.

The overall responsibilities of the Management include considering and making
decisions on the following matters:

i) Implementing the Group’s policy and strategies set by the Board;

(ii) Strategic planning of different business and functions;

(iii) Closely monitoring operational and financial results in accordance with
plans and budgets;

(iv) Putting adequate operational, planning and financial control systems in
place; and

(v) Managing the Group’s day-to-day business.

CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE

In compliance with Rules 5.05(1) and (2) of the GEM Listing Rules, the
Company has appointed 3 independent non-executive Directors; and at least
one of whom has appropriate professional qualifications or accounting or
related financial management expertise. Each of the independent non-
executive Directors has made an annual confirmation in writing of his
independence pursuant to Rule 5.09 of the GEM Listing Rules and the
Company considers that all the independent non-executive Directors were
independent during the year ended 31 December 2020 since their respective
date of appointment.

All independent non-executive Directors are identified as such in all corporate
communications containing the names of the Directors by the Company.
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CONTINUOUS PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT

All Directors, including independent non-executive Directors, should keep
abreast of their collective responsibilities as Directors and of the businesses
and activities of the Group. The Group also provides briefings and other
training to develop and refresh the Directors’ knowledge and skills, and
updates all Directors on the latest developments regarding the GEM Listing
Rules and other applicable regulatory requirements to ensure compliance and
to enhance their awareness of good corporate governance practices.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Directors provided their
training record to the Company in respect of their participation in training
activities such as attending seminars relevant to their duties and
responsibilities as directors of a listed company, particulars of which are as

FEEXRE

EREF(BEBIYIFNTES) BEREREZTINAEAE
EXBRFPNHAREE - ARENSRABRG LEMIT
Al AERREFEENMERIREE - W GEM LR
REMEREERENENERAZBESRISEHER
HERABRLIGERELSRFEEERTRNEM

REE-Z-_ZHF+_A=+—-RAILFE EXpRKF2A
BRREER ETAREE 2B RBENEIES (I
R &) AARARMHE LS - FEBeT :

follows:
Reading Attending the
materials relevant seminar relevant
to the director’s to the skills of the
duties and director’s
responsibilities position
RESHERBE HERESHN
BENBEME BEFBENHNE
Executive Directors HITES
Mr. Wang Li FEEE v v
Mr. Wu Yong Fu RoKBEE 4 v
Mr. Zhou Chuang Qiang IEEE: S v v
Non-executive Director FETES
Mr. Chong Yu Keung HREEE v v
Independent Non-executive Directors BIUKHTES
Mr. Huang Jian =R kA v v
Mr. Zheng Wan Zhang B pTiE S A v v
Mr. Wong Tik Tung TR A v v
32 Millennium Pacific Group Holdings Limited / Annual Report 2020



Corporate Governance Report
TEERRSE

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

During the year 2020, the Company did not have a designated chairman. The
day-to-day management of the Group’s business is handled by the executive
Directors and the Chief Executive Officer or senior management collectively.
The Board believes that the present arrangement is adequate to ensure an
effective management and control of the Group’s business operations.

The Board is responsible for promoting the success of the Group and its
business by leading and supervising the Company’s affairs. The Board is
responsible for determining the Group’s objectives, overall strategies and
policies, approving business plan, evaluating operating, instilling corporate
culture and financial performance. lts role is clearly separated from that of the
senior management. The Board has delegated the day-to-day operation
responsibility of the Group to executive Directors and senior management.

APPOINTMENT AND RE-ELECTION OF DIRECTORS

All the Directors are appointed for an initial term of one or three years and
subject to retirement by rotation and re-election in accordance with the
Company'’s articles of association (the “Articles”). At each annual general
meeting, not less than one-third of the Directors then in office shall retire and
every Director is subject to retirement by rotation at least once every three
years.

All existing executive Directors, non-executive Director and independent non-
executive Directors are entitled to a fixed remuneration per month or fee per
annum respectively. The remuneration of each Director is subject to the annual
review of the Board with reference to his contribution in terms of time, effort
and his expertise.

Details of remuneration paid to each of the Directors during the year are
disclosed in Note 13 to the financial statements.

All Directors are entitled to be reimbursed for reasonable expenses incurred
during the performance of their duties to the Company and are eligible for
share options under the share option scheme of the Company.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established the board committees, namely, the audit
committee, the remuneration committee, the nomination committee and the
compliance committee, all with specific terms of reference clearly defining the
powers and responsibilities of the respective board committees. All board
committees are required by their terms of reference to report to the Board in
relation to their decisions, findings or recommendations.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company has established an audit committee (“Audit Committee”) with
written terms of reference that are in conformity of the requirements of the CG
Code which are available on the websites of the Stock Exchange and the
Company.

The Audit Committee is currently composed of the 3 independent non-
executive Directors, namely Mr. Huang Jian, Mr. Zheng Wan Zhang and Mr.
Wong Tik Tung and chaired by Mr. Huang Jian , with all members being
independent non-executive Directors of the Company in full compliance with
Rule 5.28 of the GEM Listing Rules.

For the year ended 31 December 2020, 4 Audit Committee meetings were
held and the members’ attendance is shown on page 29 of this annual report.

The functions of the Audit Committee include the following:

() Appointment of the Company’s auditors
(@) to be primarily responsible for making recommendations to the
Board on the appointment, reappointment and removal of the
external auditor, and to approve the remuneration and terms of
engagement of the external auditor, and any questions of its
resignation or dismissal;

(b) to act as the key representative body for overseeing the
Company’s relations with the external auditor;

() to review and monitor the external auditor’s independence and
objectivity and the effectiveness of the audit process in
accordance with applicable standards. The Audit Committee
should discuss with the auditor the nature and scope of the audit
and reporting obligations before the audit commences;

(d)  to develop and implement policy on engaging an external auditor
to supply non-audit services. For this purpose, “external auditor”
includes any entity that is under common control, ownership or
management with the audit firm or any entity that a reasonable
and informed third party knowing all relevant information would
reasonably conclude to be part of the audit firm nationally or
internationally. The Audit Committee should report to the Board,
identifying and making recommendations on any matters where
action or improvement is needed; and

(e) to discuss problems and reservations arising from the quarterly (if
any), interim and final audits and any matters the external
auditors may wish to discuss (in the absence of the Board and
other employees of the Group at the discretion of the Audit
Committee where necessary).
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(ii) Review of the Company’s financial information

(@)

to monitor integrity of the Company’s financial statements and
annual report and accounts, half-year report and quarterly
reports, and to review significant financial reporting judgements
contained in them. In reviewing these reports before submission
to the Board, the Audit Committee should focus particularly on:

1) any changes in accounting policies and practices;

(2)  major judgmental areas;

) significant adjustments resulting from audit;

(4)  the going concern assumptions and any qualifications;

(6)  compliance with accounting standards;

(6) compliance with the GEM Listing Rules and legal
requirements in relation to financial reporting;

(7)  any connected transactions and their impact on the
profitability of the Company;

8) items requiring disclosure; and

(9)  the cash flow position;

regarding point (a) above:

1) members of the Audit Committee should liaise with the
Board and senior management and the Audit Committee
must meet, at least twice a year, with the Company’s
auditors; and

(2)  the Audit Committee should consider any significant or
unusual items that are, or may need to be, reflected in the
report and accounts, it should give due consideration to
any matters that have been raised by the Company’s staff
responsible for the accounting and financial reporting
function, compliance officer or auditors.
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(iii) Overseeing of the Company’s financial reporting system

and internal control procedures

(@) to review the Company’s financial controls, internal control and

risk management systems;

(b) to discuss the internal control system with management to
ensure that management has performed its duty to have an
effective internal control system. This discussion should include
the adequacy of resources, staff qualifications and experience,
training programmes and budget of the Company’s accounting

and financial reporting function;

(©) to consider major investigations findings on internal control
matters as delegated by the Board or on its own initiative and

management’s response to these findings;

(d) where an internal audit function exists, to ensure co-ordination
between the internal and external auditors, and to ensure that the
internal audit function is adequately resourced and has
appropriate standing within the Company, and to review and

monitor its effectiveness;

(e) to review the Group’s financial and accounting policies and

practices;

(4] to review the external auditor’s management letter, any material
queries raised by the auditor to management about the
accounting records, financial accounts or systems of control and

management’s response;

(9  to ensure that the Board will provide a timely response to the
issues raised in the external auditor’s management letter;

(h) to review arrangements employees of the Company can use, in
confidence, to raise concerns about possible improprieties in
financial reporting, internal control or other matters and ensuring
that proper arrangements are in place for fair and independent
investigation of these matters and for appropriate follow-up

action;

(i) to report to the Board on the matters in the Corporate
Governance Code and Corporate Governance Report in

Appendix 15 of the GEM Listing Rules;

() to report to the Board on the matters set out in the terms of

reference of the Audit Committee;
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(k) to establish a whistleblowing policy and system for employees
and those who deal with the Company (e.g. customers and
suppliers) to raise concerns, in confidence, with the audit
committee about possible improprieties in any matter related to
the Company; and

(0] to review the disclosure in the Company’s interim and annual
reports regarding any regulatory deficiencies and remedial
actions.

Major accomplishments of the Audit Committee in 2020 comprised the
following:

(@) reviewed the financial statements for disclosure on a quarterly,
half-yearly and annually basis, where applicable;

(b) reviewed the external auditor’s significant findings and
management’s response to the recommendation raised, if any;

() reviewed the effectiveness of the internal control system and the
adequacy of the accounting and financial reporting functions of
the Group;

(d) reviewed and approved the external auditor’s statutory audit
scope for 2020 and the letter of representation to be given by the
Board; and

(e) considered and approved the 2020 external audit fees and
engagement letters.

The Group’s internal control system is reviewed regularly by management.
With the view of enhancing the Group’s internal control system, during the
year ended 31 December 2020, the Company had appointed an external
independent consultant, to review the Group’s internal control systems and
recommend actions to improve our internal controls.

Based on the review, the Audit Committee is of the view that the Group’s
internal control system was generally effective and in compliance with the
requirements of the CG Code C.2.1 for the year ended 31 December 2020 in
all material respects, provided that the control on dissemination of inside
information and use of financial resources could be further enhanced.

There was no disagreement between the Board and the Audit Committee on
the selection, appointment, resignation or dismissal of the external auditors for
the year ended 31 December 2020.

The Audit Committee has reviewed the audited financial statements of the

Group for the year ended 31 December 2020 and recommended approval to
the Board.
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Company has established a remuneration committee (“Remuneration

Committee”) with written terms of reference in accordance with the

requirements of the CG Code. In accordance with provisions set out in the CG

Code are available on the websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company.

The Remuneration Committee is currently composed of 3 Directors, namely
Mr. Wong Tik Tung, Mr. Zhou Chuang Qiang and Mr. Zheng Wan Zhang, and
chaired by Mr. Wong Tik Tung.

For the year ended 31 December 2020, 1 Remuneration Committee meeting

was held and the members’ attendance is shown on page 29 of this report.

The role and functions of the Remuneration Committee include:

U

(i)

)

()

(vi)

(vii)

(viil)

38

to make recommendations to the Board on the Company’s policy and
structure for all Directors’ and senior management remuneration, of
which a significant portion of Executive Director’s remuneration should
link rewards to corporate and individual performance, and on the
establishment of a formal and transparent procedure for developing
remuneration policy;

to review and approve the management’s remuneration proposals with
reference to the Board’s corporate goals and objectives;

either (a) to determine with delegated responsibility the remuneration
packages of individual executive Directors and senior management; or
(b) to make recommendations to the Board on the remuneration
packages of individual executive Directors and senior management.
This should include benefits in kind, pension rights and compensation
payments, including any compensation payable for loss or termination
of their office or appointment;

to make recommendations to the Board on the remuneration of Non-
executive Directors;

to consider salaries paid by comparable companies, time commitment
and responsibilities and employment conditions elsewhere in the
Company and its subsidiaries;

to review and approve compensation payable to Executive Directors
and senior management for any loss or termination of office or
appointment to ensure that it is consistent with contractual terms and is
otherwise fair and not excessive;

to review and approve compensation arrangements relating to dismissal
or removal of Directors for misconduct to ensure that they are
consistent with contractual terms and are otherwise reasonable and
appropriate;

to ensure that no Director or any of his associates is involved in deciding
his own remuneration;
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(ix)  to advise the Company to disclose details of any remuneration payable
to members of senior management by band in its annual reports; and

%) to advise the shareholders of the Company with respect to any service
contracts of Directors that require shareholders’ approval under the
GEM Listing Rules.

Major accomplishments of the Remuneration Committee in 2020 comprised
the following:

(i) reviewed matters relating to the remuneration packages and
emoluments of Directors and senior management.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Company has established a nomination committee (“Nomination
Committee”) with written terms of reference. The terms of reference of the
Nomination Committee are in conformity with the requirements of the CG
Code and are available on the websites of the Stock Exchange and the
Company.

The Nomination Committee is currently composed of 3 Directors, namely Mr.
Zheng Wan Zhang, Mr. Huang Jian and Mr. Wong Tik Tung, and chaired by
Mr. Zheng Wan Zhang.

For the year ended 31 December 2020, 1 Nomination Committee meeting
was held and the members’ attendance is shown on page 29 of this annual
report.

The role and functions of the Nomination Committee include:

i) to review the structure, size and composition (including the skKills,
knowledge and experience) of the Board at least annually and make
recommendations on any proposed changes to the Board to
complement the Company’s corporate strategy;

(ii) to identify individuals suitably qualified to become Board members and
select or make recommendations to the Board on the selection of,
individuals nominated for directorships;

(iii) to receive nominations from shareholders or Directors when such are
tendered and to make recommendations to the Board on the candidacy
of the nominees, having regard to the Board’s compositional
requirements and suitability of the nominees;

(iv)  to assess the independence of Independent Non-executive Directors
and where the Board proposes a resolution to elect an individual as an
Independent Non-executive Director at the general meeting, it should
set out in the circular to shareholders and/or explanatory statement
accompanying the notice of the relevant general meeting why they
believe he should be elected and the reasons why they consider him to
be independent; and
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(v) to make recommendations to the Board on the appointment and re-
appointment of Directors, and succession planning for Directors in
particular the chairman and the chief executive.

The Nomination Policy is summarized as below that stipulates the key
nomination criteria and principles of the Company for the nomination of
directors and provides what the committee should do in order to give effect to
this policy:

i) review and monitor the structure, size and composition (including the
skills, knowledge, experience and diversity of perspectives) of the Board
on an annual basis and make recommendations on any proposed
changes to the Board to complement the Company’s corporate
strategy;

(ii) identify and nominate qualified individuals for appointment as additional
directors or to fill Board vacancies as and when they arise. The criteria
to be adopted by the Board in considering each individual shall be their
ability to contribute to the Board;

(iii) make recommendations to the Board on the appointment or re-
appointment of directors and succession planning for directors, in
particular, the chairman and the chief executive officer; and

(iv) make recommendations to the Board with particular regard to ensuring
a substantial majority of the directors on the Board being independent
of management.

Major accomplishments of the Nomination Committee in 2020 comprised the
following:

i) reviewed and monitored the structure, size and composition of the
Board.

COMPLIANCE COMMITTEE

The Company has established a compliance committee (“Compliance
Committee”) with written terms of reference. The terms of reference of the
Compliance Committee are available on the websites of the Stock Exchange
and the Company.

The Compliance Committee is currently composed of 3 Directors, namely Mr.
Wong Tik Tung, Mr. Zhou Chuang Qiang and Mr. Huang Jian, and chaired by
Mr. Wong Tik Tung.

For the year ended 31 December 2020, 1 Compliance Committee meeting

was held and the members’ attendance is shown on page 29 of this annual
report.
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The role and functions of the Compliance Committee include:

U

(i)

(i

(iv)

(vi)

(vii)

(viil)

(ix)

to establish, maintain and approve the compliance system of the
Group;

to support and provide instruction to ensure that each department to
establish, execute and maintain its compliance system;

to approve the compliance manual and ensure it is updated;

to organise education and training programmes on compliance,
including compliance seminars;

to monitor the status of the compliance system and discuss from time
to time with relevant management members on the compliance system
to ascertain what action, if any, is required for ongoing compliance;

to investigate compliance problems and take appropriate measures
when one arises (it may instruct the relevant department(s) to deal with
the problem depending on its nature);

to delegate the day-to-day implementation and monitoring of
compliance system to the compliance offer and company secretary;

to review and monitor the ongoing compliance with the GEM Listing
Rules and relevant laws and regulations;

to note any material deficiencies and take remedial actions if necessary
and at all times keep the Board abreast of any such actions and/or
developments; and

to review the disclosures in the Company’s interim and annual reports
regarding any regulatory deficiencies and remedial actions.

Major accomplishments of the Compliance Committee in 2020 comprised the
following:

U

(i)

reviewed the disclosures in the Company’s 2019 annual report
regarding any regulatory deficiencies and remedial actions, if any; and

reviewed the disclosures in the Company’s 2020 interim report
regarding any regulatory deficiencies and remedial actions, if any.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS
The Board is responsible for performing the corporate governance duties set
out in the code provision D.3.1 of the CG Code.

The Board held 1 meeting for the purpose of reviewing the compliance of
corporate governance policies for the year ended 31 December 2020.

The duties of the Board include:

i) to develop and review the Group’s policies and practices on corporate
governance and make recommendations to the Board;

(ii) to review and monitor the training and continuous professional
development of Directors and senior management;

(iii) to review and monitor the Group’s policies and practices on compliance
with legal and regulatory requirements;

(iv)  to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and compliance
manual applicable to employees and Directors; and

(v) to review the Group’s compliance with the CG Code and disclosure in
the CG Report.

Major accomplishments in 2020 comprised the following:

i) evaluated the Group’s policies and practices on corporate governance
and made appropriate amendments;

(ii) arranged the training and continuous professional development of
Directors and senior management; and

(i) reviewed the Company’s compliance with the CG Code and disclosure
in the Corporate Governance Report.

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

The fees in respect of audit and non-audit services provided by the external
auditor, McMillan Woods (Hong Kong) CPA Limited, to the Group for the year
ended 31 December 2020 amounted to approximately HK$510,000 and
HK$100,000 respectively. The non-audit service represented service fees for
tax compliance and other review services.

The accounts for the year ended 31 December 2020 were audited by
McMillan Woods (Hong Kong) CPA Limited whose term of office will expire
upon the forthcoming annual general meeting. The Audit Committee has
recommended to the Board that McMillan Woods (Hong Kong) CPA Limited
be re-appointed as the auditors of the Company at the forthcoming annual
general meeting.

42

SRERME

ERSRANTEEXERTAEDIIGETRG A 2B

KERRT -

HE_Z_ZFT_A=+-RILFE BFFHEBTIR

B BB ASEE T REERRENER -

BEREgCRBARE:

0) HIE RN ANEE CEERBERER  LAESF
B

i) T BELRERERRSREBAENEYINSESER

=
(i) WMAREEAREEETEZREERTHENBER
RER
BRERNEBTE

v  HE R RERERRE ArA

RFM R

V)  BREAEEETEEXELATUNERARELEE AR
ERHIHEE o

KRB -RFERNEIRERBENIIRE

) FIMEARREZEERERABREESR  LELHEEE
B

i) FHEERSREBENBIRFETEEER R

(i) AR FETEEERTINERRELEE AR

MR -

BB BN

HE_Z-_TFET_A=+-HIUFE IEZENRS
(BB SMEBHAERAAMAEERENBRLIER
1Z iR 7% % 23 Bl 4973 510,000 7T 52 100,000 7T » FEEAZ AR
BEERBA S LEMENRBORBER -

BE_Z_THF+_A=+HLFEZRECHERT(F
) %afﬁﬁ%ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁEL\ AEZ - HEHHREERRBS
REER BERREGERNEFTEINEERREFAE
FEBRE(FE)GAMEEIERA R RALD AL o

Millennium Pacific Group Holdings Limited / Annual Report 2020



Corporate Governance Report
TEERRSE

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR FINANCIAL
REPORTING

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparation of the Group’s
financial statements to give a true and fair view. The responsibilities of auditors
in respect of the financial statements are set out in the report of the auditors
forming part of this report.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

The Group emphasises the importance of a sound internal control system
which is also indispensable for mitigating the Group’s key risk exposures. The
Group’s system of internal control is designed to provide reasonable, but not
absolute, assurance against material misstatement or loss and to manage and
eliminate risks of failure in operational systems and fulfilment of the business
objectives. The internal control system is reviewed on an ongoing basis by the
Board in order to make it practical and effective in providing reasonable
assurance in relation to protection of material assets and shareholders’
interests. During the year under review, an external independent consultant
has reviewed the risk management and internal control systems of the Group
and has provided written reports to the Audit Committee.

The Group has adopted a three-tier risk management approach to identify,
assess and manage different types of risks. At the first line of defence,
business units are responsible for identifying, assessing and monitoring risk
associated with each business or transaction. The management, as the
second line of defence, defines rule sets and models, provide technical
support, develops new system and oversees portfolio management. It ensures
risks are within acceptable range and that the first line of defence is effective.
As the third line of defense, an external independent consultant assists the
Audit Committee to review the first and second lines of defence.

The Group is committed to the identification, evaluation and management of
risks associated with its business activities through ongoing assessment of a
risk register, by considering the likelihood and impact of each identified risk.
The Group has implemented an effective control system which includes a
defined management structure with limits of authority, a sound management
system and periodic review of the Group’s performance by the Audit
Committee and the Board.

Through the Audit Committee, the Board has conducted annual review of the
effectiveness of the Group’s risk management and internal control systems for
the year ended 31 December 2020, covering the material financial, operational
and compliance controls, which are considered effective and adequate.

The Audit Committee has reviewed the adequacy of resources, qualifications

and experience, training and budget of the accounting, internal audit and
financial reporting functions on an annual basis.
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INSIDE INFORMATION

The Company assesses the likely impact of any unexpected and significant
event that may impact the price of the shares of the Company or their trading
volume and decides whether the relevant information is considered inside
information and needs to be disclosed as soon as reasonably practicable
pursuant to Rules 17.10 and 17.11 of the GEM Listing Rules and the Inside
Information Provisions under Part XIVA of the SFO. The executive Directors
have responsibility for approving certain announcements and/or circulars to be
issued by the Company under powers delegated by the Board from time to
time.

The Company has put in place procedures on handling and dissemination of
inside information in a timely manner in such a way so as not to place any
person in a privileged dealing position and to allow time for the market to price
the listed securities of the Company with the latest available information. The
Company has appropriate internal control and reporting systems to identify
and assess potential inside information. Dissemination of inside information of
the Company shall be conducted by publishing the relevant information on the
websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company, according to the
requirements of the GEM Listing Rules.

COMPANY SECRETARY

The current Company Secretary of the Company is Ms. Ngan Wai Kam,
Sharon (“Ms. Ngan”) who is a practising solicitor in Hong Kong and was
appointed as the Company Secretary on 17 July 2017 as external service
provider to assist the Board and the primary contact person of the Company
is its executive Director, Mr. Zhou Chuang Qiang.

A written record had been received by the Company from Ms. Ngan Wai Kam,
Sharon confirming that she took not less than 15 hours of relevant professional
training during the year ended 31 December 2020. The Company is of the
view that Ms. Ngan has complied with Rule 5.15 of the GEM Listing Rules.

All Directors have access to the advice and services of the Company
Secretary, who is responsible for ensuring that the board procedures are
followed, advising the Board on all corporate governance matters, and
arranging induction programs including briefings on the general and specific
duties of directors under legal and regulatory requirements for newly appointed
directors. The Company Secretary facilitates the induction and professional
development of Directors.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS TO CONVENE
EXTRAORDINARY GENERAL MEETING

In order to safeguard shareholders’ interests and rights, separate resolutions
are proposed at shareholders’ meetings on each substantial issue, including
the election of individual directors, for shareholders’ consideration and voting.

The following procedures for shareholders of the Company to convene an
extraordinary general meeting are subject to the Articles, and the applicable
legislation and regulation, in particular the GEM Listing Rules:

(i) any one or more shareholders of the Company holding at the date of
deposit of the requisition not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital
of the Company carrying the right of voting at general meetings of the
Company shall at all times have the right, by written requisition to the
Board or the company secretary of the Company (the “Company
Secretary”), to require an extraordinary general meeting (the “EGM”) to
be called by the Board for the transaction of any business specified in
such requisition pursuant to Article 64 of the Articles; and

(ii) if within 21 days of the deposit of the requisition, the Board fails to
proceed to convene such EGM, the requisitionist(s) himself/themselves
may do so in the same manner, and all reasonable expenses incurred
by the requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of the Board shall be
reimbursed to the requisitionist(s) by the Company.

PROCEDURES FOR SENDING ENQUIRIES TO THE
BOARD

Apart from sending email to info@mpgroup.com.hk, shareholders may send
their enquiries and concerns to the Board by addressing them to the
headquarter and principal place of business of the Company in Hong Kong at
Unit 5, 4/F, Energy Plaza, No. 92 Granville Road, Tsim Sha Tsui East,
Kowloon, Hong Kong, by post or by fax to (852) 2155 2081, for the attention
of the Company Secretary.

PROCEDURES FOR SHAREHOLDERS TO PUT
FORWARD PROPOSALS AT SHAREHOLDERS’
MEETINGS

Pursuant to the Articles, shareholders who wish to move a resolution may by
means of written requisition to convene an EGM following the procedures set
out above.

AMENDMENTS TO CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS
For the year ended 31 December 2020, there was no significant change in the
Company’s memorandum and the Articles.
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BACKGROUND

The Group is principally engaged in research and development,
manufacturing and sale of consumer electronic products, such as
fitness bracelets, GPS personal navigation devices, mobile internet
devices and TV set-top boxes and provide an internet trading platform.

The Group’s manufacturing process was catered by Shidai JiuFang
(Shenzhen) Electronic Technology Co., Limited (“Shidai Jiufang”),
another indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company established in
the PRC. Shidai Jiufang is principally engaged in the research,
development and manufacturing of electronic devices in Shenzhen,
PRC. This report will focus on Shidai Jiufang as its business activities
are most relevant to the environmental and social aspects of the Group.

This Report covers the Group’s overall performance in two subject
areas, namely, Environmental and Social of the business operations in
Hong Kong office from 1 January 2020 to 31 December 2020 (the
“year” or “2020"), unless otherwise stated.

FOREWORD

The Group primarily adopts the principles and basis of the ESG
Reporting Guide as set out in Appendix 20 to the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on Growth Enterprise Market (the “GEM Listing
Rule”) of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited, with an aim to
establish a sound environment, social and governance structure.

This report comprises the review of environment, social and governance
areas, which sets out the Company and its major subsidiaries’ policies
and practices in respect of three environmental aspects and eight social
aspects in accordance with ESG Reporting Guide for the year from 1
January 2020 to 31 December 2020 (the “year” or “2020”). This report
is designed to allow the Company’s stakeholders, such as
shareholders, investors, customers, suppliers, employees, creditors,
regulators and the general public to have comprehensive understanding
of the long-term sustainability information of the Group. The Group
seeks to balance the views and interests of these stakeholders through
constructive conversation with a view to setting the course for long term
prosperity. The Board of directors is responsible for evaluating and
determining the environmental, social and governance risks of the
Group, and ensuring that relevant risk management and internal control
systems are in place and operate effectively.
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The table underneath showed aspects on the ESG Guide to be
assessed and those ESG issues were determined to be material to the

Group.

ESG Aspects as set forth in ESG Guide

BE - HERERBEEIIMINERE  HERERS

Environmental, Social and Governance Report
RIE - HERERRS

TEREHESGHESIFHBEELFHNERE tEK
EARAFHEREALSEBEANERER HERER
IH .

Material ESG issues for the Group

b2 HEAKEBEEANEER  HERERTHE
A Environmental
n  EE
Al Emissions Emission from town gas, electricity or vehicle
Al BERR B BHSTEMHEN
A2  Use of Resources Use of energy and paper
A2 EREHA BEIR R AR oR A R
A3 Environment and Natural Resources
A3 RIBERBAER
B)  Social
B =
B1 Employment and Labour Practices Labour practices
Bl ERERBIER BITEH
B2  Health and Safety Workplace health and safety
B2 [EEZE THEEMEREZ S
B3  Development and Training Employee development and training
B3  EEK&IFI 8 TR &SI
B4  Labour Standards Anti-child and forced labour
B4 SHIEE IR FE T ekogiE s
B5  Supply Chain Management Supply chain management
Bs ftEEER HEEE R
B6  Product Responsibility Product responsibility
B6 EmAE Emaft
B7  Anti-corruption Anti-corruption, fraud prevention and anti-money laundering
B7 R&F RES - b7 LB R R R
B8  Community Involvement Community programs, employee volunteering and donation
B8 th[m£E HEES - BTERRIBEES
ENVIRONMENTAL A. RE

Environmental protection is one of the core values of the Group. The
Group has proactively looked for and implemented new technology at
various stages of production in order to minimise its impact on the
environment. The Group’s products are designed to be safe and
environmental friendly for customer use, meaning recyclable and safe to
dispose materials are specified in its designs, and clean production
processes are adopted in its manufacturing process. Moreover,
unnecessary packaging that can cause harm to environment is not
introduced into its products.

The Group considers environmental protection an essential component
of sustainable and responsible business. The Group strive to negative
impacts on the environment and to seek environmentally friendly
methods of operation. Given the nature of the Group’s business,
electricity is the most significant resources consumed in the office in
Shenzhen and Hong Kong.
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The Group have narrowed down to the following key areas where it
should exert the effort on:

o Usage of resources from the operations;
o Energy consumption; and
o Indoor environmental quality.

The Current Environmental Policies

The Group’s main task is to measure and report the efforts in reducing
carbon footprints, promote waste reduction at source, enhance its
waste disposal management and set targets on environmental
performance. To minimise the environmental impacts concerning the
activities, products and services, the Group will:

o Comply with applicable legal requirements and other
requirements which relate to the Group’s environmental aspects,
and to which the Group subscribes;

o Identify environmental impacts associated with the operations
and set the targets to reduce stress on the environment in
consideration of social expectations;

o Prevent pollution, reduce waste and minimise the consumption
of resources from all daily operations and actively promote
recycle, reuse and replace;

o Educate, train and motivate employees to develop a social
viewpoint that enables them to conduct business activities in an
environmentally responsible manner.

A1.1. Emissions Data from Gaseous Fuel Consumption

For Hong Kong office operations, the key environmental impacts
from the Group’s operations related to energy and paper
consumption. To achieve environment protection, the Group
encourages employees to shift to e-statement or scanning to
reduce the use of paper and greenhouse gas emissions; to
switch off all computers and office equipment and air-conditioner
at the end of each working day.

The Group has integrated environmental objectives into the
business decisions in a cost-effective manner. The Group has
required all staff to assume environmental responsibilities in
normal operating procedures and has enhanced the awareness
of environmental and resource efficiency issues amongst the
customers, staff and stakeholders. All important green and
quality assurance policies have been posted on the notice board
and stated in the standard operating procedures of the
manufacturing plant.
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A1.2.

() Since the Company did not have town fuel and town gas
consumption during the year, therefore no emissions data
from gaseous fuel consumption applied.

(o)  the Company did not has motor vehicles during the year,
therefore no emissions data from gaseous fuel

consumption applied.

Greenhouse Gas Emission

@ HRARRFANLEHFENH SRR
L 3 S R P SR B AR R A O R IR
BEUE

b  ARFRFALEEEE - FUALE
[ERAREEDERE LN ERIE -

A2 BRERBIHHE

Key Performance Index (“KPI”)

BRENIEE (BERENEED
2020 Unit %
i 32 By %

Scope 1
=1
Direct Emission - Kg -
HEBEW T
Scope 2
=2
Indirect Emission 30,341 Kg 100%
[BEER i T
Scope 3
#E3
Other indirect Emission - Kg -
H b BN T
Total 30,341 Kg 100%
st T

During the year, there is 30,341 kg of carbon dioxide equivalent
greenhouse gases (mainly carbon dioxide, methane and nitrous
oxide) emitted from the Group’s operation.

Total floor area coverage for the Group was 2,892 m? in 2020.
The annual emission intensity was 10.49 KgCO,e/m?.

Compliance with relevant laws and regulations:

The Group is not aware of any material non-compliance with the
relevant laws and regulations that have a significant impact
relating to air and greenhouse gas emissions, discharges into
water and land, generation of hazardous and non-hazardous
waste of the Group during the year. In addition, no significant
fines or non-monetary sanctions for non-compliance with relevant
laws and regulations had been reported in the year.
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A1.3. Non-hazardous Waste

A2.1.

A3.

The Group generates no hazardous waste in its operation. Non-
hazardous waste from use of electricity of the Group’s operation
but the management of the Group believed that is insignificant
waste.

Use of resource

The Group is committed to minimising the impact of business
activities on the environment, and supporting environmental
protection programmes. In particular, a number of initiatives
designed to conserve resources were introduced to promote
employee awareness of the need to achieve efficient utilisation of
resources.

The Group has been encouraging employees to establish energy-
saving habits in the office, such as switching off lights and
electronic appliances before leaving the office, as well as setting
indoor temperature at 25.5°C.

A1.3. BERERY
AEENSEVERELBEEEY - AEEN
LEERENEELETERY  BAKEE
BEERRBERNATERX -

.ERER

A2.1

REBHNRERAEEEEEREDEIRE
VEE  YXRERREAE - BHE AKED

HHZHREAREERNGE UEREER

AeMMNBERNTELEE -

AEE-HEEIEEEENAZTHEEE  H
MR BB A EAT BB L R ER - WEER
REA25FEE »

The energy consumed is mainly from purchase of electricity. The I REEREBEE N - BEE=HI W
total electricity consumed are set out below: T
KPI
% increase/
2019 Unit (decrease)
—EEF —E—hEF B 082 %
Electricity consumed 36,436 28,483 kWh 28%
EEE TR
Total floor are of facilities 2,892 2,892 m? -
REARREE R K
Resource consumed per square meter 9.85 kKWh/m? 28%
BYFAEEE FEEFHK
Environmental and Natural Resources A3. EEREARER
The Group has established a series of policies, mechanisms and REED ST — R EERERER EREE
measures on environmental protection and natural resources (R - M R R B B AR - 7k

conservation to enhance its efficiency in the usage of energy,
water and materials and also complies with relevant local
environmental regulations and international general practices,
with an aim to reduce the use of natural resources and protect
the environment.

There were no non-compliance cases noted in relation to
environmental laws and regulations during the year.

R EERE - JRETERARRAR L —
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B. SOCIAL
Being a responsible business and employer, the Group are committed
to consistently looking for ways to meet the corporate social
responsibilities. The Group focus on its staff, environment and
community as well as its business partners.

B1. Employment and Labour Practices

The Group places a significant emphasis on developing human
capital and provides competitive remuneration and welfare
packages. Promotion opportunities and salary adjustments are
benchmarked against individual performance. Employees are
entitled to benefits such as annual leave, sick leave, maternity
leave, marriage leave, funeral leave and medical coverage in
accordance with local regulations.

The Group emphasis on equal opportunities for all personnel in
respect of hiring, pay rates, training and development, promotion
and other terms of employment. The Group is committed to
providing a work environment free from any form of discrimination
on the basis of ethnicity, gender, religion, age, disability or sexual
orientation.

The Group has a wide diversity of cultures including the
employees with different genders, ages, skills, educational
backgrounds, industry experiences and other qualifications in
order to achieve the most suitable composition and balance.

The Group’s remuneration package is structured with reference
to the individual performance, working experience and prevailing
salary levels in the market. In additional to basic salaries and
mandatory provident fund for Hong Kong office staff, fringe
benefits include a basic five-day working week, flexible leave
arrangement, medical coverage scheme and annual dinner.

The Group has developed an employee handbook in accordance
with the Labour Law of the PRC and has distributed it to all
employees. The remuneration policies are determined on the
basis of performance, qualification and experience of individual
employee. The remuneration generally includes salaries and
allowances.

The Group had subscribed to those basic pension insurance,
basic medical insurance, unemployment insurance, occupational
injury insurance, maternity insurance as prescribed by the Social
Insurance Law of the PRC, as well as housing fund schemes as
prescribed by the Regulations on the Administration of Housing
Fund.
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Employees’ wages, overtime payments and related benefits are
made not less than the local government’s minimum
requirements. The normal working hours for general employees
are normally 8 hours a day and 40 hours a week. Integrated
computation of working hours is implemented with reference to
the requirements of the Labour Law of the PRC.

Staff Composition

As at 31 December 2020, the Group employed a total of 37
(2019: 51) staff, including operational office, sales and marketing,
and back office division. All staff members are allocated in Hong
Kong and Mainland China.

EEMNTE - NYERHERABEENSTMERE
B R ER o —RE THIER TIERH
A5 R8N R EEA0/ N o THIIZE(H

EARKNMBEHZOREHFAFE -

BTHA

37%

T-EF+-_A=+—H AEEHER
(ZE—NF:518)BET BELERN

£ HERTSHRERRYAPINET - &

HEETHHENEERPENM -

BEFRRMER DM

() Employee’ s Age and Gender Distribution (a)
2020 2019
—E-%F —E-n%
Age Group Male Female Male Female
FHAE B Bt g 3 Esla peqid
0-30 3% 0% 0% 0%
31-50 54% 32% 65% 35%
=51/>51 3% 8% 0% 0%
Total 59% 41% 65% 35%
Bt
(o)  Employee’ s Geographical and Gender Distribution () IEEHERRERIDMH
2020 2019
—E-EfF —T-hEF

Locations Male Female Male Female
ithE Bt Zik S gk
Hong Kong 29% 0% 21% 0%
BB
Mainland China 30% 41% 44% 35%
A A
Total 59% 41% 65% 35%
FEy

The Group will continue to provide a well-structured and caring
environment to employees to raise their sense of belonging and
work efficiency in the Group.

AEEBFERNESRMABEEARENT
TEIRIFIAR TR S 10 55 B R S TR o
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B2.

The Group is not aware of any material non-compliance with the
relevant laws and regulations that have a significant impact
relating to compensation and dismissal, recruitment and
promotion, working hours, rest periods, equal opportunity,
diversity, anti-discrimination and other benefits and welfare on
the Group during the year. In addition, no non-compliance with
relevant laws and regulations that resulted in significant fines or
sanctions had been reported during the year.

Employee Health and Safety

The Group adopts non-discriminatory employment practices and
provides a healthy and safe workplace. The Group seeks to
attract and retain talented employees through providing a safe
and healthy workplace for each and every employee in line with
established internal guidelines and systems.

For Hong Kong office staff, the Group provides its employee with
flexible rest leave arrangement, medical and hospital scheme.
The Group understands that a good working environment for its
employees with a safe and comfortable working condition is very
important. The Group has set a clear guideline of work
arrangement for typhoon and rainstorm warning.

The outbreak of the novel coronavirus (Covid-19), has become
the latest challenge for the health authorities in Hong Kong and

Mainland China, the Group has several policy to protect its staff:

— All public area would be performed disinfection on timely
basis;

— Provide mask and disinfection supplies to all staff;
— Request all management provide mask himself/herself;

— Request all staff to perform body temperature test
everyday;

— Request each staff to report their health status everyday;
and

— Request each Department Head to monitor the health
status of its staff on timely basis.
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Occupational Health and Safety Data
The information of work accidence are set out below:

BEBFERLZEHIE

BRTHEBINNEREIIMT :

2020 2019
—E=%F —E-n%

Health and Safety Male Female Male Female
BERZE Bt g 3 St gk
Number of work-related fatalities 0% 0% 0% 0%
E TERRRMIL T 8 A2

Lost days due to work injury 0% 0% 0% 0%
EIGEETIERHR

During the year, the Group has had no non-compliance cases
regarding violation of relevant laws and regulations on
occupational health and safety.

Development and Training

The Group has committed to provide on-the-job education and
training to its employees in order to enhance their knowledge
and skills. All employees are encouraged to enhance their skills
and knowledge at every opportunity in order to perform their
current job more efficiently and effectively and to be better
prepared for career opportunities which may arise. During the
year, regular training courses were provided to the employees
included but not limited to orientation training, technical training
and quality training.

Performance evaluations are initiated each year. Recognising the
value in the skill and experience of our staff, the Group has
adopted a policy that any promotions will be considered internally
first before hiring any outside staff. It is the Group’s policy to
select the most suitable candidate for appointment to a higher
rank based on merit, rather than on the seniority of the
candidates.

Labour Standard

The Group fully understand that the exploitation of child and
forced labour are universally prohibited, and therefore take the
responsibility against child and forced labour very seriously. The
Group strictly comply with all laws and regulations against child
labour and forced labour in Shenzhen, PRC.

For entry registration, all employees must present valid
documents to the PRC office as follows: (i) identity card and
vocational qualification certificate; (i) social security card; (iii)
medical or health certificate; (iv) recent photos; and (v) other
relevant information and documents required by the Group. The
above procedures can ensure no child labour will be employed in
manufacturing plant.

B3.

B4.
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B6.

All employees of the PRC office are entitled to have sick leave,
injury leave and maternity leave with medical proof in accordance
with the Labour Law of PRC and Law of the PRC on the
Protection of Labour Rights and Interests and other applicable
regulations. In addition, all employees work normally 8 hours daily
and are not encouraged to work overtime. But if overtime work is
required, the relevant employees and superior will agree mutually
in written form. The compensation for overtime work is in
accordance with the provisions of the Labour Law of PRC.

During the year, the Group has had no non-compliance cases
regarding violation of relevant child labour and forced labour
laws.

Supply Chain Management

The Group has the greatest respect for the laws and regulations
that govern its business. The Group always adheres to
international best practices and conducts fair and unbiased
procurement processes when dealing with suppliers.

The Group adheres to the principle of transparency and
implements the value of honesty, integrity and fairness in its
supply chain management. The Group’s procurement
procedures provide directions and guidelines on evaluation and
engagement when dealing with suppliers of goods and services
to ensure business is conducted with legally, financially and
technically-sound entities. In addition, approval procedures are in
place to ensure that supplier engagements are monitored and
approved by the appropriate level of management.

Product Responsibility

A high priority for the Group is to ensure customer satisfaction in
terms of its products and services. Strenuous efforts are made to
ensure compliance with the relevant laws and regulations relating
to product health and safety, advertising, labelling and privacy
matters of the jurisdictions in which the Group operates. The
Group requires its employees to comply with applicable
governmental and regulatory laws, rules, codes and regulations.

During the year, the Group do not have any recalled products
and do not receive any compliant from its customers in relation
to either its quality of service or products. The Group has had no
non-compliance cases regarding violations of relevant laws and
regulations on product responsibility and data privacy.
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B7.

B8.

Anti-corruption

Corruption, bribery or fraud in any form is strictly prohibited. The
Group’s anticorruption policies set out standards of conduct to
which all employees are required to adhere in order to promote
the integrity environment in the workplace.

To combat corruption and to govern conflicts of interest, unless
with the Group’s approval, Directors and employees are
prohibited from accepting any valuable items from co-workers,
customers, suppliers or other stakeholders. Unless with approval
the Board, senior management members are also prohibited
from engaging in any activities that involve a potential conflict of
interest with the Group or may do harm to the Group’s overall
interests. Breaches are subject to disciplinary actions, including
the termination of employment contracts where necessary.

Various policies have also been formulated to accord with the
Securities and Futures Commission’s Guideline on Anti-Money
Laundering and Counter- Terrorist Financing, including the basic
procedures for customer identification and due diligence,
suspicious transactions report and recordkeeping. Ongoing staff
training has also been carried out to ensure each of the
employees is fully aware of these policies.

The PRC office is fully aware of the Group’s anti-corruption
policies and of the priority to avoid corruption from taking root in
its operation. Its management understands layered audits and
clear accountability to monitor work related activities of the next
level and as well one more level below is the key to avoid
possible corruption.

In the year, there is no legal case concerning corruption brought
against the Group or employees.

Community Involvement

The Group always seeks to be a positive force in the
communities in which it operates and maintain close
communications and interactions with the communities in order
to contribute to local development from time to time.

As global responsible citizen, the Group strives to improve the
society image and social responsibility through community
investment. All employees of the Group are encouraged to
participate their own initiatives on helping and supporting the
local communities and neighbours.
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McMillanWoods

Professionalism at the forefront

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
MILLENNIUM PACIFIC GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Millennium Pacific
Group Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively
referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages 62 to 139, which comprise the
consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December 2020, and the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income,
consolidated statement of changes in equity and consolidated statement of
cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial
statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view
of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31 December 2020,
and of its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated cash flows
for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (the “HKICPA”) and have been properly prepared in compliance
with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing (‘HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under those
standards are further described in the Auditor’'s Responsibilities for the Audit
of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report. We are
independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA’s Code of Ethics
for Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our opinion.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS

BREXEE

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were — 1RIEE S v BE L - BREZEBEAESERANGAE
of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial statements of the ~ EHEXBEFKEENEIE - TR HEE B SEZETER
current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of ~AFEHREREXNETEHENSERFHETRIE MEETE
the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion — %S HIFREEFER - BE DT EWIRFORE LT @
thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. We have Wit ARBREZEE > TR BREPHE -

determined impairment and recoverability of trade receivables to be the key

audit matter to be communicated in our report.

Key Audit Matter
BRELER

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
BREREZSHEHEEXPUMER

Impairment and recoverability of trade receivables
FEW AR 562 JBi 1B R AT Y [E] 14

Refer to significant accounting policies in note 4, critical judgement
and estimates in note 5, financial risk assessment in note 6(b) and
its relevant disclosures in note 23 to the financial statements.
BRI HRENT4FEZSTUE  WTsEZHERFZE
15T+ W17 6(b) B 75 B B8 ST A 2 i % 23 9 4B B 17 58 F 1A o

In practice, the Group would grant credit terms to its customers
ranged between 60 to 90 days. The Group would perform periodic
assessment on the impairment as well as recoverability of trade
receivables by basing on information including credit risk
characteristics of each customers, historical ageing and settlement
records, subsequent settlement status, expected timing and
amount of recovering outstanding balances, on-going trading
relationships with the relevant customers and forward-looking
information that may impact its customers’ abilities to repay the
outstanding trade receivables in order to estimate the expected
credit losses (“ECL") for the impairment assessment.

ERE EEEBEMETFETE0ZE0RNEER  BEH
HRESEEPHNEERRES BERKRIEEDE  RERHE
AR RERERKENTERRHR RS  EEBEPORFER
SRFEARFIRE BAT P EEREREBRERENNAELE
H - 8RR A RE K AT B E 1T TE BTk - SAfRETRERT
EOEREREER ((HHREEBR) -

Due to the significance of trade receivables to the Group ' s
consolidated financial statements (representing approximately 31%
of the Group " s total assets) and the impairment assessment of
trade receivables under the ECL model involved the use of
significant management judgements and estimates, we considered
this as a key audit matter.

BHREBUERE BSXEGEMBERRNEEHVUS EEEEE
BELN31%) RFAREEEERNE T RKERARET S R
EREREEEAE R ESHERER—IAMREREE -
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Our audit procedures in relation to the recoverability assessment of
trade receivables included:
EE A BRI W B MR BRI AR 7 B4

- Evaluating the design, implementation and operating
effectiveness of key internal controls over credit control, debt
collection and estimate of ECL;

—  FHMEEEEEEY  ERERRATEAEEBENTIER
BRI RRET - BRFELS BRI

- Assessing the reasonableness of the Group s ECL models by
examining the model inputs used by management to form such
judgements, including testing the accuracy of the historical
default data, evaluating whether the historical loss rates are
appropriately adjusted based on current economic conditions
variables and assumptions used in each of the economic
scenarios and their probability weightings and assessing
whether there was an indication of management bias when
recognising loss allowances; and

- FPRREEERBWAFEBAEMMERANRE A U
i ESEEEHEEBEEEANGEN  BFEUFABEED
RERERY  STEBERAEEERENSLBBESR
ERMEMEBRTEERREARKREEE 2 AL E
ETEERE  THAREREREESEOFEEEER
Bk

- Inspecting settlements after the financial year end relating to the
trade receivables as at 31 December 2020.

- RBRERVEBRFEEREEEN_Z_ZTE+_A=+—HZ
EMERRZ A -

- Reviewing the appropriateness of the disclosure in the
consolidated financial statements.

- ERRAMBmRAREZAEM -
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OTHER INFORMATION

The directors are responsible for the Other Information. The Other Information
comprises all of the information included in the Company’s annual report other
than the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the Other
Information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our
responsibility is to read the Other Information and, in doing so, consider
whether the Other Information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated
financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise
appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed,
we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this Other Information,
we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated financial
statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with HKFRSs issued
by the HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors determine is
necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern,
disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the
going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either intend to
liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but
to do so.

The Audit Committee assists the directors in discharging their responsibilities
for overseeing the Group’s financial reporting process.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report
that includes our opinion. We report our opinion solely to you, as a body, and
for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept
liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that
an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and
are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on
the basis of these consolidated financial statements.
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As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgement and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We
also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design
and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain
audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting
from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or
the override of internal control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order
to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances,
but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of
the Group’s internal control.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made
by the directors.

o Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going

concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the
related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to
cease to continue as a going concern.

o Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

o Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group to
express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are
responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the group
audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee, among other matters, the

planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including
any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.
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We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have complied
with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to
communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable,
actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguard applied.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we determine
those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit
matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely
rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated
in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would
reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

McMillan Woods (Hong Kong) CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Hui Chi Kong

Audit Engagement Director

Practising Certificate Number: P07348

Hong Kong, 29 March 2021

3/F., Winbase Centre, 208 Queen’s Road Central, Hong Kong
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

ReEakAMEEKER

For the year ended 31 December 2020
HE-_Z-_TF+_-_A=+—HIFE

2020 2019
—E-EH —T-NEF
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
Hiat FE T FET
Revenue Wk 8 119,337 301,214
Cost of sales and services rendered HE RIBHRE 2 KA (115,253) (289,904)
Gross profit EF 4,084 11,310
Other income HAaA 9 93 2,445
Selling and distribution costs SHE R $HRR AR (52) (254)
Administrative expenses THAX (18,355) (25,794)
Other operating losses Hibsg & 18 (750) -
Reversal of impairment losses/(impairment FEU IR FORE S 1B R, OB E 5 18)
losses) on trade receivables 2,704 (3,085)
Impairment losses on other receivables H i FEURIE 2 BB 18 (438) -
Loss from operation EIEEE (12,714) (15,378)
Finance costs M%EA 10 (2,360) (1,790)
Gain on disposals of subsidiaries HEMB A RS 36(a) - 12,853
Share of results of associates DIREE N EEE 64 4,054
Share of results of a joint venture AME—EEEDEEE 58 10
Loss before tax BRELATE B 11 (14,952) (2571)
Income tax expense B R 12 = @)
Loss for the year FRER (14,952) (253)
Other comprehensive income/(loss): Hip 2wk (EE) :
Item that will not be reclassified to TEENHHEZEmAIER -
profit or loss:
Fair value changes of financial assets EEAEATES AL MEAKE
designated at fair value through other (MBEAFEFAHMBEZERE )
comprehensive income (‘FVTOCI”) ZERMEENTEE - (338)
Items that may be reclassified to profit or loss: FIFEE# P A B EE -
Exchange differences on translating W EFINETERERIE K =58
foreign operations 216 (776)
Release of exchange reserve upon disposals & & A 7RI R E 5
of subsidiaries - (1,586)
Share of other comprehensive income DIHEE AT HM 2 EmKES
of associates 1,440 -
Other comprehensive income/(loss) FREMZEKE (EHE)
for the year, net of tax MBRFIE 1,656 (2,700)
Total comprehensive loss for the year FRE2EEBEATE (13,296) (2,953)
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

ReEakAMEEKER

For the year ended 31 December 2020
HE-_ZT-_TF+_-_A=+—HULFE

2020 2019
—E-EH —ZT—NEF
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
Wit FET FET
Profit/(loss) for the year attributable to: LT A T FE{EEREEF,(Ei8) :
— the owners of the Company — RRBEB A (14,880) (1,081)
— non-controlling interests — FEIERRE (72) 828
(14,952) (253)
Total comprehensive loss for the year UTATEEERZEEEREAE
attributable to:
— the owners of the Company i VNGIEZ=DN (13,340) (3,747)
— non-controlling interests — FEFEARRERS 44 794
(13,296) (2,953)
Loss per share (cents) FRER B
— Basic — &R 15 (1.50) (0.14)
— Diluted — W 15 (1.50) (0.14)
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e B RR

At 31 December 2020
RZZTZTF+=A=+—AH

2020 2019
—EoEg —T-NEF
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
Hiat THET FHT
Non-current assets FEREEE
Property, plant and equipment ME - BWENMERE 17 527 906
Right-of-use assets FRAEEE 18 3,224 779
Intangible assets B|EE 19 = -
Investments in associates REFENF 2B 20 31,892 30,379
Investment in a joint venture R—EaErEZEREA 21 73 15
35,716 32,079
Current assets REBEE
Inventories FE 22 1,560 601
Trade receivables FEURER K 23 24,301 65,940
Other receivables, prepayments and deposits ~ H {th fE W FIE « FENFIB R E 24 16,041 13,209
Bank and cash balances RITRIREE 25 1,261 1,465
43,163 81,215
Current liabilities REBE
Trade payables FEAHBR X 26 912 45,668
Other payables, deposits received and HihERAFRIE - BRETE NETEA
accrued expenses 27 10,875 6,595
Convertible bonds AR E S 28 21,132 18,934
Lease liabilities HEaE 29 2,547 869
Current tax liabilities BNERti BB E 375 625
35,841 72,691
Net current assets REEEZFE 7,322 8,524
Total assets less current liabilities HEERABERE 43,038 40,603
Non-current liabilities FRBEE
Lease liabilities HERE 29 723 -
NET ASSETS EEZRE 42,315 40,603
Capital and reserves B2 K fet
Share capital A& 31 1,649 1,427
Reserves [ExE 33 38,677 37,231
40,326 38,658
Non-controlling interests R = 1,989 1,945
TOTAL EQUITY R 42,315 40,603

Approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 29 March

2021.

Zhou Chuang Qiang
A&

EF

Director
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Wu Yong Fu
RXKE

BF
Director

MEEFER_T—

—FZA TN BRUE RIRRETIE -
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mEEmEER

For the year ended 31 December 2020

BE-_Z-_EF+-_A=+—8ItFE

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

Attributable to the owners of the Company

EATREAREL
Equity
Foreign component Financial
currency of assets at Non-
Share Share  Statutory Merger translation Option  convertible FVTOCI  Accumulated Total  controlling Total
capital premium reserve reserve reserve reserve bonds reserve losses reserve interests equity
RATE
HARK2E
TERES  WEZER
Ra  RGEE  ERRE  AHBE WEERE BRERE B85 BERR iR 2HE  FERER fEs
(ote 33(c))  (note 33(c)i) - (note 33(cil) ~ (note 33(cii))  (note 33())  (note 33(c)a)  (note 33(c))
(HE330n) (W) (WEEsgein) (WEsdehy) (Wetaseom)  (Hassom)  (Ritasopi)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK§'000 HK$'000 HK§'000 HK§'000 HK$'000 HK§'000 HK$'000 HK$000
Thn i Thn i TEn TEn TE#n iz Thn TEn TER TEr
At 1 January 2019 RZE-NE-A-R 1,11 71,644 766 12400 1,672 36,581 - 125 (119811) 3317 1,151 5,639
Placing of new shares (net of share REFRR (MRREAEIRZ)
issue expenses) (note 31) (Witamm) 120 8,829 - - - - - - - 8,829 - 8,049
Issue of convertible bonds (nofe 28) BaaRES M) - - - - - - 2,650 - - 2,650 - 2,650
Recogniton of ARABERAAR
share-based payments - - - - - 9253 - - - 9253 - 9253
Transfer of share option reserve upon RERENARERE
cancelation of share options g - - - - - (43,785) - - 43,785 - - -
Issue of shares on acquisition of an ShE-ERenaEaRG
associats (nofe 31() (310 19 16,869 - - - - - - - 16,869 - 17,065
Transfer to acoumulated losses upon RESHE-FBELR
step-acqisition of an associate FaEBEZ:EE - - - - - - - 213 (213 - - -
Disposals of subsidiares HENBAT - - (766) (12,400 - - - - 13,166 - - -
Total comprehensive logs for the year FRRAFEEE - - - - (2.328) - - 338) (1,081) (3,747) 794 (2983
Changes in equty for the year 316 25,698 (766) (12,400 (2328 (34,632) 2,650 (125) 55,667 33,854 9% 34,964
At31 December 2019 and R=E-AE+=B=1-R
1 January 2020 R=%-%5-5-8 [T - - (656) 2049 2650 - B4 a3 195 4060
Placing of new shares (net of BEFRR
share issue expenses) (NBRERTHER)
(note 31(c) (Ris10)  131% - - - - = - - 1315 - 134
Recognition of BRURGBERNOAR
share-based payments - - - - - 1,591 - - - 1,591 - 1,591
Transfer of share option reserve REREDERERE
upon lapse of share options RiEkE - - - - - (980) - - 980 - - -
Total comprehensive loss FREEFREE
for the year - - - - 1,540 - - - (14,880) (13,340) “ (13,206)
Changes in equity for the year FREREE 22 13,195 - - 1,540 611 - - (13,900) 1,446 4% 1,712
At 31 December 2020 W-B-85+-A=1-H 1,649 110,537 - - 884 2,660 2,650 - (78,054) 38,677 1,989 42315
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
GEEHERER

For the year ended 31 December 2020
HE-_Z-_TF+-_A=+—HIFE

2020 2019
—E-EH —E—NF
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
HizE FHT FAT
CASH FLOWS FROM KETHERSHRE
OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Loss before tax FR T A B 18 (14,952) (251)
Adjustments for: BT SIEEL T
Interest income F B U A (3) (©)
Depreciation of property, plant ME - BENMRETE
and equipment 438 430
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FREEENE 2,606 2,778
Net foreign exchange loss SEHINE 1B = 320
Finance costs A% A 2,360 1,790
(Reversal of impairment losses)/impairment  EUWEE X v CREE BRI )~
losses for trade receivables REEE (2,704) 3,085
Impairment losses for other receivables E ith e WK IE 2 BB B 1B 438 -
Written off of trade receivables Jih £ FE L BR 3R 2,856 -
Allowance/(reversal of allowance) FEEE(BERE)
for inventories 187 (1,649)
Share of results of associates PaR[a) AN (64) (4,054)
Share of results of a joint venture DliE—EAEELEES (58) (10)
Gain on disposals of subsidiaries S BB A Rl R = (12,853)
Share-based payment expenses ARG BER A R 1,591 9,253
Operating loss before working capital changes 484 ¢ S8R & L k18 (7,305) (1,164)
(Increase)/decrease in inventories =FEOgm, SR (1,060) 1,222
Decrease/(increase) in trade receivables FEMEBR TR (38 0n) 41,530 (46,062)
Increase in other receivables, prepayments H il sRTE « B REE
and deposits bl (2,880) (3,469)
(Decrease)/increase in trade payables FERTBRER CRiA), /380 (44,756) 28,171
Increase in other payables, deposits received  Efh fENFIE - B UWET S K
and accrued expenses FERTE AN 3,897 408
Cash used in operations REARS (10,574) (20,894)
Interest on lease liabilities HEAENE (162) (106)
PRC Enterprise Income Tax (“EIT”) paid B REEMEH
([¥FmESR)) (98) (187)
Hong Kong Profits Tax paid BN EEFEH (176) -
Net cash used in operating activities WETEE TR S FE (11,010) (21,137)
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

mERTRER

For the year ended 31 December 2020
HE_Z-_TF+_A=+—HILFE

2020 2019
b S 52 —NEF
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
Hiat THET FHT
CASH FLOWS FROM RETHEESRE
INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Investment in a joint venture N—EEELEZRE = (5)
Purchases of property, plant and equipment B A% « KB R B (27) M
Proceeds from disposals of subsidiaries HEWB AR ZTERE 36(a) - 653
Interest received B U F B 3 3
Net cash (used in)/from investing activities WEES(FrA),/ 3R e 38 (24) 650
CASH FLOWS FROM METHRSHRE
FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from issue of convertible bonds BT RREFH 2 TS 518 - 20,000
Proceeds from placing of shares L& 5 Zﬁﬁ?%?k 13,417 8,949
Principal elements of lease payments HENR RS (2,650) (2,727)
Movements in balances with directors E@i%ﬁ%ﬁﬁ%ﬁ@j - (6,272)
Net cash from financing activities REEEMBHREFE 10,767 19,950
NET DECREASE IN CASH AND REeRESEEWEERD
CASH EQUIVALENTS (267) (537)
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes SNEERES) 2 FE 63 (23)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT R—A—HBHNEBEESREESZEEY
1 JANUARY 1,465 2,025
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT R+=—A=+—HBHRE
31 DECEMBER RESZEY 1,261 1,465
ANALYSIS OF CASH AND RERBEESEEYDF
CASH EQUIVALENTS
Bank and cash balances RITRIRD M5k 25 1,261 1,465
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Notes to the Financial Statements

PRSP

For the year ended 31 December 2020
HE-_Z-_TF+-_A=+—HIFE

1.

68

GENERAL INFORMATION

Millennium Pacific Group Holdings Limited (the “Company”) was
incorporated in the Cayman Islands as an exempt company with limited
liability under the Company Law, Cap 22 (Law 3 of 1961, as
consolidated and revised) of the Cayman Islands on 10 September
2013. The address of its registered office is Windward 3, Regatta Office
Park, P.O. Box 1350, Grand Cayman KY1-1108, Cayman Islands. The
address of its principal place of business is located at 4/F., Building C,
101 Kongwei Guangchang, No. 52 Gongye Nang Road, Xinhe
Community, Fuhai Street, Baoan District, Shenzhen, the People’s
Republic of China (the “PRC”). The principal place of business in Hong
Kong is located at Unit 5, 4/F., Energy Plaza, No. 92 Granville Road,
Tsim Sha Tsui East, Kowloon, Hong Kong. The Company’s shares are
listed on GEM of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Stock Exchange”) since 18 July 2014.

The Company is an investment holding company. The principal activities
of its subsidiaries are research and development, manufacture, sale of
electronic devices and provision of application software development
services.

BASIS OF PREPARATION

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
(“‘HKFRSs”), which in collective term includes all applicable Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRS”), Hong Kong Accounting
Standards (“HKASs”) and Interpretations issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (the “HKICPA”) and accounting
principles generally accepted in Hong Kong. These consolidated
financial statements also comply with the applicable disclosure
provisions of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on GEM of
the Stock Exchange (the “GEM Listing Rules”) and with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622).
Significant accounting policies adopted by the Group are discussed
below.

The HKICPA has issued certain new and revised HKFRSs that are first
effective or available for early adoption for the current accounting period
of the Group. Note 3 provides information on any changes in
accounting policies resulting from initial application of these
developments to the extent that they are relevant to the Group for the
current and prior accounting periods reflected in these consolidated
financial statements.

—REHR
EBRATFEEZERERAR(EAATRNIR_E—=
FANATARBRSHSRREER2E (—R—F
F=EE  KREEERIE) ERSHSEMKILA
—RERRBRAF - wMPSEEH Y AWindward 3,
Regatta Office Park, P.O. Box 1350, Grand Cayman
KY1-1108, Cayman lslands ° Zx/A &)= 2 & ¥ b B i
IR EARLMBE(THED RN TERRESEH
B AR T ERKES25 101 REESBCIR4E - M
REBIF E & E Bt AE B KR IDIE R NE
BEBRFEERPLIESE c RARZBRHNEZT
—MEL AT N\BRREEBES X ZMARR R ([ B
X)) GEM LT »

AABRBERRRF - AHBARMNEZERLH
RTE - REREEREE T ERLIRHERTIH
BRI

mAERE
ZEGAVBHRCRETEGAMAR(EEE
A DEMNEEN B RS ELN((BBHBER
EEA ] HEEEEMEERZEBMEREEL
((EBMBREER])  FEGHEN(EBEE
AN k2B LREBAREHRUGREH - ZFHKAH
BRRIG A ZPIGEME S LA ([GEM L
A ZERBEREIREBR AR (F622%) 2
WERTE - REBERMBNEESFTERN T XA °

ER SN GEB/MAE TH T REEITEEHBR
SHEA RAKEERT S5 B &R AR R R
W BRERZSEARERRNERNMERE RN
BESHRNEASHRRESRRNZFHEREM
BwE - BRERBNHES -
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Notes to the Financial Statements

P RSERARFEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020
HE-_ZT-_TF+-_A=+—HULFE

3.

ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED HKFRSs

(@)

Application of new and revised HKFRSs

The Group has applied the Amendments to Reference to the
Conceptual Framework in HKFRS Standards and the following
amendments to HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA for the first time,
which are mandatorily effective for the annual period beginning
on or after 1 January 2020 for the preparation of the consolidated
financial statements:

Amendments to HKAS 1 and
HKAS 8

Amendments to HKFRS 3

Amendments to HKFRS 9,
HKAS 39 and HKFRS 7

Definition of Material

Definition of a Business
Interest Rate Benchmark
Reform

Except as described below, the application of the Amendments
to References to the Conceptual Framework in HKFRS
Standards and the amendments to HKFRSs in the current year
had no material impact on the Group’s financial positions and
performance for the current and prior years and/or on the
disclosures set out in these consolidated financial statements.

Amendments to HKAS 1 and HKAS 8 Definition of Material

The amendments provide a new definition of material that states
“information is material if omitting, misstating or obscuring it
could reasonably be expected to influence decisions that the
primary users of general purpose financial statements make on
the basis of those financial statements, which provide financial
information about a specific reporting entity.” The amendments
also clarify that materiality depends on the nature or magnitude
of information, either individually or in combination with other
information, in the context of the financial statements taken as a
whole.

The application of the amendments had no impact on the
consolidated financial statements.

Millennium Pacific Group Holdings Limited / & $} & 2020
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Notes to the Financial Statements

PRSP

For the year ended 31 December 2020
HE-_Z-_TF+-_A=+—HIFE

3. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED HKFRSs
(continued)

(b)

70

New and revised HKFRSs in issue but not yet
effective

The Group has not early applied any new and revised HKFRSs
that have been issued but are not yet effective for the financial
year beginning 1 January 2020. These new and revised HKFRSs
include the following which may be relevant to the Group.

3. HEMHITREBITEBMBHREER (K)

(b) EEMEEREROFIRKETESR
Bt 3 3% 5 2
AEBETBREFRADEMENANR_Z-F
F—A— ARG Z W BFEE R ERRE &
RIETTEBMBREER - ZEREAREHRF
B2 5TE] BRI B A MBS EABEAT

=S
Effective for
accounting periods
beginning on or after
RTHBRHRZE
RN ETHBER
Amendments to HKFRS 9, HKAS 39, HKFRS 7, HKFRS B /A B i & L8| 95 - HB &t LR 1 January 2021
4 and HKFRS 16 Interest Rate Benchmark Reform F 305  BBUBRELENE TN - F —T-—F—HA—H
— Phase 2 B SR ERE 4 R BB SRS
AR 16 SRS E]
MERELENE — FE_RER
Amendments to HKFRS 3 Reference to the Conceptual &/ B #8534 X BI5 3RS 5T 1 January 2022
Framework B AEZRE 3| —ZT--F—HA—H
Amendments to HKAS 16 Property, plant and BB ERE 16 FMISETME 1 January 2022
equipment: proceeds before intended use WEREE AR ZAEHRE T _F—H—H
Amendments to HKAS 37 Onerous contracts — cost of ~ FBE&+XEL|E 37 5 AEE] 1 January 2022
fulfiling a contract BEEEH — BITEHIKA —E-__F—H—H
Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2018-2020 Cycle H_T—- \FE_Z_ZTFEBUBR 1 January 2022
HER B FE s —E-=F—HA—H
Amendments to HKAS 1 Classification of liabilities as BAE G ELNE 1 HMEET 1 January 2023
current or non-current BEIHEARESIERSH —ZT-=%—H—H
Amendments to HKFRS 16, COVID-19 related rent BB REERE 16 5EMIEE] - 1 June 2020
concessions H1 COVID-19 2R R & R —E-TFXA—H

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of what
the impact of these amendments and new standards is expected
to be in the period of initial application. So far it has concluded
that the adoption of them is unlikely to have a significant impact
on the consolidated financial statements.

REEERHAETERZ SIS RN ERIE 5 RE
R#MzEE - BE08 ARERBEAL
MEFTPRAI SRR MBRREEBAY
o,
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Notes to the Financial Statements

P RSERARFEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020
HE-_ZT-_TF+-_A=+—HULFE

4,

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
These consolidated financial statements have been prepared under the
historical cost convention.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with HKFRSs
requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates. It also requires
management to exercise its judgement in the process of applying the
Group’s accounting policies. The areas involving a higher degree of
judgement or complexity, or areas where assumptions and estimates
are significant to the consolidated financial statements are disclosed in
note 5.

Significant accounting policies applied in the preparation of these
consolidated financial statements are set out below.

(@) Consolidation
The consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries made up to 31
December. Subsidiaries are entities over which the Group has
control. The Group controls an entity when it is exposed, or has
rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the entity and
has the ability to affect those returns through its power over the
entity. The Group has power over an entity when the Group has
existing rights that give it the current ability to direct the relevant
activities, i.e. activities that significantly affect the entity’s returns.

When assessing control, the Group considers its potential voting
rights as well as potential voting rights held by other parties. A
potential voting right is considered only if the holder has the
practical ability to exercise that right.

Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on which control is
transferred to the Group. They are de-consolidated from the date
the control ceases.

The gain or loss on the disposal of a subsidiary that results in a
loss of control represents the difference between (i) the fair value
of the consideration of the sale plus the fair value of any
investment retained in that subsidiary and (ii) the Company’s
share of the net assets of that subsidiary plus any remaining
goodwill and any accumulated foreign currency translation
reserve relating to that subsidiary.

Intragroup transactions, balances and unrealised profits are
eliminated. Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the
transaction provides evidence of an impairment of the asset
transferred. Accounting policies of subsidiaries have been
changed where necessary to ensure consistency with the policies
adopted by the Group.

Millennium Pacific Group Holdings Limited / & $} & 2020
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Notes to the Financial Statements

PRSP

For the year ended 31 December 2020
HE-_Z-_TF+-_A=+—HIFE

4,

72

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(@)

(b)

Consolidation (continued)

Non-controlling interests represent the equity in subsidiaries not
attributable, directly or indirectly, to the Company. Non-
controlling interests are presented in the consolidated statement
of financial position and consolidated statement of changes in
equity within equity. Non-controlling interests are presented in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss and consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income as
an allocation of profit or loss and total comprehensive income for
the year between the non-controlling shareholders and owners of
the Company.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive
income are attributed to the owners of the Company and to the
non-controlling shareholders even if this results in the non-
controlling interests having a deficit balance.

Changes in the Company’s ownership interest in a subsidiary
that do not result in a loss of control are accounted for as equity
transactions (i.e. transactions with owners in their capacity as
owners). The carrying amounts of the controlling and non-
controlling interests are adjusted to reflect the changes in their
relative interests in the subsidiary. Any difference between the
amount by which the non-controlling interests are adjusted and
the fair value of the consideration paid or received is recognised
directly in equity and attributed to the owners of the Company.

In the Company’s statement of financial position, an investment
in a subsidiary is stated at cost less impairment loss, unless the
investment is classified as held for sale (or included in a disposal
group that is classified as held for sale).

Associates

Associates are entities over which the Group has significant
influence. Significant influence is the power to participate in the
financial and operating policy decisions of an entity but is not
control or joint control over those policies. The existence and
effect of potential voting rights that are currently exercisable or
convertible, including potential voting rights held by other entities,
are considered when assessing whether the Group has
significant influence. In assessing whether a potential voting right
contributes to significant influence, the holder’s intention and
financial ability to exercise or convert that right is not considered.

4.

TEERBEK(E)
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(b)
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P RSERARFEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020
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4,

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(b)

Associates (continued)

Investment in an associate is accounted for in the consolidated
financial statements by the equity method and is initially
recognised at cost. Identifiable assets and liabilities of the
associate in an acquisition are measured at their fair values at the
acquisition date. The excess of the cost of the investment over
the Group’s share of the net fair value of the associate’s
identifiable assets and liabilities is recorded as goodwill. The
goodwill is included in the carrying amount of the investment and
is tested for impairment together with the investment at the end
of each reporting period when there is objective evidence that
the investment is impaired. Any excess of the Group’s share of
the net fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities over the
cost of acquisition is recognised in consolidated profit or loss.

The Group assesses Whether there is an objective evidence that
the interest in an associate may be impaired. When any objective
evidence exists, the entire carrying amount of the investment
(including goodwill) is tested for impairment in accordance with
HKAS 36 as a single asset by comparing its recoverable amount
(higher of value in use and fair value less costs of disposal) with
its carrying amount. Any impairment loss recognised is not
allocated to any asset, including goodwill, that forms part of the
carrying amount of the investment. Any reversal of that
impairment is recognised in accordance with HKAS 36 to the
extent that the recoverable amount of the investment
subsequently increases.

The Group’s share of an associate’s post-acquisition profits or
losses and other comprehensive income is recognised in
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income. When the Group’s share of losses in an associate equals
or exceeds its interest in the associate (which includes any long-
term interests that, in substance, form part of the Group’s net
investment in the associate), the Group does not recognise
further losses, unless it has incurred obligations or made
payments on behalf of the associate. If the associate
subsequently reports profits, the Group resumes recognising its
share of those profits only after its share of the profits equals the
share of losses not recognised.

The gain or loss on the disposal of an associate that results in a
loss of significant influence represents the difference between (i)
the fair value of the consideration of the sale plus the fair value of
any investment retained in that associate and (i) the Group’s
entire carrying amount of that associate (including goodwill) and
any related accumulated foreign currency translation reserve. If
an investment in an associate becomes an investment in a joint
venture, the Group continues to apply the equity method and
does not re-measure the retained interest.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(b)

()

Associates (continued)

An unrealised profit on transactions between the Group and its
associate is eliminated to the extent of the Group’s interests in
the associate. Unrealised loss is also eliminated unless the
transaction provides evidence of an impairment of the asset
transferred. Accounting policies of associate has been changed
where necessary to ensure consistency with the policies adopted
by the Group.

Joint arrangements

A joint arrangement is an arrangement of which two or more
parties have joint control. Joint control is the contractually agreed
sharing of control of an arrangement, which exists only when
decisions about the relevant activities require the unanimous
consent of the parties sharing control. Relevant activities are
activities that significantly affect the returns of the arrangement.
When assessing joint control, the Group considers its potential
voting rights as well as potential voting rights held by other
parties. A potential voting right is considered only if the holder
has the practical ability to exercise that right.

A joint arrangement is either a joint operation or a joint venture. A
joint operation is a joint arrangement whereby the parties that
have joint control of the arrangement have rights to the assets,
and obligations for the liabilities, relating to the arrangement. A
joint venture is a joint arrangement whereby the parties that have
joint control of the arrangement have rights to the net assets of
the arrangement. The Group has assessed the type of each of its
joint arrangements and determined them to all be joint ventures.

Investment in a joint venture is accounted for in the consolidated
financial statements by the equity method and is initially
recognised at cost. Identifiable assets and liabilities of the joint
venture in an acquisition are measured at their fair values at the
acquisition date. The excess of the cost of the investment over
the Group’s share of the net fair value of the joint venture’s
identifiable assets and liabilities is recorded as goodwill, which is
included in the carrying amount of the investment. Any excess of
the Group’s share of the net fair value of the identifiable assets
and liabilities over the cost of acquisition is recognised in
consolidated profit or loss.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

()

Joint arrangements (continued)

The Group assesses whether there is an objective evidence that
the interest in a joint venture may be impaired. When any
objective evidence exists, the entire carrying amount of the
investment (including goodwill) is tested for impairment in
accordance with HKAS 36 as a single asset by comparing its
recoverable amount (higher of value in use and fair value less
costs of disposal) with its carrying amount. Any impairment loss
recognised is not allocated to any asset, including goodwill, that
forms part of the carrying amount of the investment. Any reversal
of that impairment loss is recognised in accordance with HKAS
36 to the extent that the recoverable amount of the investment
subsequently increases.

The Group’s share of a joint venture’s post-acquisition profits or
losses and other comprehensive income is recognised in
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income. When the Group’s share of losses in a joint venture
equals or exceeds its interest in the joint venture (which includes
any long-term interests that, in substance, form part of the
Group’s net investment in the joint venture), the Group does not
recognise further losses, unless it has incurred obligations or
made payments on behalf of the joint venture. If the joint venture
subsequently reports profits, the Group resumes recognising its
share of those profits only after its share of the profits equals the
share of losses not recognised.

The gain or loss on the disposal of a joint venture that results in a
loss of joint control represents the difference between (i) the fair
value of the consideration of the sale plus the fair value of any
investment retained in that joint venture and (i) the Group’s entire
carrying amount of that joint venture (including goodwill) and any
related accumulated foreign currency translation reserve. If an
investment in a joint venture becomes an investment in an
associate, the Group continues to apply the equity method and
does not remeasure the retained interest.

Unrealised profits on transactions between the Group and its
joint ventures are eliminated to the extent of the Group’s interests
in the joint ventures. Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless
the transaction provides evidence of an impairment of the asset
transferred. Accounting policies of joint ventures have been
changed where necessary to ensure consistency with the policies
adopted by the Group.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(d) Foreign currency translation

U

(i)

(i)

76

Functional and presentation currency

ltems included in the financial statements of each of the
Group’s entities are measured using the currency of the
primary economic environment in which the entity operates
(the “functional currency”). The consolidated financial
statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars (‘“HK$”),
which is the Company’s functional and presentation
currency.

Transactions and balances in each entity’s financial
statements

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated into the
functional currency on initial recognition using the
exchange rates prevailing on the transaction dates.
Monetary assets and liabilities in foreign currencies are
translated at the exchange rates at the end of each
reporting period. Gains and losses resulting from this
translation policy are recognised in profit or loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured at fair value in
foreign currencies are translated using the exchange rates
at the dates when the fair values are determined.

When a gain or loss on a non-monetary item is recognised
in other comprehensive income, any exchange component
of that gain or loss is recognised in other comprehensive
income. When a gain or loss on a non-monetary item is
recognised in profit or loss, any exchange component of
that gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss.

Translation on consolidation

The results and financial position of all the Group entities
that have a functional currency different from the
Company’s presentation currency are translated into the
Company’s presentation currency as follows:

- Assets and liabilities for each statement of financial
position presented are translated at the closing rate
at the date of that statement of financial position;

— Income and expenses are translated at average
exchange rates (unless this average is not a
reasonable approximation of the cumulative effect
of the rates prevailing on the transaction dates, in
which case income and expenses are translated at
the exchange rates on the transaction dates); and
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(C)

(€

Foreign currency translation (continued)
(i) Translation on consolidation (continued)
— All resulting exchange differences are recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated in
the foreign currency translation reserve.

On consolidation, exchange differences arising from the
translation of monetary items that form part of the net
investment in foreign entities and of borrowings are
recognised in the comprehensive income and
accumulated in the foreign currency translation reserve.
When a foreign operation is sold, such exchange
differences are reclassified to in the consolidated profit or
loss as part of the gain or loss on disposal.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the
acquisition of a foreign entity are treated as assets and
liabilities of the foreign entity and translated at the closing
rate.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are held for use in the production
or supply of goods or services, or for administrative purposes.
Property, plant and equipment are stated in the consolidated
statement of financial position at cost less accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses, if any.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or
recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is
probable that future economic benefits associated with the item
will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be measured
reliably. All other repairs and maintenance are recognised in the
profit or loss during the period in which they are incurred.

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment is calculated at
rates sufficient to write off their costs less their residual value over
the estimated useful lives on a straight-line basis. The principal
annual rates are as follows:
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(€

U]

Property, plant and equipment (continued)

The residual values, useful lives and depreciation method are
reviewed and adjusted, if appropriate, at the end of each
reporting period, with the effect of any changes in estimate
accounted for on a prospective basis.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected to
arise from the continued use of the asset. The gain or loss on
disposal of property, plant and equipment is the difference
between the net sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the
relevant asset, and is recognised in profit or loss in the year in
which the item is derecognised.

Leases

At inception of a contract, the Group assesses whether the
contract is, or contains, a lease. A contract is, or contains, a
lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an
identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration.
Control is conveyed where the customer has both the right to
direct the use of the identified asset and to obtain substantially all
of the economic benefits from that use.

The Group as a lessee

Where the contract contains lease component(s) and non-lease
component(s), the Group has elected not to separate non-lease
components and accounts for each lease component and any
associated non-lease components as a single lease component
for all leases.

At the lease commencement date, the Group recognises a right-
of-use asset and a lease liability, except for short-term leases
that have a lease term of 12 months or less and leases of low-
value assets, for the Group are primarily office equipment and
furniture. When the Group enters into a lease in respect of low-
value asset, the Group decides whether to capitalise the lease on
a lease-by-lease basis. The lease payments associated with
those leases which are not capitalised are recognised as an
expense on a systematic basis over the lease term.

Where the lease is capitalised, the lease liability is initially
recognised at the present value of the lease payments payable
over the lease term, discounted using the interest rate implicit in
the lease or, if that rate cannot be readily determined, using a
relevant incremental borrowing rate. After initial recognition, the
lease liability is measured at amortised cost and interest expense
is calculated using the effective interest method. Variable lease
payments that do not depend on an index or rate are not
included in the measurement of the lease liability and hence are
charged to profit or loss in the accounting period in which they
are incurred.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

U]

Leases (continued)

The Group as a lessee (continued)

The right-of-use asset recognised when a lease is capitalised is
initially measured at cost, which comprises the initial amount of
the lease liability plus any lease payments made at or before the
commencement date, and any initial direct costs incurred. Where
applicable, the cost of the right-of-use assets also includes an
estimate of costs to dismantle and remove the underlying asset
or to restore the underlying asset or the site on which it is
located, discounted to their present value, less any lease
incentives received. The right-of-use asset is subsequently stated
at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses.

Right-of-use assets in which the Group is reasonably certain to
obtain ownership of the underlying leased assets at the end of
the lease term are depreciated from commencement date to the
end of the useful life. Otherwise, right-of-use assets are
depreciated on a straight-line basis over the shorter of its
estimated useful life and the lease term.

Refundable rental deposits paid are accounted under HKFRS 9
and initially measured at fair value. Adjustments to fair value at
initial recognition are considered as additional lease payments
and included in the cost of right-of-use assets.

The lease liability is remeasured when there is a change in future
lease payments arising from a change in an index or rate, or
there is a change in the Group’s estimate of the amount
expected to be payable under a residual value guarantee, or
there is a change arising from the reassessment of whether the
Group will be reasonably certain to exercise a purchase,
extension or termination option. When the lease liability is
remeasured in this way, a corresponding adjustment is made to
the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset, or is recorded in
profit or loss if the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset has
been reduced to zero.

The lease liability is also remeasured when there is a change in
the scope of a lease or the consideration for a lease that is not
originally provided for in the lease contract (“Lease
Modification”) that is not accounted for as a separate lease. In
this case the lease liability is remeasured based on the revised
lease payments and lease term using a revised discount rate at
the effective date of the modification.

The Group as a lessor

When the Group acts as a lessor, it determines at lease inception
whether each lease is a finance lease or an operating lease. A
lease is classified as a finance lease if it transfers substantially all
the risks and rewards incidental to the ownership of an underlying
assets to the lessee. If this is not the case, the lease is classified
as an operating lease.

Millennium Pacific Group Holdings Limited / & $} & 2020

4.

EFREHBE (&)
M AE@E)
FEMIEBFRA ()

RIEEB MR HER R R REEVZIRRAR
AE - BRESAENTREEM EERKA
Hiok 2 ATV ERARE R - A REENE
AHFEERAR - EEABERAT - EREEE
FIRRAN TR B AR R B R AR R A SR IR AR R
BRSBTS R SRR - 3ZAK
RERBR = HEREW HREFAKRRNEER
= o EARE ERBRIE AR £ RAHTE MR
BR1RYIR

BAEENES LRSS EETERIERE
Eééﬁﬁﬁﬁé%ﬁﬁﬁﬁéééﬁﬁ = BRAERE
EEBRIEAPREA A FHARMHEHE
P - DR ERREEREREENEMGE
AEAFHRAEH(UREERE) NGHE
e -

ENAREHERSRIEEBMBRSE ERE
AR - WHFRDTERE - RYIFHER
QT EMNBERRE RBIMEEN K - AE
NERAREERA

ERRBEENKAX —HHI LM E
¥ REAKEEHRBERERRFRGTRRE

NWMERAE IAEMTEAEEEEAE
WHEEBITERE  EHESR DERERmES

2 - NS EIMHBRERE  BUHRER
SHETER 0 - (8 A AR (1 (ER
BB - A HEAEEENEAECDAET

Bl A3 Ao

ENEHREESRBEENRTTERTE
WEEREE A ([HEBR]) - BEXRIER
BEBENEEARE  AIMEHHEEREETE
MEtE - EWERT - HEAEREBEETH
HENFHMEEHR - ERLETNREE
ENEMBENTE ©

AEF LN
EREEERHEAR - REBNEERKE
ErTeEHEERAHEERKENES - Wil
E AR E AR Z B kg ke
wEmERRIT A AIDEARERE - &
A HEDBEAKEES -

79



Notes to the Financial Statements

PRSP

For the year ended 31 December 2020
HE-_Z-_TF+-_A=+—HIFE

4,

80

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(@)

(h)

Intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired are measured on initial recognition at
cost. The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed to be
whether finite or indefinite. Intangible assets with finite lives are
subsequently amortised over the useful economic life and
assessed for impairment whenever there is an indication that the
intangible asset may be impaired. The amortisation period and
the amortisation method for an intangible asset with a finite useful
life are reviewed at least at each financial year end.

Cost of acquired application software are stated at cost less any
impairment losses and are amortised using the straight-line basis
over the commercial lives of the underlying software not
exceeding five years, commencing from the date when the
products are put into commercial production.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Costs is determined using the weighted average basis and
comprise all costs of purchase and, where applicable, cost of
conversion and other costs that have been incurred in bringing
the inventories to their present location and condition. Net
realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary
course of business, less the estimated costs of completion and
the estimated costs necessary to make the sale. When
inventories are sold, the carrying amount of those inventories is
recognised as an expense in the period in which the related
revenue is recognised. The amount of any write-down of
inventories to net realisable value and all losses of inventories are
recognised in the profit or loss in the period of write-down or loss
occurs. The amount of any reversal of any write-down of
inventories recognised as an increment in the amount of
inventories and recognised in the profit or loss in the period in
which the reversal occurs.

Recognition and derecognition of financial
instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position when the Group
entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instrument.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair
value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities
(other than financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss (“FVTPL”)) are added to or deducted from
the fair value of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as
appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction costs directly
attributable to the acquisition of financial assets or financial
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are recognised
immediately in profit or loss.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

V)

0

Recognition and derecognition of financial
instruments (continued)

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or
when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership of the asset to another entity. If the
Group neither transfers nor retains substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership and continues to control the transferred
asset, the Group recognises its retained interest in the asset and
an associated liability for amounts it may have to pay. If the
Group retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership
of a transferred financial asset, the Group continues to recognise
the financial asset and also recognises a collateralised borrowing
for the proceeds received.

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only when,
the Group’s obligations are discharged, cancelled or have
expired. The difference between the carrying amount of the
financial liability derecognised and the consideration paid and
payable, including any non-cash assets transferred or liabilities
assumed, is recognised in profit or loss.

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount
reported in the balance sheet when there is a legally enforceable
right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention
to settle on a net basis or realise the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously. The legally enforceable right must not be
contingent on future events and must be enforceable in the
normal course of business and in the event of default, insolvency
or bankruptcy of the company or the counterparty.

Financial assets

All regular way purchases or sales of financial assets are
recognised and derecognised on a trade date basis. Regular way
purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that
require delivery of assets within the time frame established by
regulation or convention in the marketplace. All recognised
financial assets are measured subsequently in their entirety at
either amortised cost or fair value, depending on the classification
of the financial assets.

Debt investments
Debt investments held by the Group are classified into one of the
following measurement categories:

- amortised cost, if the investment is held for the collection
of contractual cash flows which represent solely payments
of principal and interest. Interest income from the
investment is calculated using the effective interest
method.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

0

(k)

Financial assets (continued)

Debt investments (continued)

— Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive
income (“FVTOCI”) — recycling, if the contractual cash
flows of the investment comprise solely payments of
principal and interest and the investment is held within a
business model whose objective is achieved by both the
collection of contractual cash flows and sale. Changes in
fair value are recognised in other comprehensive income,
except for the recognition in profit or loss of expected
credit losses (“ECL”), interest income (calculated using the
effective interest method) and foreign exchange gains and
losses. When the investment is derecognised, the amount
accumulated in other comprehensive income is recycled
from equity to profit or loss.

- FVTPL if the investment does not meet the criteria for
being measured at amortised cost or FVTOCI (recycling).
Changes in the fair value of the investment (including
interest) are recognised in profit or loss.

Equity investments

An investment in equity securities is classified as FVTPL unless
the equity investment is not held for trading purposes and on
initial recognition of the investment the Group makes an election
to designate the investment at FVTOCI (non-recycling) such that
subsequent changes in fair value are recognised in other
comprehensive income. Such elections are made on an
instrument-by-instrument basis, but may only be made if the
investment meets the definition of equity from the issuer’s
perspective. Where such an election is made, the amount
accumulated in other comprehensive income remains in the fair
value reserve (non-recycling) until the investment is disposed of.
At the time of disposal, the amount accumulated in the fair value
reserve (non-recycling) is transferred to retained earnings. It is not
recycled through profit or loss. Dividends from an investment in
equity securities, irrespective of whether classified as at FVTPL or
FVTOCI, are recognised in profit or loss as other income.

Trade and other receivables

A receivable is recognised when the Group has an unconditional
right to receive consideration. A right to receive consideration is
unconditional if only the passage of time is required before
payment of that consideration is due. If revenue has been
recognised before the group has an unconditional right to receive
consideration, the amount is presented as a contract asset.

Receivables are stated at amortised cost using the effective
interest method less allowance for credit losses.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

V)

(m)

(n)

()

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and on hand,
demand deposits with banks and other financial institutions, and
short-term, highly liquid investments that are readily convertible
into known amounts of cash and which are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value, having been within three
months of maturity at acquisition. Bank overdrafts that are
repayable on demand and form an integral part of the Group’s
cash management are also included as a component of cash
and cash equivalents for the purpose of the consolidated
statement of cash flow. Cash and cash equivalents are assessed
for ECL.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Financial liabilities and equity instruments are classified according
to the substance of the contractual arrangements entered into
and the definitions of a financial liability and an equity instrument
under HKFRSs. An equity instrument is any contract that
evidences a residual interest in the assets of the Group after
deducting all of its liabilities. The accounting policies adopted for
specific financial liabilities and equity instruments are set out
below.

Convertible bonds

Convertible bonds which entitle the holder to convert the loans
into a fixed number of equity instruments at a fixed conversion
price are regarded as compound instruments consisting of a
liability and an equity component. At the date of issue, the fair
value of the liability component is estimated using the prevailing
market interest rate for similar non-convertible debt. The
difference between the proceeds of issue of the convertible loans
and the fair value assigned to the liability component,
representing the embedded option for the holder to convert the
loans into equity of the Group, is included in equity as convertible
bonds reserve. The liability component is carried as a liability at
amortised cost using the effective interest method until
extinguished on conversion or redemption.

Transaction costs are apportioned between the liability and
equity components of the convertible bonds based on their
relative carrying amounts at the date of issue. The portion related
to the equity component is charged directly to equity.

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are stated initially at their fair value and
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest method unless the effect of discounting would be
immaterial, in which case they are stated at cost.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(P)

(@

U]

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidence a residual
interest in the assets of an entity after deducting all of its liabilities.
Equity instruments issued by the Company are recorded at the
proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised when control over a product or service is
transferred to the customer, at the amount of promised
consideration to which the Group is expected to be entitled,
excluding those amounts collected on behalf of third parties.
Revenue excludes value added tax or other sales taxes and is
after deduction of any trade discounts.

Revenue from the sale of manufactured products and trading of
electronic accessories is recognised when control of the goods
has transferred, being when the goods have been shipped to the
buyer’s specific location (delivery). Following delivery, the buyer
has full discretion over the manner of distribution and price to sell
the goods, has the primary responsibility when on selling the
goods and bears the risks of obsolescence and loss in relation to
the goods. A receivable is recognised by the Group when the
goods are delivered to the buyer as this represents the point in
time at which the right to consideration becomes unconditional,
as only the passage of time is required before payment is due.

Revenue from provision of application software services is
recognised based on the stage of completion of the contract.
Payment for provision of application software services is not due
from the customer until the relevant services are complete and
therefore a contract asset is recognised over the period in which
the services are performed representing the entity’s right to
consideration for the services performed to date.

Interest income is recognised as it accrues using the effective
interest method. For financial assets measured at amortised cost
or FVTOCI (recycling) that are not credit-impaired, the effective
interest rate is applied to the gross carrying amount of the asset.
For credit impaired financial assets, the effective interest rate is
applied to the amortised cost (i.e. gross carrying amount net of
loss allowance) of the asset.

Employee benefits

(i) Employee leave entitlements.
Employee entitlements to annual leave and long service
leave are recognised when they accrue to employees. A
provision is made for the estimated liability for annual leave
and long service leave as a result of services rendered by
employees up to the end of the reporting period.

Employee entitlements to sick leave and maternity leave
are not recognised until the time of leave.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

U]

()

(t)

(u)

Employee benefits (continued)

(ii) Pension obligations
The Group contributes to defined contribution retirement
schemes which are available to all employees.
Contributions to the schemes by the Group and
employees are calculated as a percentage of employees’
basic salaries. The retirement benefit scheme cost
charged to profit or loss represents contributions payable
by the Group to the funds.

(ii) Termination benefits
Termination benefits are recognised at the earlier of the
dates when the Group can no longer withdraw the offer of
those benefits and when the Group recognises
restructuring costs and involves the payment of
termination benefits.

Share-based payments

The Group issues equity-settled share-based payments to
certain directors and employees. Equity-settled share-based
payments are measured at the fair value (excluding the effect of
non-market based vesting conditions) of the equity instruments
at the date of grant. The fair value determined at the grant date
of the equity-settled share-based payments is expensed on a
straight-line basis over the vesting period, based on the Group’s
estimate of shares that will eventually vest and adjusted for the
effect of non-market based vesting conditions.

Borrowing costs
Borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the period in
which they are incurred.

Government grants

A government grant is recognised when there is reasonable
assurance that the Group will comply with the conditions
attaching to it and that the grant will be received.

Government grants that become receivable as compensation for
expenses or losses already incurred or for the purpose of giving
immediate financial support to the Group with no future related
costs are recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they
become receivable.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

v)

Taxation
Income tax represents the sum of the current tax and deferred
tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year.
Taxable profit differs from profit recognised in profit or loss
because it excludes items of income or expense that are taxable
or deductible in other years and it further excludes items that are
never taxable or deductible. The Group’s liability for current tax is
calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on differences between the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities in the consolidated financial
statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the
computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally
recognised for all taxable temporary differences and deferred tax
assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that
taxable profits will be available against which deductible
temporary differences, unused tax losses or unused tax credits
can be utilised. Such assets and liabilities are not recognised if
the temporary difference arises from goodwill or from the initial
recognition (other than in a business combination) of other assets
and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit
nor the accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences arising on investments in subsidiaries, associates and
interests in joint arrangements, except where the Group is able to
control the reversal of the temporary difference and it is probable
that the temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable
future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the
end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is
no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available
to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are expected to
apply in the period when the liability is settled or the asset is
realised, based on tax rates that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.
Deferred tax is recognised in profit or loss, except when it relates
to items recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in
equity, in which case the deferred tax is also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity.

The measurement of deferred tax assets and liabilities reflects
the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in
which the Group expects, at the end of the reporting period, to
recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 4. FESTTBEK (&)

(v) Taxation (continued) (v) HE(HE)
For the purposes of measuring deferred tax for leasing M EAEEMAEAEEEREHEERE
transactions in which the Group recognises the right-of-use NWHEERXSMBELERENS  AEBEAET
assets and the related lease liabilities, the Group first determines BIEMREEHEENERAEEESHERE -

whether the tax deductions are attributable to the right-of-use
assets or the lease liabilities.

For leasing transactions in which the tax deductions are HRBHRBEREEABENHERZSME
attributable to the lease liabilities, the Group applies HKAS 12 AEBBEASGTENFE12RRED AIER
requirements to right-of-use assets and lease liabilities separately. NEREEERHERE FHRCAREER
Temporary differences relating to right-of-use assets and lease HEBENERMERE  ARERYS AR
liabilities are not recognised at initial recognition and over the % WAERVTHERARBEEHNER -

lease terms due to application of the initial recognition exemption.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally B AR R BIA TR & A AT 1R & A=
enforceable right to set off current tax assets against current tax BNEARR IR B (B 8 I 2 1 S B A — T s i R
liabilities and when they relate to income taxes levied by the W TSR AR AE BRI FEEEFER
same taxation authority and the Group intends to settle its AERIBEAER BER  EEHBEEEREE
current tax assets and liabilities on a net basis. 8 o
(w) Related parties (w) PBAEES
A related party is a person or entity that is related to the Group. PR IR AR E A A L ERE -
(A) A person or a close member of that person’s family is A HEBIATAL  BIRZATSETRER
related to the Group if that person: SE B
(i) has control or joint control over the Group; i) AIESI Sk AR RIS E
(i) has significant influence over the Group; or (ii) HEAEEEERTLEN 3k
(i) is a member of the key management personnel of iy RARAXARRZHFRFHNE
the Company or of a parent of the Company. TERBEKE -
(B)  An entity is related to the Group if any of the following B) WA THMEMGRMS - BIZERERE
conditions applies: it
(i) The entity and the Company are members of the i) ZEBEAAREER—SEH
same group (which means that each parent, BRERR(BIERRAAE - WEA
subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related to the AIRARMBRRKILEE
others). Bt ) o
(i) One entity is an associate or joint venture of the (ii) RERBES BRENBEAFNK
other entity (or an associate or joint venture of a AERR(HE—EBRETK
member of a group of which the other entity is a BRARIMEERKE QR =
member). NAFEERA]) °
(i) Both entities are joint ventures of the same third iy MREBHURR—F=FHEE
party. NS
(iv)  One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the vy XEBEE=-FTEBENSGER
other entity is an associate of the third entity. Al-ME—ERBARZE=FE
ElolirdawNCI
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(w)

()

Related parties (continued)
(B)  An entity is related to the Group if any of the following
conditions applies: (continued)

v) The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the
benefit of employees of either the Group or an entity
related to the Group. If the Group is itself such a
plan, the sponsoring employers are also related to
the Group.

(vi)  The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (A).

(vi) A person identified in (A)(i) has significant influence
over the entity or is a member of the key
management personnel of the entity (or of a parent
of the entity).

(viii) ~ The entity, or any member of a group which it is a
part, provides key management personnel services
to the Company or to a parent of the Company.

Impairment of non-financial assets
Intangible assets that have an indefinite useful life or that are not
yet available for use are reviewed for impairment annually and
whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate the
carrying amount may not be recoverable.

The carrying amounts of non-financial assets are reviewed at
each reporting date for indications of impairment and where an
asset is impaired, it is written down as an expense through the
consolidated statement of profit or loss to its estimated
recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is determined for
an individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash
inflows that are largely independent of those from other assets or
groups of assets. If this is the case, recoverable amount is
determined for the cash-generating unit to which the asset
belongs. Recoverable amount is the higher of value in use and
the fair value less costs of disposal of the individual asset or the
cash-generating unit.

Value in use is the present value of the estimated future cash
flows of the asset/cash-generating unit. Present values are
computed using pre-tax discount rates that reflect the time value
of money and the risks specific to the asset/cash-generating unit
whose impairment is being measured.

Impairment losses for cash-generating units are allocated first
against the goodwill of the unit and then pro rata amongst the
other assets of the cash-generating unit. Subsequent increases
in the recoverable amount caused by changes in estimates are
credited to profit or loss to the extent that they reverse the
impairment.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

v)

Impairment of financial assets

The Group recognises a loss allowance for ECL on trade
receivables. The amount of ECL is updated at each reporting
date to reflect changes in credit risk since initial recognition of the
respective financial instrument.

The Group always recognises lifetime ECL for trade receivables.
The ECL on these financial assets are estimated using a provision
matrix based on the Group’s historical credit loss experience,
adjusted for factors that are specific to the debtors, general
economic conditions and an assessment of both the current as
well as the forecast direction of conditions at the reporting date,
including time value of money where appropriate.

For all other financial instruments, the Group recognises lifetime
ECL when there has been a significant increase in credit risk
since initial recognition. However, if the credit risk on the financial
instrument has not increased significantly since initial recognition,
the Group measures the loss allowance for that financial
instrument at an amount equal to 12-month ECL.

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result from all possible
default events over the expected life of a financial instrument. In
contrast, 12-month ECL represents the portion of lifetime ECL
that is expected to result from default events on a financial
instrument that are possible within 12 months after the reporting
date.

Significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk on a financial instrument has
increased significantly since initial recognition, the Group
compares the risk of a default occurring on the financial
instrument at the reporting date with the risk of a default
occurring on the financial instrument at the date of initial
recognition. In making this assessment, the Group considers
both quantitative and qualitative information that is reasonable
and supportable, including historical experience and forward-
looking information that is available without undue cost or effort.
Forward-looking information considered includes the future
prospects of the industries in which the Group’s debtors operate,
obtained from economic expert reports, financial analysts,
governmental bodies, relevant think-tanks and other similar
organisations, as well as consideration of various external
sources of actual and forecast economic information that relate
to the Group’s core operations.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

v)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

Significant increase in credit risk (continued)

In particular, the following information is taken into account when
assessing whether credit risk has increased significantly since
initial recognition:

o an actual or expected significant deterioration in the
financial instrument’s external (if available) or internal credit
rating;

. significant deterioration in external market indicators of

credit risk for a particular financial instrument;

o existing or forecast adverse changes in business, financial
or economic conditions that are expected to cause a
significant decrease in the debtor’s ability to meet its debt
obligations;

o an actual or expected significant deterioration in the
operating results of the debtor;

o significant increases in credit risk on other financial
instruments of the same debtor; or

o an actual or expected significant adverse change in the
regulatory, economic, or technological environment of the
debtor that results in a significant decrease in the debtor’s
ability to meet its debt obligations.

Irrespective of the outcome of the above assessment, the Group
presumes that the credit risk on a financial asset has increased
significantly since initial recognition when contractual payments
are more than 30 days past due, unless the Group has
reasonable and supportable information that demonstrates
otherwise.

Despite the foregoing, the Group assumes that the credit risk on
a financial instrument has not increased significantly since initial
recognition if the financial instrument is determined to have low
credit risk at the reporting date. A financial instrument is
determined to have low credit risk if:

(i) The financial instrument has a low risk of default,

(ii) The debtor has a strong capacity to meet its contractual
cash flow obligations in the near term, and

(iii) Adverse changes in economic and business conditions in
the longer term may, but will not necessarily, reduce the
ability of the borrower to fulfil its contractual cash flow
obligations.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

Significant increase in credit risk (continued)

The Group considers a financial asset to have low credit risk
when the asset has external credit rating of “investment grade” in
accordance with the globally understood definition or if an
external rating is not available, the asset has an internal rating of
“performing”. Performing means that the counterparty has a
strong financial position and there is no past due amounts.

The Group regularly monitors the effectiveness of the criteria
used to identify whether there has been a significant increase in
credit risk and revises them as appropriate to ensure that the
criteria are capable of identifying significant increase in credit risk
before the amount becomes past due.

Definition of default

The Group considers the following as constituting an event of
default for internal credit risk management purposes as historical
experience indicates that receivables that meet either of the
following criteria are generally not recoverable.

o when there is a breach of financial covenants by the
counterparty; or

. information developed internally or obtained from external
sources indicates that the debtor is unlikely to pay its
creditors, including the Group, in full (without taking into
account any collaterals held by the Group).

Irrespective of the above analysis, the Group considers that
default has occurred when a financial asset is more than 90 days
past due unless the Group has reasonable and supportable
information to demonstrate that a more lagging default criterion
is more appropriate.

Credit-impaired financial assets

A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or more events that
have a detrimental impact on the estimated future cash flows of
that financial asset have occurred. Evidence that a financial asset
is credit-impaired includes observable data about the following

events:

. significant financial difficulty of the issuer or the
counterparty;

o a breach of contract, such as a default or past due event;
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

v)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

Credit-impaired financial assets (continued)

. the lender(s) of the counterparty, for economic or
contractual reasons relating to the counterparty’s financial
difficulty, having granted to the counterparty a
concession(s) that the lender(s) would not otherwise
consider;

o it is becoming probable that the counterparty will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganization; or

o The disappearance of an active market for that financial
asset because of financial difficulties.

Write-off policy

The Group writes off a financial asset when there is information
indicating that the debtor is in severe financial difficulty and there
is no realistic prospect of recovery, including when the debtor
has been placed under liquidation or has entered into bankruptcy
proceedings, or in the case of trade receivables, when the
amounts are over two years past due, whichever occurs sooner.
Financial assets written off may still be subject to enforcement
activities under the Group’s recovery procedures, taking into
account legal advice where appropriate. Any recoveries made
are recognised in profit or loss.

Measurement and recognition of ECL

The measurement of ECL is a function of the probability of
default, loss given default (i.e. the magnitude of the loss if there is
a default) and the exposure at default. The assessment of the
probability of default and loss given default is based on historical
data adjusted by forward-looking information as described
above. As for the exposure at default, for financial assets, this is
represented by the assets’ gross carrying amount at the
reporting date; for financial guarantee contracts, the exposure
includes the amount drawn down as at the reporting date,
together with any additional amounts expected to be drawn
down in the future by default date determined based on historical
trend, the Group’s understanding of the specific future financing
needs of the debtors, and other relevant forward-looking
information.

For financial assets, the expected credit loss is estimated as the
difference between all contractual cash flows that are due to the
Group in accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that
the Group expects to receive, discounted at the original effective
interest rate. For a lease receivable, the cash flows used for
determining the expected credit losses is consistent with the
cash flows used in measuring the lease receivable in accordance
with HKFRS 16.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

)

@

(aa)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)
Measurement and recognition of ECL (continued)

If the Group has measured the loss allowance for a financial
instrument at an amount equal to lifetime ECL in the previous
reporting period, but determines at the current reporting date
that the conditions for lifetime ECL are no longer met, the Group
measures the loss allowance at an amount equal to 12-month
ECL at the current reporting date, except for assets for which
simplified approach was used.

The Group recognises an impairment gain or loss in profit or loss
for all financial instruments with a corresponding adjustment to
their carrying amount through a loss allowance account, except
for investments in debt instruments that are measured at
FVTOCI, for which the loss allowance is recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in the investment
revaluation reserve, and does not reduce the carrying amount of
the financial asset in the statement of financial position.

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain timing or
amount when the Group has a present legal or constructive
obligation arising as a result of a past event, it is probable that an
outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle the
obligation and a reliable estimate can be made. Where the time
value of money is material, provisions are stated at the present
value of the expenditures expected to settle the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic benefits will
be required, or the amount cannot be estimated reliably, the
obligation is disclosed as a contingent liability, unless the
probability of outflow is remote. Possible obligations, whose
existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence or non-
occurrence of one or more future events are also disclosed as
contingent liabilities unless the probability of outflow is remote.

Events after the reporting period

Events after the reporting period that provide additional
information about the Group’s position at the end of the reporting
period or those that indicate the going concern assumption is not
appropriate are adjusting events and are reflected in the
consolidated financial statements. Events after the reporting
period that are not adjusting events are disclosed in the notes to
the consolidated financial statements when material.
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5. CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND KEY ESTIMATES
Critical judgements in applying accounting policies
In the process of applying the accounting policies, the directors have
made the following judgements that have the most significant effect on
the amounts recognised in the financial statements (apart from those
involving estimations, which are dealt with below).

(@  Significant increase in credit risk

ECL are measured as an allowance equal to 12-month ECL for
stage 1 assets, or lifetime ECL for stage 2 or stage 3 assets. An
asset moves to stage 2 when its credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition. HKFRS 9 does not define
what constitutes a significant increase in credit risk. In assessing
whether the credit risk of an asset has significantly increased the
Group takes into account qualitative and quantitative reasonable
and supportable forward-looking information.

(b)  Joint control assessment
The Group holds 51% of the voting rights of its joint venture,
Millennium Pacific Electronics Limited (“MPEL”). The directors
have determined that the Group has joint control over MPEL as
under the contractual agreement, it appears that unanimous
consent is required from all parties to the agreement for all
relevant activities.

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future, and other key sources of
estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting period, that have a
significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts
of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are discussed
below.

(@ Allowance for slow-moving inventories

Allowance for slow-moving inventories is made based on the
ageing and estimated net realisable value of inventories. The
assessment of the allowance amount involves judgement and
estimates. Where the actual outcome in future is different from
the original estimate, such difference will impact the carrying
value of inventories and allowance charge/write-back in the
period in which such estimate has been changed.

During the year, allowance of inventories of approximately

HK$187,000 was charged to profit or loss (2019: reversal of
allowance for inventories of approximately HK$1,649,000).
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CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND KEY ESTIMATES
(continued)
Key sources of estimation uncertainty (continued)

(®)

©

(@)

Income taxes

The Group is subject to Hong Kong Profits Tax and PRC EIT.
Significant estimates are required in determining the provision for
income taxes. There are many transactions and calculations for
which the ultimate tax determination is uncertain during the
ordinary course of business. Where the final tax outcome of
these matters is different from the amounts that were initially
recorded, such differences will impact the income tax and
deferred tax provisions in the period in which such determination
is made.

No income tax (2019: HK$2,000) was charged to profit or loss
based on the estimated assessable profits during the year.

Impairment losses for trade and other receivables

The management of the Group estimates the amount of
impairment loss for ECL on trade and other receivables based on
the credit risk of trade and other receivables. The amount of the
impairment loss based on ECL model is measured as the
difference between all contractual cash flows that are due to the
Group in accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that
the Group expects to receive, discounted at the effective interest
rate determined at initial recognition. Where the future cash flows
are less than expected, or being revised downward due to
changes in facts and circumstances, a material impairment loss
may arise.

As at 31 December 2020, the carrying amount of trade
receivables is approximately HK$24,301,000 (2019:
HK$65,940,000), being net of reversal of allowance for doubtful
debts of approximately HK$2,704,000 (2019: net of allowance
for doubtful debts of approximately HK$3,085,000).

As at 31 December 2020, the carrying amount of other
receivables and deposits is approximately HK$15,936,000 (2019:
HK$10,769,000), being net of allowance for doubtful debts of
approximately HK$438,000 (2019: Nil).

Impairment of investments in associates

The Group’s management determines at each reporting date
whether there is any objective evidence that the investments in
associates are impaired. If this is the case, the Group calculates
the amount of impairment of the associates and its carrying value
and recognises the amount adjacent to “share of losses of
associates” and “impairment losses of investments in associates”
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income.
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CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND KEY ESTIMATES
(continued)
Key sources of estimation uncertainty (continued)

(@)

@©

Impairment of investments in associates (continued)

As at 31 December 2020, the carrying amount of investments in
associates is approximately HK$31,892,000 (2019:
HK$30,379,000) which includes goodwill of approximately
HK$7,963,000 (2019: HK$7,963,000).

Impairment of property, plant and equipment and right-of-use
assets

Property, plant and equipment and right-of-use assets are stated
at costs less accumulated depreciation and impairment, if any. In
determining whether an asset is impaired, the Group has to
exercise judgement and make estimation, particularly in
assessing: (1) whether an event has occurred or any indicators
that may affect the asset value; (2) whether the carrying value of
an asset can be supported by the recoverable amount, in the
case of value in use, the net present value of future cash flows
which are estimated based upon the continued use of the asset;
and (3) the appropriate key assumptions to be applied in
estimating the recoverable amounts including cash flow
projections and an appropriate discount rate. When it is not
possible to estimate the recoverable amount of an individual
asset (including right-of-use assets), the Group estimates the
recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to which the
assets belongs. Changing the assumptions and estimates,
including the discount rates or the growth rate in the cash flow
projections, could materially affect the net present value used in
the impairment test.

The carrying amounts of property, plant and equipment and
right-of-use assets as at 31 December 2020 were approximately
HK$527,000 (2019: HK$906,000) and HK$3,224,000 (2019:
HK$779,000) respectively.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: foreign

currency risk, credit risk, interest rate risk and liquidity risk. The Group’s

overall risk management programme focuses on the unpredictability of

financial markets and seeks to minimise potential adverse effects on the

Group'’s financial performance.

5. EBERAEREFEME (H)

AT REENEERR (HF)

@  REBEREZREZHE(E)
R-ZE_ZF+-_A=+—0 REEa25%
B 7 BRE{E4 531,892,000 (=T —h4F -
30,379,000/ 7T,) + H A BIEEEL) 47,963,000
BIL(ZE—NF : 7,963,000/87T) ©

e X BERIEAREHELTEZHE

ME - BB MR R E BB ERK AR R
SHTEMREIIR (INE) - REEEE~RTR
B - REBAETEAE RELGE - LEF
ZR G ()REBLENA AT RERALE
FEREEBENEMF QEEMREERSD
VAGE PR (BB (BURIE R A (& E R ET AR IR
RenE8REFR)NAIKESEXE &
@At E S R TR EE EE/R
BRERSRETEN LEE R X © WEEAG
EREENAIKESHE (BREREEE) K
SEeRAREEMBRA S ELEAMATKE
S MRRRGFELEH(BEMBR R
RAEREFABERE) - ATaL 2 LRER M
RZFREELEATE -

ME - BERSEAREAEEEN " =%
FHZA=+—RZEEAED 4 A527,000
HBL(ZZF— % 906,000 7T) & 3,224,000
BIL(ZE—NF 1 779,00077T) °

6. HXEKRER
AEENEHEDALSESBRR | SNERK - 12
BER  NEEAREADHESAR - AEEMEEAR
BEHATINSRIIBO R EAM RS BER
DA E BB SR RNBIET R E -

Millennium Pacific Group Holdings Limited / Annual Report 2020



Notes to the Financial Statements

P RSERARFEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020
HE-_ZT-_TF+-_A=+—HULFE

6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

(@)

(b)

Foreign currency risk

The functional currency of the Group’s entities are principally
denominated in either HK$ and Renminbi (‘RMB”). The Group
has certain exposure to foreign currency risk as some of its
business transactions, assets and liabilities are denominated in
currencies other than its functional currency such as United
States dollars (“US$”). The Group currently does not have a
foreign currency hedging policy in respect of foreign currency
transactions, assets and liabilities. The Group will monitor its
foreign currency exposure closely and will consider hedging
significant foreign currency exposure should the need arise.

Set out below the sensitivity analysis the Group’s foreign
currency risk.

B EREE (F)

(a)

S EL R
AEBEERODEERIZUBTRARKE
(TAR¥DEHE - AEEEERE TINERR -
TIHREETEBRS  BEMBBEUAKE
R B AN EB (=T ([E ) FHE -
REEBFERINER S - BEREEHIES
BEIPHER - ARER ST EEEINER R
RanaRmEREEETERINERE

TREFIANEE 2 INERBRGURE DT o

(Decrease)/
Functional increase in
currency consolidated
strengthened/ profit/(loss)
(weakened) by after tax
RERBE
IhEeE W wF (EE)
FE (B 1) (B2, /%
HK$’000
FTHET
Year ended 31 December 2020 B8z—F-_FEF+=-A=+—A
EEE 5%/(5%) (544)/544ct) i)
Year ended 31 December 2019 HE-_T-NF+=ZA=+—8
IEFE 5%/(5%)  (207)/207 Mot (i)

Note: This is mainly a result of foreign exchange gain/(loss) on bank
deposits, trade and other receivables, trade and other payables
denominated in US$.

Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that a counterparty will not meet its
obligations under a financial instrument or customer contract,
leading to a financial loss. The Company is exposed to credit risk
from its operating activities (primarily trade receivables) and from
its financing activities, including deposits with banks and financial
institutions, foreign exchange transactions and other financial
instruments. The Company’s exposure to credit risk arising from
cash and cash equivalents is limited because the counterparties
are banks and financial institutions with high credit-rating
assigned by international credit-rating agencies, for which the
Company considers to have low credit risk.
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6.

98

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

(b)

Credit risk (continued)

Trade receivables

The Group has significant concentrations of credit risk as 71%
(2019: 67%) of the Group’s trade receivables were due from one
(2019: one) customer. The directors of the Company are of the
opinion that the credit risk exposure in relation to this customer is
not significant as this customer had sound financial position for
whom there was no recent history of default. In addition, the
Group has policies in place to ensure that sales are made to
customers with an appropriate credit history.

Customer credit risk is managed by each business unit subject
to the Group’s established policy, procedures and control
relating to customer credit risk management. Individual credit
evaluations are performed on all customers requiring credit over
a certain amount. These evaluations focus on the customer’s
past history of making payments when due and current ability to
pay, and take into account information specific to the customer
as well as pertaining to the economic environment in which the
customer operates. Trade receivable are due within 60 to 90
days from the date of billing. Debtors with balances that are more
than 1 month past due are requested to settle all outstanding
balances before any further credit is granted. Normally, the
Group does not obtain collateral from customers.

The Group measures loss allowances for trade receivable at an
amount equal to lifetime ECL, which is calculated using a
provision matrix. As the Group’s historical credit loss experience
does not indicate significantly different loss patterns for different
customer segments, the loss allowance based on past due
status is not further distinguished between the Group’s different
customer bases.

The following table provides information about the Group’s
exposure to credit risk and ECLs for trade receivables as at 31
December 2020:

6.

MEEREE ()
b) FERRGE
e SRR

AEEERBREAEESHER @ LIHARE
E71% (ZZ —NF : 67%) A FE IR 3019 5K
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AEEERR BRI ENHEMEEER
SR ERUIRFNERRE - ARNAEED
BECEBEERTBERTRETS 2 NE
BRAAFREZR U EE—TROIAE
ETRE P ERAMA RO EEREE -

TRIERAEEN -2 -2F+-A=+—8
Hi AR R R R E S EHRAY S
oK

2020

—E-EF
Expected Gross carrying Loss
loss rate amount allowance
TEHEEE HEREE EBERE
% HK$’000 HK$’000
% FET FERT
Current (not past due) BIHA (IR HA) 0-13% 6,850 -
1-30 days past due mHA1E30H 0-13% 1,360 13
31-60 days past due #HI31 £ 60 H 0-13% - -
61-90 days past due #HI61 290 H 0-13% - -
More than 90 days past due BHIQ0 B LA 0-13% 16,473 369
24,683 382
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6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 6. HXEKRERE (&)
(b) Credit risk (continued) (b) EERRGE)
Trade receivables (continued) JEW AR (48)
2019
—Z-NF
Expected  Gross carrying Loss
loss rate amount allowance
TEHAETIE R RERE(E EEEE
% HK$’000 HK$'000
% FET FAET
Current (not past due) BNER (A i HA) 0-2.5% 46,336 514
1-30 days past due #HEI1E=30H 0-2.5% 834 -
31-60 days past due #HI31 E 60 H 0-2.5% 2,838 -
61-90 days past due #HI61 290 H 0-2.5% - -
More than 90 days past due #HI0 B A 0-90.0% 19,017 2,571
69,025 3,085
Movements in the loss allowance for trade receivables during the RERNERERSEREBEZSOT -
year is as follows:
2020 2019
—E-EH —T-NEF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
At 1 January wn—A—H 3,085 3,321
(Reversal of impairment losses)/impairment  FRER CREEERD) SHEEBE
losses recognised for the year (2,704) 3,085
Exchange realignment HE 3, 8 2 1 -
Derecognised upon disposals of subsidiaries i & [ /& /A AR A2 IEFER - (3,321)
At 31 December R+=—A=+—8H 382 3,085
(c) Interest rate risk (c) FIERMR
The Group’s exposure to interest-rate risk arises from its bank AEEFERRRTREERITER - ZFRITTF

deposits. These bank deposits bear interests at floating rates
varied with the then prevailing market condition.

Except as stated above, the Group does not have other
significant interest-bearing assets and liabilities at the end of
reporting period, its income and operating cash flows are
substantially independent of changes in market interest rates.
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6.

100

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 6. HXEKRERE (&)
(d) Liquidity risk (d REBESER
The Group’s policy is to regularly monitor current and expected AEENBRATHEZRNPRERRDES
liquidity requirements to ensure that it maintains sufficient EX - UERHEEBTRESEBEAmEERE
reserves of cash to meet its liquidity requirements in the short HRERBORDESFIK
and longer term.
The following tables show the remaining contractual maturities at TRIAEEN SR EENSTREPIRNEA
the end of each reporting period of the Group’s financial liabilities, TARER - MARE TE REARTIREARR
based on undiscounted cash flows (including interest payments REenB(RECAEGRNER (BT
computed using contractual rates or, if floating, based on rates FER)BERESBHBTOMNEAEESLEOF
current at the reporting date) and the earliest date the Group can BRF)URITERAERLZNNRZEBEE
be required to pay. e
The maturity analysis of the Group’s financial liabilities based on AEERBESRABRRENEAENESHE
contractual undiscounted cash flow is as follows: BEREBERATOT
Less than Between 1 Between 2
On demand 1year and2years and 5 years
RER —FEUT —ZEWF MERF
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET FET FERT
At 31 December 2020 R-B-ZF
+=ZHA=+—H
Trade payables IR - 912 - -
Other payables, deposits HithENRE EWRET £
received and RESHER
accrued expenses - 10,875 - -
Convertible bonds AR ES - 21,600 - -
Lease liabilities HESE - 2,632 728 -
At 31 December 2019 RZZE—NF
+=—A=+—H”
Trade payables FEERR - 45,668 - -
Other payables, deposits HEtpERE - EWETS
received and RIESTER
accrued expenses - 4,812 - -
Convertible bonds ATRRES - - 21,600 -
Lease liabilities HEARE - 900 - -
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6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 6. HMEEREBRER(E)
(e) Categories of financial instruments at 31 December () R+T=B=+t—HZE&MIANEH
2020 2019
—EEH —E-AF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHxT FHIT
Financial assets: ERMEE :
Financial assets at amortised cost R AR & BEE 41,498 78,174
Financial liabilities: SRIBME:
Financial liabilities at amortised cost REHAATIR s eBBE 32,919 69,414

(f)  Fair value
The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial assets and
financial liabilities as reflected in the consolidated statement of
financial position approximate their respective fair values.

7. SEGMENT INFORMATION 7.
The accounting policies of the operating segments are the same as
those described in note 4 to the consolidated financial statements.

Operating segment information

The Group is engaged in the (i) research, development, manufacturing
and trading of electronic devices and (ii) provision of software
application development services. However, as the segment of
provision of software application development services do not meet the
quantitative thresholds for determining reportable segments, information
reported to the Group’s chief operating decision maker, for the purpose
of resources allocation and performance assessment, focuses on the
operating results of the Group as a whole. The Group’s resources are
integrated and as a result, no discrete operating segment financial
information is available. Accordingly, no operating segment information
is presented.
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7.

102

SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

Geographical information

Non-current assets of the Group are presented based on the
geographical location as follows:

7. SEHERGE
it & K
AEBNERPAERICBUBRIINT -

2020 2019

—ECEF —T-hEF

HK$’000 HK$’000

FHT FHT

Hong Kong % 3,236 790
PRC R 515 895
3,751 1,685

Non-current assets include property, plant and equipment, intangible
assets and right-of-use assets.

Information about the Group’s revenue from external customers is

FRBEERENX  BELRE BUAERER
RBEE -

BRAAEEK B IMNEE P WA E R B IA T IR (L

presented based on the geographical location as follows: B25:

2020 2019
et St 23 —E-hNF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FHET FET
PRC + 3,258 27,814
Hong Kong B 116,079 273,400
119,337 301,214

Information about major customers EBETEEFNESR

The Group’s customer base included three (2019: two) customers with
whom transactions have exceeded 10% of its revenue during the years
is set out as below:

RNENBEHFBBAEEKE10%RZHNAEE
ZRBEFP(ZE-NF MB)RINNOT

2020 2019

—B-EF —E-NEF

HK$’000 HK$'000

FET FAT

Customer A ZEA 21,279 79,472
Customer B ZF5B 18,754 33,957
Customer C (note (i) BEC(Hi7 () 18,419 N/A i AR

[0] These customers did not contribute over 10% of the total revenue of the
Group for the year ended 31 December 2019.

0] HE_Z-—NF+_A=1+—HILFE %5
REAERZBSEARE®EZ AWK TBB
10% °
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For the year ended 31 December 2020
HE-_ZT-_TF+-_A=+—HULFE

8. REVENUE 8. WH
The Group derives revenue from the transfer of goods and services at a ANERE 5 R LA 3 22 A A S A T B R B s
point in time and over time respectively in the following major product BEBERERBPEEW
lines:
2020 2019
—EoEE —E—NF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FE T FHIT
Revenue from contracts with customers within ERUBREENFISFHEANZ
the scope of HKFRS 15 BEPa s
Products transferred at a point in time: RE G R B 8B Em -
Sales of manufactured products IR EREE 3,258 23,865
Sales on trading of electronic products, BFER BUEMEMEESIHEE
accessories and raw materials 116,079 273,400
119,337 297,265
Services transferred over time: BERSEIEERE IR TS -
Provision of application software FE A FE AR B R B AR 7S
development services - 3,949
119,337 301,214
9. OTHER INCOME 9. HalgA
2020 2019
—B-EF —E-NEF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHT
Foreign exchange gain, net SN Y F R 4 -
Government subsidies BRI F 8 = 770
Interest income FLEHA 3 3
Reversal of allowance of inventories GFERERD = 1,649
Others Hih 86 23
93 2,445
10. FINANCE COSTS 10. MBEHEA
2020 2019
—B-EF —E-NEFE
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHT
Imputed interest on loan from a director —REEEREERN A - 100
Interest on lease liabilities HEABENS 162 106
Interest expense on convertible bonds AR ESF S 2,198 1,584
2,360 1,790
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For the year ended 31 December 2020
HE-_Z-_TF+-_A=+—HIFE

11. LOSS BEFORE TAX 11. BRBAIESE
The Group’s loss before tax is stated after charging/(crediting) the REBERBABEIEHNER (GEA) AT EEET]
following: iR -
2020 2019
—ECEHF —T-NF
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
Bt et FET FHET
Depreciation IATIEBEZITE

— Owned assets —BBEEE (@) 438 430

— Right-of-use assets — EREEE 2,606 2,778
Staff costs (including directors’ BINK(BIEESHE)

emoluments) (b)

— Salaries, bonus and allowances — 5% - TEALROER 4,470 5,751

— Share-based payments — LARRD BERER R 1,591 9,253

— Retirement benefits — RRREFIET MR

scheme contributions 134 157

6,195 15,161

Cost of inventories sold BEEFERAR 115,244 289,761

Foreign exchange (gain)/loss, net GNEE (W35 ),/ B8 R EE (4) 32
Gain on disposals of subsidiaries o & BB A R MER (K 7E 36(a))

(note 36(a)) - 12,853
Operating lease charges on premises MESETHEER © 1,087 295
Auditors’ remuneration ZEEAEN & 510 560
Research expenses kA 28 205
Allowance/(reversal of allowance) GEEE(BERR)

for inventories 187 (1,649)
(Reversal of impairment losses)/impairment & Y8R 2k CRlE BB E)

losses for trade receivables BEEE (2,704) 3,085
Impairment losses for other receivables L th [ I 5% 18 31 (& J§5 38 438 -
Written off of trade receivables JE LT AR R 8 2,856 -
Notes: Hiat -

(a) Depreciation of property, plant and equipment of approximately (@ HE-_Z-_ZF+_A=+—HBLLFE V% BE
HK$419,000 (2019: HK$413,000) for the year ended 31 December 2020 NE BT EL £419,00078 L (ZZF— N4 413,000
is included in cost of sales. BIT) B ASHERA o
(o) Staff costs of approximately HK$457,000 (2019: HK$903,000) and (b) HE-_Z-_TFE+-_A=+—BItFE EIKAERN
HK$23,000 (2019: HK$205,000) for the year ended 31 December 2020 457,000 7T (== — fL4 : 903,000 7T) & 23,000
are included in cost of sales and research expenses respectively. B (ZZ—NEF : 205,000 7T) 9 HlFH ATHE KA
KRR ©
(0 Operating lease charges of approximately HK$175,000 (2019: (© HE_Z_TFIT_A=+T—BILFE K2HEE
HK$176,000) for the year ended 31 December 2020 is included in cost of F# A&175,0008 7T (= Z— N4 : 176,000 7T)
sales. T ASHERA ©
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P RSERARFEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020
BE_Z_ZF+_A=+—HILFE

12. INCOME TAX EXPENSE 12. A%
2020 2019
—E-EH —T-NF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHxT FHIT
Current tax — Hong Kong Profits Tax BNERREIE — BBFEH

Provision for the year FRNEBE = 2

Current tax — PRC EIT BNEARITE — R EIZEFTIS R
Provision for the year FREE = -
Total tax charge for the year FRHEFAL B = 2

Under the two-tiered Profits Tax Regime, one of the Company’s Hong
Kong subsidiaries is subjected to Hong Kong Profits Tax at the rate of
8.25% for the first HK$2 million of its estimated assessable profits and
at 16.5% on its estimated assessable profits above HK$2 million. Other
Hong Kong subsidiaries not qualifying for the two-tiered Profit Tax
Regime are subjected to Hong Kong Profits Tax at the rate of 16.5%
(2019: 16.5%) for the year ended 31 December 2020.

No provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax is required since the Hong
Kong subsidiaries have sufficient tax losses brought forward to set off

against current year’s assessable profits.

The tax rate applicable to the Group’s PRC subsidiaries were 25%
(2019: 25%) during the year.

No provision for PRC EIT is required since the PRC subsidiaries have
no assessable profit for the year.

Millennium Pacific Group Holdings Limited / & [ #{ & 2020
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For the year ended 31 December 2020
BE_Z_ZF+_A=+—HILFE

12. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (continued) 12. FISHimx (&)
The reconciliation between the income tax expense and the product of AEBATEHAS BRRATSIERATEFEREN
loss before tax multiplied by the Hong Kong Profits Tax rate of the RN -

Group is as follows:

2020 2019

—E-EF —E-NF

HK$’000 HK$'000

FET FHT

Loss before tax BB AT IE (14,952) (251)
Tax at the domestic tax rate of 16.5% R E 16.5%

(2019: 16.5%) (ZZ—NF 1 16.5%) s ERFTE (2,467) (41
Tax effect of tax exemption BRI E = (683)
Tax effect of preferential tax rate EEVENRBZE = @)
Tax effect of income that is not taxable BERBBMANRBZE (739) (2,797)
Tax effect of expenses that are not deductible TAHB AL RS E 1,398 2,626
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised AERREEENHRETE 2,536 1,166
Tax effect of utilisation of tax losses not FRBTARERREBENB G E

previously recognised (70) (8)
Effect of different tax rates of subsidiaries ME AR TRMER (658) (245)
Income tax expense for the year FAAEHAX = 2
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For the year ended 31 December 2020
HE-_ZT-_TF+-_A=+—HULFE

13. DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS 13. EEREEMS
(@) Directors’ emoluments (@ ESMe
The emoluments paid or payable in respect a person’s services ENSENREERARSENBARERZ
as a director, whether of the Company, or its subsidiaries EERERBZALZBE0T -

undertaking were as follows:

For the year ended 31 December 2020 BE_ZE-EF+-A=+—HLEE
Retirement
benefits
Salaries and scheme
Fees allowances contributions Total
RINTER
BH 2 HERER T &I #BEt
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FTHET FHET FET FTHET
Executive directors HITES
Wang Li TE - 240 - 240
Wu Yong Fu (i) ROKE (i) - 360 - 360
Zhou Chuang Qiang (iv) &I (iv) - 240 - 240
Non-executive directors EHITEE
Chong Yu Keung H{Ea 180 - - 180

Independent non-executive B IEEHTEE

directors
Huang Jian =iE 180 - - 180
Zheng Wan Zhang BTE 180 - - 180
Wong Tik Tung TR 180 - - 180

720 840 - 1,560
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For the year ended 31 December 2020
BE_Z_ZF+_A=+—HILFE

13. DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS 13. EEREEMS (F)
(continued)
(a) Directors’ emoluments (continued) (a) E=#E (E)
For the year ended 31 December 2019 HE-Z-NF+-A=1T—RHILFE

Retirement Share-based

Salaries and  benefits scheme payment
Fees allowances contributions expenses Total
RIKREF WARRA A
BA FE R FEME  EREREX et
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TER TR THT TR
Executive directors HTES
Tang Wai Ting, Samson (j) BRI - _ _ _ _
Liu Liang (i) 215 ) - 180 - 424 604
Wang Li IR - 240 - - 240
Wu Yong Fu (i SIKE (i) - 255 - 424 679
Zhou Chuang Qiang (iv) EEEY) - 120 - - 120
Non-executive directors FHiTES
W Jin Sheng (1) QB () 150 - - - 150
Chong Yu Keung HER 180 - - 424 604
Independent non-executive B FHITEE
directors
Huang Jian =i 180 - - - 180
Zheng Wan Zhang i 180 - - - 180
Wong Tk Tung TR 180 - - - 180
870 79 - 1272 2,937
Notes: Bt -
[0) Resigned on 25 March 2019 (0] RZF-NF=ZAZTHHEE
(ii) Resigned on 28 June 2019 (i) RZZ—NFENAZ+/\BEHE
(iii) Appointed on 16 April 2019 (il RZZ-NEMNA+BEZFE
(iv)  Appointed on 4 June 2019 (iv) RIZF-NFRANBEZHE
(v) Resigned on 3 June 2019 v) RZZE—NFARNA=HEHE
There was no arrangement under which a director waived or RER  BEEENEXAERETAMNEHLHE -

agreed to waive any emoluments during the year.
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13. DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS 13. EEREEME (E)
(continued)
(b) Five highest paid individuals (b) BTEESHMAL
No director whose emoluments are reflected in the analysis HE_Z-ZFR-_T-NF+-_A=+—H
presented above included in the five highest paid individuals in IEFE  AEBREGEEHMA TP ETM
the Group for the years ended 31 December 2020 and 2019. EFMeE PR 27D TR R A
The emoluments of the five (2019: five) individuals are set out ZE-NF DR ATHME S RIETI 0
below respectively: T
2020 2019
—ECEHF —T-NF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHET
Basic salaries and allowances BN RER 879 437
Share-based payments LARR R A E R T 3R 986 5,818
Retirement benefits scheme contributions RIKEFFT B 43 19
1,908 6,274
There was no discretionary bonus paid or payable to any of the HE-S-ZEFR-T-NF+=-A=+—H
directors and the five highest paid individuals during the years IFFE - WEAEMEERAERSHMAL
ended 31 December 2020 and 2019. AT R R BEIEAL
During the year ended 31 December 2020, the five highest paid HE_Z-_ZF+_A=1+—HIEFE W
individuals who are not the directors of the Company whose AAREENAEETMALTHMEERE
emoluments fall within the band of HK$ Nil to HK$1,000,000 78702 1,000,000 TR EE RN (ZZE— L5
(2019: five individuals fall within the band of HK$1,000,001 to A A A LB 7 1,000,001 & 1,500,000 7% 7T #)
HK$1,500,000). HEA) °
No emolument was paid by the Group to any of the directors or HE-ZT-ZEFR-T-NF+=-A=+—H
the highest paid individuals as an inducement to join or upon IEFE - AEEBERTANESSIEaTHMA
joining the Group or as compensation for loss of office during the TR AERMEEAINESMNBAREE &R
years ended 31 December 2020 and 2019. Bk Ve AR R E o
(c) Senior management’s emoluments (c) EREBAENHE
Senior management represents the executive directors. The BEEEASERITES - RER - BISE
emoluments paid or payable to senior management during the NTEREBABZHEEEHR LAZSH D
year have been set out in the analysis presented above. e o
(d) Directors’ material interests in transactions, d EERRS ZTHIEGHNTFEENEKX
arrangements or contracts R
No significant transaction, arrangement and contract in relation RAAREERABEFRENRAR R AEE
to the Group’s business to which the Company was a party and EBATEI M BN F RS FRERRRDBERZ
in which a director of the Company and the director’s connected BARS RHRENT  BEESMEHRES
party had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly, Rz o
subsisted at the end of the year of at any time during the year.
14. DIVIDEND 14. KE

No dividend had been paid or declared by the Company during the year
(2019: Nil).
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15.

16.

110

LOSS PER SHARE
(@) Basic loss per share

15.

BREE
(@ “BREFER

2020 2019
—E-EF —ZE-hNF
HK$’000 HK$'000
THExT FHT
Loss =]
Loss for the purpose of calculating basic and  FR &35 & A% B2 [ #5518
diluted loss per share K& 18 (14,880) (1,081)
2020 2019
—EEH —T-NEF
Number of shares BEEE
Issued ordinary shares at the beginning RENEEHTHEBR
of year 891,874,970 694,323,113
Effect of placing of shares (note 37(d)) Bo E RN 22 (Ba£ 31(d)) 97,128,918 54,458,809
Weighted average number of ordinary shares A ET & G IR E AR EGIEH
for the purpose of calculating basic loss L AR I T3 2R
per share 989,003,888 748,781,922

(b) Diluted loss per share

For the purpose of calculation of diluted loss per share, no
adjustment has been made to loss attributable to owners of the
Company and the number of shares as the effects of the
Company’s potential ordinary shares in respect of the
outstanding share options and convertible bonds are anti-dilutive

for the years ended 31 December 2020 and 2019.

For the purpose of calculation of basic and diluted loss per share for the
years ended 31 December 2020 and 2019, the share consolidation of
the Company being effective on 29 May 2019 was deemed to be
effective throughout the period from 1 January 2019 to 31 December
2020. Accordingly, the number of shares issued at 1 January 2019 was
adjusted to reflect the share consolidation.

RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEMES

The Group operates a mandatory provident fund scheme (the “MPF
Scheme”) under the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance for all qualifying employees in Hong Kong. The Group’s
contributions to the MPF Scheme are calculated at 5% of the salaries
and wages subject to a monthly maximum amount of HK$1,500 (2019:
HK$1,500) per employee and vest fully with employees when
contributed into the MPF Scheme.

16.

(b) EREFER
HRAHSREEEENE  RBE_T_FF
RZZ-NFE+-A=+—HILFE KARQF
1) R T2 O RS S I AT AR (B 57 2 T FE B A
TERRIETE  MIHARREA AR
HEER R BB R -

R EBE—_T-_TFER-_T-AF+=-A=1+—A
HFEZEREAREEERMS AQR_Z
—NFRAZTNBERZBROEHBEREAR =S
—NF—A—HRE-ZT-FTF+-_A=+—AHLHH
BBt RZT—NEF-A—RBAZEBITROK
B E Ve AR A 6

RKERGE
AEERBERERNEARESIIEPIRBERES
EREREFERIIEARSHE(REEFE) - A
SEEREDIHEZHRBHFERTENS%TE
HEHEEEARSSER1,5008T(ZF—NF
1,600/ 7T ) R FE AR T & 51 &I R 2 2l B B 2
8.
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16. RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEMES (continued)

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries established in the PRC are

16. RIKERIGHE (&)

AR SR B B AR L O P B A BV IE B 2003 75 TR
BIFR PR REARDEE - ZEWBRBART REN
CERIBREEEANHERTENE TAN LM - A
RERBERIREES « TR EAEAEZ SIS
RAFIBERE RATRKEERAEFNEE - %5
B 2 BIs AR AR RS AT Bl M ME— BEREN G EIR
THRERHK

members of a central pension scheme operated by the local municipal
government. These subsidiaries are required to contribute certain
percentage of the employees’ basic salaries and wages to the central
pension scheme to fund the retirement benefits. The local municipal
government undertakes to assume the retirement benefits obligations of
all existing and future retired employees of these subsidiaries. The only
obligation of these subsidiaries with respect to the central pension
scheme is to meet the required contributions under the scheme.

There was no forfeited contribution in respect of the defined contribution
plan available at 31 December 2020 and 2019.

RIBZEFR-_F-NF+_A=T—BAEEHE
HRETEIZ B8R BEFRAT A ©

17. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 17. Y% BERRE
Furniture Motor Office Plant and
and fixture vehicle Mould equipment machinery Total
GRREE Jat:d EE WORE BERME @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAT TAT TAT TAT TAT TAT
Cost A
At 1 January 2019 RZE-NEF—-A—H 44 1,149 1,280 2,184 14,099 18,756
Additions NE - - - 1 - 1
Derecognised upon disposals RIEEMBARER HHER
of subsidiaries (34) (1,149 (1,280 (419) (12,586) (15,468)
Exchange realignment fE 5 A% - - - - (26) (26)
At 31 December 2019 and RZZ-nE+ZA=1+—-8
1 January 2020 k-E-FF-f—H 10 - - 1,766 1,487 3,263
Additions wE - - - 27 - 27
Exchange realignment E R AR 1 - - 6 92 99
At 31 December 2020 N-B-ZEE+-A=+-H 11 - - 1,799 1,579 3,389
Accumulated depreciationand BT ERFEFE
impairment loss
At 1 January 2019 RZZ-nF-A—-H 35 1,149 1,280 2,115 12,827 17,406
Charge for the year ERFX 2 - - 15 43 430
Derecognised upon disposal RIEEMBAREK HHED
of subsidiaries (34) (1,149) (1,280) (419 (12,586) (15,468)
Exchange realignment B ji A% - - - - (11) (11)
At 31 December 2019 and RZZ-nE+ZA=1—-8H
1 January 2020 “E-%F-f-A 3 - - 1,711 643 2,357
Charge for the year FREX 2 - - 17 419 438
Exchange realignment ERA% 1 - - 3 63 67
At 31 December 2020 R-ZE-_ZE5+-F=1+-H 6 - - 1,731 1,125 2,862
Carrying amount REE
At 31 December 2020 R-ZE-EF+-A=+-H 5 - - 68 454 527
At 31 December 2019 RZE-AF+=A=+-H 7 - - 55 844 906
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18. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS 18. FREEE

Leased

properties

HEWE

HK$'000

FHET

At 1 January 2019 RZE—NF—HA—H 3,557
Depreciation e (2,778)

At 31 December 2019 and 1 January 2020 RZZE-NF+ZA=+—BkK

—ZE-TF—H—H 779

Additions wnE 5,051
Depreciation TE (2,606)
At 31 December 2020 R-B-EF+=-H=+—H 3,224

Lease liabilities of approximately HK$3,270,000 (2019: HK$869,000)
are recognised with related right-of-use assets of approximately
HK$3,224,000 as at 31 December 2020 (2019: HK$779,000). The
lease agreements do not impose any covenants other than the security

RIZ-ZTF+-_A=+—H CHEIAREAED
3,270,000 7t (=& — L4 : 869,000/% 7T ) & HEH
B A #E & E #£3,224,0008 (=T — N &F:
779,000 i) c BREFAABEHAEEERMOER

interests in the leased assets that are held by the lessor. Leased assets &N MEBRETEIMEREMRER - HEEET
may not be used as security for borrowing purposes. SREEERER -
2020 2019
—E-EH —ET-NEF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Depreciation expenses on right-of-use assets FREEEZINERS 2,606 2,778
Interest expense on lease liabilities (included in HEaGBEMERZ (GTAMBER)
finance cost) 162 106

For both years, the Group leases office for its operations. Lease
contracts are entered into for fixed term of 2 years. Lease terms are
negotiated on an individual basis and contain a wide range of different
terms and conditions. In determining the lease term and assessing the
length of the non-cancellable period, the Group applies the definition of
a contract and determines the period for which the contract is
enforceable.

112

RREFE  AREEERAZTANES - HEEH
VA FE B2 F AT 32 - ME IR I8 B 25 L5
B BREETRRR R - REEHES kAT
ARESMENRER  AEEEASONERLETE
B KT 58 I TT RO AR
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19. INTANGIBLE ASSETS 19. BEE
HK$'000
FET
Cost 5%
At 1 January 2019, 31 December 2019 and RZE—NAF—A—H ZZE—hF
1 January 2020 +ZA=+—BRZZE=FTF—A—H 723
Written off i E (723)
At 31 December 2020 R-E-ZEF+=-H=+-—H =
Accumulated amortisation and impairment losses Rt R REREE

At 1 January 2019, 31 December 2019 and 1 January 2020 W-_Z—hF—H—H -
—E-NF+_A=+—HE

—E_EF-A—H 723
Written off il 85 (723)
At 31 December 2020 HN-EB-—BE+=-A=+—H _
Carrying amount BRMEE
At 31 December 2020 HNoZE-—BE+—-A=+—H _
At 31 December 2019 R-ZE—NF+-_A=+—H -
Intangible assets represent software applications acquired from BEAERABUE=THEENEHEAREN - 54
independent third parties. Such intangible assets have definite useful BVEECAFHAERIIZEREENSFNREH -
lives and are amortised on a straight-line basis over 5 years.
20. INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES 20. REBENTWRE
2020 2019
—ECEHF —ET-NF
HK$’000 HK$'000
Unlisted investments: FkEHERE : FET FHET
Share of net assets DIREEFE 23,929 22,416
Goodwill kS 7,963 7,963
31,892 30,379
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20.

114

INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued)

Investments in associates represents investments in unlisted equity
securities, details of the Group’s associates at 31 December 2020 are

REE QT NERE ()
KB SRR MR EENIE ETRABSRORE A%
ERA-F-FF+ A=+ AZBEATFBENI

as follows: T
Place of incorporation/ Registered/ Percentage of Principal activities and
Name establishment paid up capital ownership interest place of operation
#B HBAL/ AL B/ HRRA BEEEERAL TEEBREEHE
Direct Indirect
BE R
MR B R The PRC, 30 November 2015 RMB100,000,000/ - 25%  Leasing of new energy cars, sale of cars
BRAT (HMHE) RMB10,000,000 (2019:25%)  and accessories etc., the PRC
M ERaR I E R HE AR100,000,0007T,/ - 2% MEMNRE HEAERRES
BRRR(THMFE]) ZZ-nET-A=tH AR 10,000,000 (ZZ-nF:25%) HE
Celestial Rainbow Limited BVI, 9 June 2017 USD50,000/USD100 - 46% Manufacturing and trading of electronic
(“Celestial’) (2019:46%)  products, the PRC
Celestial Rainbow Limited KBERRAE 50,000%7T,/100% 7T - 46% BEREEETEM T
([Celestial ) “Z-t5XANA (25N - 46%)

The following table shows information of the associates that are material
to the Group. These associates are accounted for in the consolidated
financial statements using the equity method. The summarised financial
information presented is based on the financial statements of the

associates.

TRETHASERSEANE 2R ANER - 2558
BRRRAEDANESMBEREAR - FT2®ROY
BERBEIREEZ D RNOUBHRERER
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20. INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued) 20. REEQITNRE (E)
Name £ FUM T2 Celestial
Principal place of business/Country TELEMT MK BER PRC/PRC PRC/BVI
of incorporation R REL EEERR
HE
% of ownership interests/voting rights held by REBBENAERED 25%/25% 46%/46%
the Group KE#BESHL
BN T E Celestial
2020 2019 2020 2019
—ECRFE —T-hF ZEIEE  —ThHF
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAT FET FHAT
At 31 December: R+=—A=+—8:
Non-current assets IETENVEE 8,421 14,774 2,623 2,754
Current assets TRENVEE 7,030 6,921 72,181 46,308
Non-current liabilities ERBAE (180) (1,737) - -
Current liabilities BB E (16,614) (13,967) (22,783) (3,588)
Net assets/(liabilities) BE/(AE) FE (1,343) 5,991 52,021 45,474
Group’s share of net assets REENEEERE - 1,498 23,929 20,918
Goodwiill S - - 7,963 7,963
- 1,498 31,892 28,881
Year ended 31 December: BEt+t=-A=t+—HILEE:
Revenue e zs 753 5,150 107,409 33,594
Profit for the year 4 P93 F (7,334) 647 3,415 7,852
Other comprehensive income Hih 2w A - (104) 3,130 -
Profit/(loss) and total comprehensive 4 3% F|, (E518) &
income for the year 2HEW AL (7,334) 543 6,545 7,852

The Group has not recognised loss for the year amounting to
approximately HK$336,000 for i/#72 . The accumulated losses not
recognised were approximately HK$336,000.

7N 5 (B 7N 67 [ 30 48 BN AT 2 1 SR B R 40 336,000 75
TT ° REER R FHEE 44 336,000 T ©

As at 31 December 2020, the bank and cash balances of the Group’s R-ZE-TFE+-A=+—H AEENTFEHEKE
associates in the PRC denominated in RMB amounted to approximately NEIIRITRIR S B IUARBHEL A 322,000
HK$322,000 (2019: HK$247,000). Conversion of RMB into foreign TL(ZZ—NF 0 247,000870) - AR K i AN

currencies is subject to the PRC’s Foreign Exchange Control
Regulations and Administrative of Settlement, Sale and Payment of
Foreign Exchange Regulations.

BT AR STEINE S S 501 AT - EER A
[ SN IR -
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21. INVESTMENT IN A JOINT VENTURE 21. REEDLENRE
Investment in a joint venture represents investment in unlisted equity NG BREMIRERNIELMRABLENIRE - K&
securities, details of the Group’s joint venture at 31 December 2020 are R-ZE-_ZTF+ A=+ HNALDEHBN
as follows: T
Paid up Percentage of Principal activities and
Name Place of incorporation capital HK$ ownership interest  place of operation
Z1B B 37 3t B BERAEET REEEZE L FEERRLE MY
MPEL Hong Kong, 10,000 Indirect, 51% (2019: 51%)  Trading of cosmetic products,
28 June 2019 Hong Kong
BEEAFFEF HE ZT—NF 10,000 f#%  51% BEE{tMm - '8
BR AR ~AZ+N\H (ZZ—NF ' 51%)
The Group holds 51% of the voting rights of the joint venture. The REEREGELERBESINREE EEHT R
directors have determined that the Group has joint control over the joint BEAOmE  AEBHSERERLREGE  —4)
venture as under the contractual agreement, it appears that unanimous HEEB 2 BRI ERISHE BT —BRRAE -
consent is required from all parties to the agreement for all relevant
activities.
Joint venture is accounted for in the consolidated financial statements ZEERERABRENGEMBREALR - FIZ2R
using the equity method. The summarised financial information NP ERBEDNRBES S RENMBSHRKRFER -
presented below is based on the financial statements of the joint
venture.
2020 2019
TEIEF —ZT-NF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHET
At 31 December: R+=A=+—8":
Current assets RENEE 2,176 2,065
Current liabilities MEBAE (2,033) (2,035)
Net assets BEFE 143 30
Group’s share of net assets REBDSEHEEFE 73 15
Year ended 31 December: BZE+T-A=1+—HLEE:
Revenue Wz 2,060 2,060
Profit and total comprehensive income for the year — 4F X154 K| & 2 E g A 42 58 113 20
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22. INVENTORIES 22, ®FE
2020 2019
—ECEHF —E-NF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHT
Raw materials RAE = 217
Finished goods and merchandise BRI o M 1,560 384
1,560 601
At the end of reporting period, the Group’s inventories were stated at RMEER - AEB 2 FETIRKATIEE o
cost.
During the year, allowance for inventories of approximately HK$187,000 RER FEEEN187,0008 TEHEENKR(-Z
was charged to profit or loss (2019: reversal of allowance for inventories —NF - FEBHRE41,649,000%T) °
of approximately HK$1,649,000).
23. TRADE RECEIVABLES 23. FEUWERR
2020 2019
et St 23 —E-NEF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHIT
Trade receivables FEURBR ZX 24,683 69,025
Allowance for doubtful debts R (382) (3,085)
24,301 65,940

The Group’s trading terms with its major customers is either on credit
or to provide the Group with irrecoverable letters of credit issued by
reputable banks, with terms within 60 to 90 days (2019: 60 to 90 days).
The Group seeks to maintain strict control over its outstanding
receivables. Overdue balances are reviewed regularly by the directors.

Millennium Pacific Group Holdings Limited / £ EE $§ & 2020
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23. TRADE RECEIVABLES (continued) 23. FEWERFX (&)
An ageing analysis of the Group’s trade receivables, based on the REEREZARGFENREBRRNBRR AT

invoice date is as follows:

2020 2019
—ECBE —E-NF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHET
0-30 days 0&30H - 40,269
31-60 days 31260H 2,117 2,501
61-90 days 612 90H 4,733 3,052
Over 90 days 90 B 17,451 20,118
24,301 65,940
As of 31 December 2020, trade receivables of approximately HE_Z-_ZF+A=+—HB EBREZRLD
HK$17,451,000 (2019: HK$20,118,000) were past due but not 17,451,000/ 7T ( ZZF — L F : 20,118,000 7T ) E
impaired. These trade receivables related to customers for whom there 180 BB RRE o 5% 5 FE U BR SR B A5 BB X0 42 8
was no recent history of default. The ageing analysis of these trade EPAR - ZERYIGRFURI BB ERER DT
receivables, based on due date, is as follows: I
2020 2019
—EEH —T-NEF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHAT
0-30 days 0&30H 1,346 834
31-60 days 31E260H - 2,838
Over 60 days 60 HEA E 16,105 16,446
17,451 20,118
The Group does not charge interest or hold any collateral over these 25 B 4 Tk % S A AR R B S B I R o
balances.
The Group applied simplified approach to provide the ECL as AEBBEEEMBREENFEOFATRABS
prescribed by HKFRS 9. The impairment methodology is set out in EARBTEHEEEIE  BEFEZHEREEVERE
notes 4(y) and 6(b) to the consolidated financial statements. 5t 4(y) %2 6(0) ©
Details of the credit risk assessment are included in note 6(b) to the FERB I EFBHNRGRE T BREMTES(D) °

consolidated financial statement.
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23. TRADE RECEIVABLES (continued) 23. FEWERF (&)
The directors of the Company are of the opinion that there is no KARZER(ZERP AR XN REERS - K
significant increase of credit risk regarding the outstanding balances of BRAFEERBRESHRBKE AR FEERAEE
trade receivables over due for over 60 days as at 31 December 2019 ZE-NFRZIZZZFFTA=+—H - aiffiEA
and 2020, after carefully considered (i) the payment patterns and credit 60K Z EU IR R BB 4 84 2 5 B L& I 8 K 1R 12
history of these customers; and (i) the amounts recovered subsequent hn e

to the end of the reporting periods.

Lifetime ECL that has been recognised in accordance with simplified RIEE B RS RS OSRATH ML T AR
approach set out in HKFRS 9 is as follows: THIFEHEEBENT -
2020 2019
—ECEHF —T-NF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHT
At beginning of year REA) 3,085 3,321
(Reversal of impairment losses)/impairment losses N CREBIEREE), REEBE
recognised for the year (2,704) 3,085
Exchange realignment [ 5, A& 1 _
Derecognised upon disposals of subsidiaries REEHBARRFRIEER - (3,321)
At end of year RERXR 382 3,085
The carrying amounts of the Group’s trade receivables at the end of REBRREHRNEURZVEMEA T ESE
reporting period are denominated in the following currencies: & :
2020 2019
—E-EH ZE-NF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHIT
HK$ BIT 17,161 50,521
us$ ET 6,685 12,312
RMB AR 455 3,107
24,301 65,940
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24,

25.

120

OTHER RECEIVABLES, PREPAYMENTS AND 24,

DEPOSITS
An analysis of the Group’s other receivables, prepayments and
deposits, net of allowance, is as follows:

HBWRIR - ANREARES

REBEMEWRR - RAFARES (BB
DI

2020 2019

—E-EH —E-NF

HK$’000 HK$'000

FET FHET

Deposits b e 13,922 6,612

Other receivables i JEYRIE 2,014 1,795
Amount due from a director of a subsidiary B —FH B ARz —REEHKIE

(note (a)) (Btet (@) - 2,362

Prepayments BT RIE 105 2,440

16,041 13,209

Note: (a) The amount due is unsecured, interest free and repayable on demand.

BANK AND CASH BALANCES 25.

At the end of reporting period, the bank and cash balances of the
Group are denominated in the following currencies:

Hiat i (@) FERFCAREERN  RERERERHEE -

RITRBEEER
RIWEHR - ARERRITRBRSEHRIZTIIERE
& :

2020 2019

—E-EH —E-AF

HK$’000 HK$'000

FHxT FHT

HK$ BT 152 56
RVB AR 1,066 1,329
uss ETT 43 80
1,261 1,465

Conversion of RMB into foreign currencies is subject to the PRC’s
Foreign Exchange Control Regulations and Administration of
Settlement, Sale and Payment of Foreign Exchange Regulations.
Exchange of RMB into other currencies is permitted through bank
authorised to conduct exchange business.

AR B0 B NE RS o BIOME & Bl G R AERE - &
PE e (T EESMNERPIRR - ARBALRBEREETE
REBONRITHAREMLEE -
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26.

27.

TRADE PAYABLES 26.

An ageing analysis of the Group’s trade payables, based on the invoice
date is as follows:

FE 1 BR K
AR EIE R A IR RS ST T

2020 2019

—ECEF —E-NF

HK$’000 HK$’000

FTHET TET

0-30 days 0% 30H = 35,848
31-60 days 31£60H = 2,464
61-90 days 61%£90H = 3,786
Over 90 days 90 HLA & 912 3,570
912 45,668

The carrying amounts of the Group’s trade payables at the end of

AEERHRE RO B RKNREENA T IIE R

reporting period are denominated in the following currencies: & :
2020 2019
et St 23 —E-NEF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHAT
HK$ BT = 35,783
RMB AR 4 66
uss$ e 908 9,819
912 45,668
OTHER PAYABLES, DEPOSITS RECEIVED AND 27. HMENTIE eI REFTER
ACCRUED EXPENSES
2020 2019
—B-EF —E-NEF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FAT
Deposits received from customers BEREFR® - 1,783
Accruals for operations K FERTIEE 890 1,180
Accruals for staff costs FEEtB IR AR 1,994 578
Amount due to a director of B —MEMB AR —RESKA
a subsidiary (note (a)) (Ktit (@) 1,432 -
VAT payable JE T IS 2,090 1,969
Others HAith 4,469 1,085
10,875 6,595
Note: BiaE -
(@) The amount due is unsecured, interest free and repayable on demand. (@ FEM I R AR - B RAREKKEE -
121
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28. CONVERTIBLE BONDS
The convertible bonds were issued on 5 March 2019. The bonds are
convertible into ordinary shares of the Company at any time between
the date of issue of the bonds and 26 February 2021. The bonds are
convertible to an aggregated of 55,555,555 ordinary shares of the
Company at HK$0.36 per share.

If the bonds are not converted, they will be redeemed at par on 5 March
2021. Interest of 4% per annum will be settled with the outstanding
principal at the maturity date.

The net proceeds received from the issue of the convertible bonds have
been split between the liability element and an equity component, as

28.

ARRES
ARBEFR-_ZE-—NF=-ARAET - EHFURE
FRTEHRE B - —F - -+ A 2Bk G
RARBEBR - BEFATIETROIETHILRE
355,555,555 IR AN B A% o

HESAELR AR —ZE - —F=-AARKRAEE
B - iﬁq&ﬂi% IR EA%Z N EREIBAES -

BT HRERER 2 C WA B RIRFEE R B ERD
ERF D EER BT

follows:
HK$’000
FET
Nominal value of convertible bonds issued BETARRKRESHEE 20,000
Equity component S E D (2,650)
Liability component at date of issue RETHBEZBESS 17,350

Movements of the liability component during the reporting period are as WEHRRELSMESHNT
follows:
HK$’000
FTHET
At issuance of the instrument REETT AR 17,350
Interest charged (note 10) W ER B R B (B 5 10) 1,584
As at 31 December 2019 and 1 January 2020 R-ZE—NF+_A=+—"HBK
—ZE-TF—HA—H 18,934
Interest charged (note 10) W ER Y &I B (B aE 10) 2,198
Liability component at 31 December 2020 RZZEZTF+A=+—AZEEDBD 21,132

The interest charged for the year is calculated by applying an effective

interest rate of 11.58% to the liability component for the 24 months
period since the bonds were issued.
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29. LEASE LIABILITIES

20. HEESE

Minimum lease payments

Present value of minimum

lease payments

30.

BIERAENRE BEAEREZRE
2020 2019 2020 2019
—EIRE —T-NF ZEDEF —TNF
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHET FET FHET
With one year —FR 2,632 900 2,547 869
More than one year, but not —F L HETBBRE
exceeding two years 728 - 723 -
3,360 900 3,270 869
Less: Future finance charges B RRRVEER (90) 31 NATEHA N/A7TE A
Present value of lease obligations ~ HEHF . RAE 3,270 869 3,270 869
Less: Amount due for settlement 38 : R 1218 A N2 Hi 2 k0B
within 12 months (shown (RmEIAETAIR)
under current liabilities) (2,547) (869)
Amount due for settlement after W28 B & 2|82 308
12 months 723 -

The average incremental borrowing rate applied to lease liabilities is 4%
(2019: 4%).

DEFERRED TAXATION

At the end of the reporting period, the Group has unused tax losses of
approximately HK$28,793,000 (2019: HK$15,854,000) that are
available for offsetting against future taxable profits. Deferred tax assets
have not been recognised in respect of these losses due to
unpredictability of future profit streams. Included in unrecognised tax
losses are losses of approximately HK$7,011,000 (2019:
HK$3,113,000) that will expire in 5 years from 2021 to 2025. Other tax
losses may be carried forward indefinitely.

Under the Law of the PRC on EIT, a withholding tax is imposed on
dividends declared in respect of profits earned by PRC subsidiaries
from 1 January 2008 onwards.

As at 31 December 2020 and 2019, deferred taxation has not been
provided in the financial statements in respect of temporary difference
attributable to profits earned by the Group’s PRC subsidiaries since 1
January 2008 as the Group is able to control the timing of the reversal
of the temporary differences and it is probable that the temporary
difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future.
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HEREERZ MEFIREERNERA%(ZF
—NEF 4%) o

ELER IR

RREBRAR - NEBARBABL 28,793,000 7T (=
T — L4 : 15,854,0004 7T ) M T 18 518 R VEIR 85 5K
RIERFBLRF - MR EEHBI ERRAECHBEE -
ThER A AR s R AROR B9 N A FE R o SEARIEREF
TEE B 47,011,000 7T (=ZF— NLF : 3,113,000
BIL)ER BR T FE_T_AFHFHEE
m o EL AR A IE &S 18 AT A MERR BRAEEE o

REPELEMSEE  HhENBARR-FTN
F— A — B AR BRI E TSRS BUTE -

REZFB-BER-FT-NAF+_A=1t—H BEE
B EMEATE T N\F— A — BRI
LR ZENM B RE AL B BELENIE - Jih
AN G2 B B 12 ) L B A R B O B ] I RS 2 R P
TERARARRER -
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31. SHARE CAPITAL

31. BR&

Number of shares

v ¢E|
At HK$0.0002 At HK$0.0016
per share per share HK$’000
BER RER
0.00023%& T 0.0016 & T FET
Authorised EE
At 1 January 2019 R-E—NF—HA—H 50,000,000,000 - 10,000
Effect of share consolidation (note (a)) Rin & otz & (Hfit(a) (50,000,000,000)  6,250,000,000 -
At 31 December 2019, R-EB—-AF+=A=+—8"
1 January 2020 and —E_ZEF—-A—HRK
31 December 2020 —E-ZEF+-H=+—H - 6,250,000,000 10,000
Issued 28T
At 1 January 2019 R-ZZE—NF—H—H 5,554,584,906 - 1,111
Share consolidation (note (a)) & & ot (F1iE (@) (5,5564,584,906) 694,323,113 -
Placing of new shares (note (b)) fio & 31D (B b)) - 74,784,000 120
Ordinary shares issued to subscribe for 28— E QA RIMEITZ
an associate (note (c)) Limak (a2 () - 122,767,857 196
At 31 December 2019 and RZE-NF+ZA=+—8K
1 January 2020 —E-EF—A—H = 891,874,970 1,427
Placing of new shares (note (d)) EEH B (77 () - 138,864,000 222
At 31 December 2020 R-TBE-EF+=-A=+—H - 1,030,738,970 1,649

Note:

(a) Consolidation of every eight (8) existing issued and unissued ordinary
shares of par value of HK$0.0002 each (“Old Share”) in the share capital
of the Company into one (1) consolidated share of par value of HK$0.0016
each (“Consolidated Share”) pursuant to the share consolidation (as
detailed in the circular dated 25 April 2019 of the Company) which took
effect on 29 May 2019.

(b) On 28 June 2019, an aggregate of 74,784,000 new shares were issued
upon completion of the placing pursuant to the placing agreement entered
into by the Company and the placing agent, ChaoShang Securities
Limited, on 17 June 2019, at the placing price of HK$0.124 per placing
share. The premium on the issue of shares, amounting to approximately
HK$8,829,000, net of shares issue expenses, was credited to the
Company’s share premium account.

(c) On 14 November 2019, the Company completed the subscription of 35%
equity interest of Celestial by allotment of 122,767,857 shares of the
Company as consideration to the vendor at the issue price of HK$0.224
per share pursuant to the sale and purchase agreement. Details are set
out in the announcements of the Company dated 24 May 2019, 9 August
2019, 29 August 2019, 14 October 2019 and 14 November 2019 and the
circular of the Company dated 25 September 2019.

(@) REARZZ-NFRA T HBEERNERNDE 6 (FF
RARRBHA-Z-NFOA-+HBRENK)
5 8\(8) AN 2 A A & IR E {5.0.0002 B 7T 2 B
BEBRTRABTEBRKR (BRSO D AHA—()K
SHEE0.0016 BTz A v (BRI )

(b) RZZ-AFANAZ+NB - BEARARHEERE
WMEEAFBRATDR T —NENA+EAME A
EETE IS - #1748 74,784,000 B FT AR -
REEAESRAERN0.1248 T - BHITRM Z%HE
© F8498,829,000 % T (MK AR H BETHZ) Bt A
ARATZ MR = B o

(© RZZ—NAFE+—A+MA  ARAREEERERT
X 32 B Celestial 35% A » 2 1TE TR 0.224
HBITIRE 7 B3 122,767,857 A R B D 1E AR
B FRARNARABBARA-T-NAFRAA=-+H
B -—Z-hENALA —E—AENA=-th
B ZT-AF+tA+HBE=Z—N&E+—A+H™
Az AERAARIAA-S—NENLA=-tTRHAZ
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31.

SHARE CAPITAL (continued)

Note: (continued)

(d) On 20 April 2020, an aggregate of 138,864,000 new shares were issued
upon completion of the placing pursuant to the placing agreement entered
into by the Company and the placing agent, Aristo Securities Limited, on
27 March 2020, at the placing price of HK$0.10 per placing share. The
premium on the issue of shares, amount to approximately HK$13.2 million,
net of shares issue expenses, was credited to the Company’s share
premium account.

The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to safeguard the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern and to maximise the
return to the shareholders through the optimisation of the debt and
equity balance. The capital structure of the Group comprises all
components of shareholders’ equity.

The Group reviews the capital structure frequently by considering the
cost of capital and the risks associated with each class of capital. The
Group will balance its overall capital structure through the payment of
dividends, new share issues and share buy-backs as well as the issue
of new debts, redemption of existing debts or selling assets to reduce
debts. No changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes
for managing capital during the years ended 31 December 2020 and
2019.

The only externally imposed capital requirement is that for the Group to
maintain its listing on the Stock Exchange it has to have a public float of
at least 25% of the shares. The Group receives a report from the share
registrars weekly on substantial share interests showing the non-public
float and it demonstrates continuing compliance with the 25% limit from
the date of the Listing. As of 31 December 2020, approximately 69%
(2019: 66%) of the shares were in public hands.
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&N )
Wit - ()

(d) RZF-ZFMA=—+A  REAQFEEEREHE
MEBEHFARRAN-_F_TF=A_+tRAFTL
L& s R L& 1% - 3174 #£138,864,000 B
> REERESREERN0.10BT - BITRH 2%
ELEMN1B2BEETEMBR BN EITR) BT
ARRBZBIEER

AEEEREAN B RRREARERELENEE
NEBBCER RS RT AR RRREAR@ER -
AEBEEARBRERRIERNAEAKTE -

AEEERERARKA N BFHEERNBBN AL
FERSARNEE AKEBSEBINRE - BITH
B MR RIA RBEITHER - MERAEBRLE
BENRVEBSE A TOEEREARE -BE—
ZTER"E-NFT A=+ HULFE EX
EENBR  BRIRIEHELE -

AEE MR E R FT ETTh AL 2 ME—SNERRE N2 B
RERA  REBERIBED25% RN AABRFHR
2 AREGEEERMBFECEELIITIELR
BREZEAMMHERRE  AREETAEES £
MHBURFEETE%LBRE - RS FF
TZA=T—B AEEAHEO%(ZZT—NF:
66%) IR 17 A BRIREFFA ©
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32. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE 32. ERRQTFZBBMRRE
COMPANY
2020 2019
—E_ZE —T—hF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FE T FHET
Non-current assets FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment L/ N 11 11
Right-of-use assets FRAEEE 3,224 779
Investment in a subsidiary RHTERE 2 I’E = -
3,235 790
Current assets RBEE
Prepayments and other receivables TEA FIE e H b W R 978 1,109
Amounts due from subsidiaries FE UL BT A R ZRIE 39,717 31,748
Bank and cash balances RITRIR S HEH 151 53
40,846 32,910
Current liabilities REBEE
Other payables and accrued expenses ot JET RIE R FEET B A 7,400 4,969
Amounts due to subsidiaries FEAST BT B8 R B KTE 8,024 8,024
Convertible bonds AT AR EH 21,132 18,934
Lease liabilities HEaE 2,547 869
39,103 32,796
Net current assets RBEEFE 1,743 114
Total assets less current liabilities BEERRBARG 4,978 904
Non-current liabilities FRBEE
Lease liabilities HEaE 723 -
NET ASSETS BERE 4,255 904
Capital and reserves BAR #E
Share capital A% 2 1,649 1,427
Reserves G 2,606 (523)
TOTAL EQUITY B 4,255 904
Approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 29 HEFEN -_Z-_—F=A -+ hBiEREET
March 2021. 3o
Zhou Chuang Qiang Wu Yong Fu
ARE RKE
- EF
Director Director
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33. RESERVES 33. f#fE
(@) Group (@ *%£ME
The amounts of the Group’s reserves and movements therein are AEENFEBERATONZ LGS ER REM
presented in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and FEPRKMGEEREHRAZT -

other comprehensive income and consolidated statement of
changes in equity.

(b) Company (b) E&ALF
Equity
component of
Share Option  Contributed convertible
premium reserve surplus bonds  Accumulated
(note 33(c)fi) ~ (note 33(c)(¥)  (note 33(c)(vii))  (note 33(c)(vi)) losses Total
TRRES
RBEE BRERE ARG ERSs
(Watssen) — (HaEsse)  (Hatascmi)) (K 33e)u) 2R @zt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEL TET TET TET TEL TAL
At 1 January 2019 R=ZE-nE-F—H 71,644 36,581 29,764 - (130,662 7,327
Placing of new shares (net of share  ER &5 (7
issue expenses) (MBBnETRS) 8,829 - - - - 8,829
Issue of convertiole bonds B AR ES - - 2,650 - 2,650
Recognition of share-based payments AR AEBH R - 9,253 - - - 9,253
Transfer of share option reserve upon R SEERRIBRE &
cancellation of share options BRERE - (43,785) - - 43785 -
Acquisition of an associate WM EAF 16,869 - - - - 16,869
Disposals of subsidiaries HENBAR - - (29,764) - 29,764 -
Loss and total comprehensive loss ~ EREERZEER
for the year o - - - - (45,451) (45,451)
At 31 December 2019 and RZZ-NE
1 January 2020 +-A=t-8}k
—3-26-f-H 07,342 2,049 - 2,650 (102,564) (523)
Placing of new shares (net of share EEH R4
issue expenses) (NRRARITES) 13,195 - = = = 13,195
Recognition of BRURARERN
share-based payments [ER - 1,501 - - - 1,501
Transfer of share option reserve ~ RiFSEBRERER
upon cancellation of BRERE
share options - (980) - - 980 -
Loss and total comprehensive loss FREER2EEHE
for the year g - - - - (11,657) (11,657)
At 31 December 2020 R=%=%fF
+ZRA=+-H 110,537 2,660 - 2,650 (113,241) 2,606
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33. RESERVES (continued) 33. R (&)
(¢) Nature and purpose of reserves (c) RENUEERRE

(i) Share premium 0] BR17 a8
Under the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands, the BERSHSRRNE  ARBIRMNEE
funds in the share premium account of the Company are RZESHHEDIEFARARE R
distributable to the shareholders of the Company provided BERZEDIRIRE BEIE - AARIZEBRE
that immediately following the date on which the dividend NEEHNBBSEBBEFEIRZE
is proposed to be distributed, the Company will be in a 7% o
position to pay off its debts as they fall due in the ordinary
course of business.
Share premium represents premium arising from the issue A1 i (B 512 K T AR AR 1) E{E 2 B 1%
of shares at a price in excess of their par value per share BITIRG - WHIBRE AL 31T KRG 3
and after deduction of capitalisation issue and issuance TR BEE 2 GE -
costs of shares.

(i) Statutory reserve i) EEHE
In accordance with the PRC Company Law and the BREFHARNERAEBTBRNE AR
Group’s PRC subsidiaries’ articles of association, the RN FIEBEIZAEA - N5 B B
Group’s PRC subsidiaries are required to allocate 10% of NRVARBEEGTRAIRFBE A RE
its profit after tax as determined in accordance with the B 8 B 75 16 401 BT 788 TE B BB ST 10% B 1&
relevant accounting principles and financial regulations HENEEFERE - BEEZEEED M
applicable to PRC companies to the statutory reserve until BN 50% o [\ {18 KB R A B LE R4
such reserve reaches 50% of the registered capital. The =R DI B ZAIEL © AT R
appropriation to the reserve must be made before any HARAEREBTFENER(E)
distribution of dividends to equity holders. The statutory A EERRFEBAIRBTERNREH
surplus reserve can be used to offset previous years’ BN ERFTENERGOZIERHES
losses, if any, and part of the statutory surplus reserve can BMFEREAKEETEH BRI B
be capitalised as paid-in capital provided that the amount JEZAH) 25% ©
of such reserve remaining after the capitalisation shall not
be less than 25% of the paid-in capital of the Group’s
subsidiaries.

(i) Merger reserve i)  BUHEE

128

The merger reserve represents the difference between the
nominal value of the share capital and share premium of
Central Pacific International Group Limited (“Central
Pacific International”) amounted to HK$10,300,000 and
HK$2,100,000 respectively at the date on which it was
acquired by Millennium Pacific International Group Limited
("Millennium Pacific"), over the nominal value of 1,000
shares issued by the Company pursuant to the Group
Reorganisation for the purpose of the Listing (the “Group
Reorganisation”).

The amount of merger reserve was credited to
accumulated losses of the Company, following the
disposals of subsidiaries as detailed in note 36(a) to the
consolidated financial statements.

aftEEPERREEARAR ([H
] 3 & @ J) % Milennium Pacific
International Group Limited
(TMillennium Pacific]) [t ig & B %
7K TH & 10,300,000 7T & B 10 % B
2,100,000/ 7T 7 Al AN R AR B AN S
Egt EmmET s EE(EEEMR])E
771,000 BRI (5 BV EI(E 2 PRI R 2 58 -

AHEBZERRNLEMNBARRITA
AARRFER  FHREAGEMHERE
Fft 5 36(a) °
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33. RESERVES (continued) 33. R (&)
(c) Nature and purpose of reserves (continued) (c) RENMERRS (&)

(iv)  Foreign currency translation reserve () SMNEREEE
The foreign currency translation reserve comprises all SN E BB IE R E B INETE T
foreign exchange differences arising from the translation of WMERMEERMEINEZR - FHEIRR
the financial statements of foreign operations. The reserve B 7 SR 2% B 2 4(0)(il) A B DI O & 5T IR R
is dealt with in accordance with the accounting policies set I e
out in note 4(d)(iii) to the financial statements.

(v  Option reserve () FERREFE
Option reserve represents the fair value of the actual or BRIEREER TARBMES 2 RITE
estimated number of unexercised share options granted to MR B ShEtBB 2 AT E - &
employees of the Company recognised in accordance LR R M T 4s) BLAES A E LA
with the accounting policy adopted for equity-settled R& 17 B E bl B0 15 SR ER AN 2 @ 5T IR 1R
share-based payments in note 4(s) to the financial e
statements.

(v Equity component of convertible bonds vi)  ATRRESZ BEm S
The equity component of convertible bonds represents the AR ES 2 S B AR RIFTETT
value of the unexercised equity component of convertible AIRRERZ R TEEEBY 2 BE -
bonds issued by the Company recognised in accordance H B 4% R B 74 SR 2 B 5 4(n) Tk Bt T 4%
with the accounting policy adopted for convertible bonds RIEFERN 2 SETBERTER
in note 4(n) to the financial statements.

(i) Financial assets at FVTOCI reserve vi)  HBRTFEGFARMPEN G HEE

f#E

The financial assets at FVTOCI reserve comprises the BEATFEFAEMEARE SRIEE
cumulative net change in the fair value of financial assets EBEBRERRE RS ENZATES
at FVTOCI held at the end of the reporting period and is AHM2EKE MEEATENR
dealt with in accordance with the accounting policy in note FHREE WIREBAS T BEHRERME
4(j) to the consolidated financial statements. A() S ST BUR R IR ©

(vii)  Contributed surplus (vii) AR

The contributed surplus of the Company represented the
excess of the consideration of Central Pacific International
at the date on which it was acquired by Millennium Pacific,
over the nominal value of 1,000 shares issued by the
Company pursuant to the Group Reorganisation.

The amount of contributed surplus was credited to
accumulated losses of the Company, following the
disposals of subsidiaries as detailed in note 36(a) to the
consolidated financial statements.
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RARMBABBIETERREEE
Millennium Pacific Y & & B &)X B2 i
7R ) A)AR 5 55 [ S 4 817 1,000 AR A% 1)
HIEER S

BARSzEENLEMBRABTREA
ARBRFEE  FERGRUB®RE
Fft 5 36(a) °
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34.

130

SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS

Equity-settled share option scheme

On 20 June 2014, written resolution of the shareholders of the
Company was passed to conditionally approve and adopt two share
option schemes namely, Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme (“Pre-IPO
Share Option Scheme”) and Share Option Scheme (“Share Option
Scheme”) to recognise and motivate the contributions that eligible
participants have made or may make to the Group. The Pre-IPO Share
Option Scheme was valid and effective for a period commencing from
20 June 2014 to the date immediately prior to the Listing of the
Company (i.e. 17 July 2014), after which no further option to be
granted, but the provisions of the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme shall
remain in full force and effect to the extent necessary to give effect to
the exercise of any options granted prior thereto or otherwise as may
be required in accordance with the provisions of the Pre-IPO Share
Option Scheme.

The Share Option Scheme adopted by the Company on 20 June 2014
will remain in force for a period of ten years from its effective date to 19
June 2024.

Particulars of the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme and Share Option
Scheme of the Company are set out in Appendix IV to the Company’s
prospectus dated 27 June 2014.

Pursuant to a resolution of the board of directors passed on 19
December 2017, it was resolved to grant an aggregate of 500,000,000
share options to three directors and seven employees under the Share
Option Scheme, to subscribe for shares of the Company at an exercise
price of HK$0.1632 per option (the “2017 Options”). The 2017 Options
were outstanding and not yet exercised as at 31 December 2018. As a
result of the Share Consolidation, the exercise price of 2017 Options
had been adjusted from HK$0.1632 per Old Share to HK$1.3056 per
Consolidated Share and the number of the shares of the Company to
be issued upon exercise of 2017 Options that are remained outstanding
has been adjusted from 500,000,000 Old Shares to 62,500,000
Consolidated shares.

34.

BURAD R ER AR

CARE s A E BB IR AR T
RZZE—MFRAZTE  AARRFBBERE
& BIRIHHLE MR MR RER 8] B LA
Berestal ([ Em AT IR AR 81 ) s st 81 (1 58
RAEERTE]) - ARA SRS B2 EE LA
SHAREEEH BB/ - EHATEBREAEHE-F
—MERAZTHEREZEERARF EHAT—H BN =
T-NEELATER) LHRBER LAY - HREHE
SRR 1 T AT AR BN A+
RN BRI - ABUE SRS B M AT BRI TEIRIE £
1 A AR S T 81 6 SR BV (AT B IR B ST T2 T =
BHREERR

ARBERZZ—FRNA T HARGEIRESS
BAtE AR B HEF10FANER LR - N
FRNATABER -

AATZ LA B R B Bl 2 HBHR
AARBEHA-T—NFRAZ+LHAZBREREN
#00

BEEFER T —F+_A+NLBRBENRZ
R BEARBERENEIA=EESREEEERD
4 #£500,000,000 17 BE AR 1 - LAIRATE(E G0 BEARE
0.1632 B TREARARG (=B —LFHBBRE]D -
RZZF-N\F+ZA=+—8 —T—LFEREES
BATREARITE - ARBROEH T — L FRERIE
MITEEEHSRERNOIRBILAREERE
BERR 15 1.3056 57T+ A ITE M AKRITEN =T —+
FHERBRENETFTETNRAABRMNEBER
500,000,0008% & A& 175 755 £62,500,0005% & BHAL 17
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34. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (continued) 34. DURBHBEBROSRKGE)
Equity-settled share option scheme (continued) UEREEBRESS (]
Pursuant to a resolution of the board of directors passed on 4 June BEZEFERZ-NEFEAANABBNRER &
2019, it was resolved to cancel an aggregate of 62,500,000 2017 SRET A 62,500,000 18 —Z — - FREMAE - 1E1T
Options, and to grant an aggregate of 68,720,000 new share options FEFR0.24128 L% 14 $£68,720,00017 it 7 &
with exercise price of HK$0.2412 per share (“2019 Options”) entitling F IR & P R HE 2 X 7168,720,000 AR AR 15 B ¥
the directors and employees to subscribe for 68,720,000 shares of the BRE(T=ZZ—hFEERE] - EHEARBBEREZF
Company. Detail of the Company’s share options are set out below: BER T -
No. of share
options
expired/
Date of grant of the On lapsed/ On Exercise price
options during the 1 January cancelled 31 December per share
Name of grantee  reporting period 2020 during the year 2020  Vesting period Exercise period option
FRriag/
WERANEBRE R-BZZF SM/ZH  R-Z-EF SHERE
ERARE RitiAH -B—-B ZBREBE +t-A=t-B HES 78 i
HK$
BT
Wu Yong Fu 4 June 2019 (A) 6,756,000 - 6,756,000 N/A 4 June 2019 to 0.2412
3 June 2029
RXKE ZT-NERAEBQ) TEA ZZ-NERANAZE
“E-NFRAZH
Chong Yu Keung 4 June 2019 (A) 6,756,000 - 6,756,000 N/A 4 June 2019 to 0.2412
3 June 2029
ity ZE-NERANAR NER ZE-NERANAZE
ZZNERAZR
13,512,000 - 13512,000
Employees 4 June 2019 (B) 24,226,000 (11,630,000) 12,596,000 4 June 2019 to 4 June 2020 to 0.2412
3 June 2020 3 June 2029
E& ZT-NERAMAEB “T-NERARE ZZ-TERARAE
ZCZRCTF ZZNERAZR
~A=R
Employees 4 June 2019 (C) 24,226,000 (11,630,000) 12,596,000 4 June 2019 to 4 June 2021 to 0.2412
3 June 2021 3 June 2029
E& ZT-NERAMAC) “T-NERARE ZT--FRAKAE
ZIRCF ZZNERAZR
~A=R

48,452,000 (23,260,000) 25,192,000

Total 61,964,000 (23,260,000) 38,704,000
&t
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34.
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SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (continued)
Equity-settled share option scheme (continued)
Movements in the number of share options outstanding and their FG

34. UROHERNSRK(E)
B A5 B AR AR ST B ()

TREEIIER R M AR N TFIOTT R E 2 2N

related weighted average exercise price as follows: T
2020 2019
et e %2 —E-NF
Weighted Weighted
average average
Number of exercise Number of exercise
options price options price
InREF 15 hniEF
BIREHE TEE  BREEE 1TE(E
HK$ HK$
B TT BT
Outstanding at the beginning of REARITE
the year 61,964,000 0.2412 500,000,000 0.1632
Adjustment due to ARG HHEL T
share consolidation - N/ARER (437,500,000 0.1632
Granted during the year FRNFT - N/ATRERA 68,720,000 0.2412
Expired/lapsed/cancelled RERNBH, KR w8
during the year (23,260,000) 0.2412  (69,256,000) 1.2018
Outstanding at the end of the year  RFERAKITEE 38,704,000 0.2412 61,964,000 0.2412
Exercisable at the end of the year ~ A RATTT{E 26,108,000 0.2412 13,512,000 0.2412

As at 31 December 2020, options to subscribe for a total of 38,704,000
(2019: 61,964,000) option shares were still outstanding under the Share
Option Scheme which represents approximately 3.75% (2019: 6.95%)

of the issued ordinary shares of the Company.

BaHt

[SNPAN

RZFZEF+ZA=+—H  REBEETBAR
38,704,000 % (=% — /1% : 61,964,000/% )
HE AR AD WO SR AL R ETTE - ERARRID#

ITEBIRAA3.75% (ZF— N4 : 6.95%) °
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34.

The expenses of share-based payment recognised in profit or loss MEHANERBER AR AERONRA W
during the reporting period are as follows: i
2020 2019
s St 23 —E-NEF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHAT
2019 option —E—NFERRE 1,591 2,049
2017 option T TR = 7,204
1,591 9,253
Millennium Pacific Group Holdings Limited / & $} & 2020 133

SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (continued)
Equity-settled share option scheme (continued)

The above options comprising at the end of the year have a weighted
average remaining contractual life of 10 years and the exercise price is
HK$0.2412. The estimated fair values of 2019 Share Options are
determined using the Binomial Model. The estimated fair values and
significant inputs into the models were as follows:

34. UROHERNSRK(E)
B A5 B AR AR ST B ()

FREEN DR RN INEFERBEOHR0
FRITEERC2412BTT - —T—NFBREZH
FIAFERA ZEARAUET © (A5t A FERZER

ZEEHAZENT :
2019 Share Options
ZE-NFBRE
4 June 2019 4 June 2019 4 June 2019
(A) (B) (©)
—E—hE —E-hE —B-nF
A AMH A) ~AMEA (B) ANAMA(C)

Option price model HEEEERX

Estimated fair value at the Rt 8 B A FE
measurement date

No. of options granted IR RS E

SHBRENGTAFE

Estimated fair value of each option

Weighted average share price at the At A A IIEF L E

measurement date

Weighted average exercise price INEFHITEE
Exercise multiple TP 1EE
Expected volatility TEH R bR
Expected life TEET AR

Risk free rate 3 far A R

Expected dividend yield FEEARR B U o &

The expected volatility was determined by using the average of the
annualised standard deviation of daily return of share price of three
comparable companies’ historical volatility quoted by Bloomberg.

Eidea Professional Services Company Limited is an independent firm of
professional valuer appointed by the Company to carry out the fair value
of 2019 Share Options.

Binomial &,
HK$1,270,000
1,270,000 7T

20,268,000
HK$0.063
0.063 77T
HK$0.13
0.13%7T
HK$0.2412
0.24128 7T
1.60
133.91%
10 years
104F
1.44%

Nil =

Binomial —J& =
HK$1,334,000
1,334,000 7T

24,226,000
HK$0.055
0.055 77T
HK$0.13
0138 7T
HK$0.2412
0.24127 7T
2.47
133.91%
10 years
104
1.44%
Nil &

Binomial &=
HK$14,872,000
14,872,000 7T
169,000,000
HK$0.088
0.088 77T
HK$0.13
0138 7T
HK$0.2412
0.2412 7T
2.47

133.91%

10 years

104F

1.44%

Nil =

FE 7R 18 T F Bloomberg FT U R = &1 AT & LLEX A F)
R LR IRM IR E A S R T FLIZEEZET -

BEEXRBERDAR/ARAZEUTE TN
FREENDTENBLERGERRF -
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INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 35. RMBARIZRE
Particulars of the subsidiaries as at 31 December 2020 are as follows: MBARR -ZE_TF+_A=+—HZFBEET:
Place of incorporation/ Registered and Percentage of Principal activities and
Name establishment paid up capital ownership interest place of operation
A% AL AL TR AR RA EFEERZEINL TEERRREHY
Direct Indirect
B Gk
Millennium Pacific British Virgin Islands 1,000 ordinary 100% - Investment holding,
11 September 2013 shares of US$1 each Hong Kong
RBERES 1,000 R EREE1ET REZEK - B#
“T-ZEART-R HEER
Millennium Pacific Trading Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000 - 100%  Inactive, Hong Kong
10 October 2014
&R 10,0007 EEXi 58
“Z-MmE+ATH
Millennium Pacific Solutions Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000 - 100%  Trading of electronic devices,
10 October 2014 Hong Kong
BB 10,0007 7T ETHEES BE
—2-mE+A+A
Millennium Pacific Finance Services Hong Kong HK$10,000 - 100%  Inactive, Hong Kong
Company Limited 21 April 2015
B 10,000 7T LEEG BA
“E-RFMAZt+-H
BRAF (R BEBHR R PRC Registered: RMB20,000,000 - 100%  Investment holding, PRC
BRAT(FIER) 21 May 2015 Paid up: RMB10,000,000
e it - AR 20,000,0007 REZR - T E
“T-RFRAZT—A #E: ARM%10,000,0007T
FEEEEERAR? PRC, Registered: RMB5,000,000 - 90%  Trading of electronic devices,
(A8 - BEAA ORI 10 July 2017 Paid up: RMB600,000 PRC
AYEREERARAR) HE F - AK%5,000,000 7T ETHEES  +H
“T—t§tA+H # - AR¥600,0007T
BRAH ORI BEREBBRAR  PRC, Registered: RMB300,000 - 100%  Investment holding, PRC
("RENHE") 4 August 2017 Paid up: RMB206,000
HE i - AE#300,0007T REER - HE
“E-HENAME SR AR%2060007T
BRATCRY)EFRIBERARY  PRC, Registered: RMB5,000,000 - 100%  Manufacturing of electronic
28 September 2017 Paid up: RMB6,000 devices, PRC
e it - AR®5,000,0007C HETTRE PE
ZTEFAAZTNAR R AR%60007T
Bt (R KEUREEABR AR PRC, Registered: RMB300,000 - 100%  Inactive, PRC
28 September 2017 Paid up: RMB6,000
el #Hft - AR¥300,0007T EmER - hE
“ZHEAAZTNB B ARE6,0007T
HXGZ PRC, Registered: RMB1,000,000 - 80%  Development and sales of
11 August 2017 Paid-up: RMB250,000 software applications, PRC
EERN HE - AR#1,000,000 7T PHEARANRERAE -

—=<

tFA\A+-H

R AR%250,0007C

Note: FIIFERL is wholly-foreign owned enterprises established in the PRC.

# company with limited liability

# BRAMERT

HE

RYFER AR R B SN BB A B
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For the year ended 31 December 2020
HE-_ZT-_TF+-_A=+—HULFE

35. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 35. RMIBATIZKRE (&)
The following table shows information of a subsidiary that have non- TRETNEEEAREENSBEAOIFTRER (3
controlling interests (“NCI”) material to the Group. The summarised ERERDOMBARER - MBEEMEERKRAA
financial information represents amounts before inter-company FE AT 258 -
eliminations.
Name ZiB HXGZ
ZEEEM
2020 2019
—E-EHF —E-NEF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHT FHT
Principal place of business/country FEEEMT R IER PRC/PRC PRC/PRC
of establishment HEH e
% of ownership interests/voting IHERIE ST AT A
rights held by NCI BEAD R 20% 20%
At 31 December: R+=—A=+—-H:
Non-current assets FEREEE 11 15
Current assets MENEE 10,784 10,188
Current liabilities mENEE (536) (477)
Net assets BEFE 10,259 9,726
Accumulated NCI REFIEEARE RS 2,051 1,945
Year ended 31 December: BE+-B=1+—HLEE:
Revenue Wz - 3,048
Profit/(loss) wm A, (EE) (64) 4,141
Total comprehensive income 2EBRALLEE 533 3,971
Profit allocated to NCI o= JEFE AR A s 2 0 106 794
Net cash used in operating activities and KL EESARSFEMRS
decreased in cash and cash equivalents LR EER D (29) (64)

36. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF 36. MERERERME

CASH FLOWS

(a) Disposals of subsidiaries (@) HEHBEAR
During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Group disposed HE_ZT-NF+_A=1+—HIEFE &%
of its entire interests in three wholly-owned subsidiaries, namely, B &4 K& 1,000,000 TR —B/LE=
Central Pacific International, Central Pacific International FIERHEER=-HM2EMNBARZE
Technology Limited (“CPIT”) and Central Pacific Electronics HEE((HE=EE])  —HM2ENBARAT
(Shenzhen) Limited (“CPE”) (collectively known as “Disposal BERN - PEMNEFORIDARRA(HE
Group”), which are engaged in provision of research, MNEF D RPERBKETORYDAERAR ([
development, manufacturing and trading of electronic devices, to ERREF]) (REHERE]) H HEREM
an independent third party (the “Purchaser”) at an aggregated BFREAE HERES -

consideration of HK$1,000,000 (the “Disposals”).
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HE-_Z-_TF+-_A=+—HIFE

36. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF 36.
CASH FLOWS (continued)
(@) Disposals of subsidiaries (continued) (a)
Pursuant to the sales and purchase agreement entered into
between the Group and the Purchaser dated 25 March 2019,
the Group has conditionally agreed to sell the entire interests in

FERERBRME (H)

HEMB QT (&)
BEAEEEEIN-_Z—-NE=R-+AH
FINHEERS  AEEERFRERELER
HEEEN S BELR Bt AEEREES
BEAHENTFTREESENMAREBELELY
4,750,000 TG EF e o HEFENR-Z
—hNhFE=ZA=-+HBZREK

the Disposal Group whereby all the amounts due by the Group
to the Disposal Group at the date of the Disposals, at an
aggregated amount of approximately HK$4,750,000 would be
waived. The Disposals was completed on 25 March 2019.

136

Net liabilities of the Disposal Group at the completion date of the HESENEESETKAMNHAEFHEN
Disposals were as follows: N
Central
Pacific
International CPIT CPE Total
FERR FHPENETFT PERRET st
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’'000
FA&T FAT FHIT FAT
Property, Plant and equipment  #1% - &= M & - - - -
Inventories FE 43 - 138 181
Other receivables E b fE U 5108 134 805 - 939
Bank and cash balances RITRIR S R 287 34 26 347
Amounts due from/(to) directors  EU (S ) & = 7118 (15,675) 1,411 5,417 (8,847)
Amounts due from/(to) the Group FES (FEfT) AN = E X1 50,535 (38,480) (7,305) 4,750
Trade payables e AR - (100) - (100)
Other payables Hith B 5IE (2,372 (402) (13) (2,787)
Net liabilities disposed of HEMNBEFE 32,952 (36,732) (1,737) (5,517)
2019
—E-NEF
HK$'000
FAET
Net liabilities of the Disposal Group disposed of HEMDEEEAEFE (0 L)

(per above) (5,517)
Waiver of amounts due from the Group e IR E B RIE (4,750)
Release of foreign currency translation reserve upon HESIRRERINE R E ZE

the Disposals (1,586)
Gain on disposals of subsidiaries S B A R ME 12,853
Total consideration, satisfied by cash LIRS EEMRERSE 1,000
Net cash inflow arising on the Disposals: HESEEA RS RAFE
Cash consideration received BWBESRE 1,000
Cash and cash equivalents disposed of HEMNE S MASEEYD (347)

653
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36. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF 36. HMEHESRERMET(E)
CASH FLOWS (continued)

(b) Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing (b) BMETBZABEHE
activities
The table set forth below is the detail changes in the Group’s TRFNAEEREFHEEABENEEF
liabilities arising from financing activities, including both cash and B RERSRIERSEE REZHELZ
non-cash changes. Liabilities arising from financing activities are BEDEABRSRERARBASRENAEE
those for which cash flows were, or future cash flows will be, FEReRBERPOEARMEETHRESREN
classified in the Group’s consolidated statement of cash flows as afg e

cash flows from financing activities.

Interest 31 December

1 January 2020 Additions Cash flows charges 2020
—E_EE =Sl 33
—A-B hE RehE MSEBR t=-A=t-8H
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET THET TER TET TERT
Convertible bonds — liabilities gEEs - aESs
component (note 28) (Hizt28) 18,934 - - 2,198 21,132
Lease liabilities (note 29) HEBEHH29) 869 5,051 (2,812) 162 3,270
19,803 5,051 (2,812) 2,360 24,402
Impact on
Initel Restated
Application Balance at
1January  of HKFRS 16 1 January Equity Interest 31 December
2019 (note 3) 2019 Cashflows  component charges Disposals 2019
BIRER
ERMBRE
REIE16% HIT-NE
—E0E nze -A-8 ZE-hE

-A-B (W3 (EE4 BeRE BE¥S MERR LESE TIASt-H
HKS000  HKS000  HKSO00  HKSOOO  HKSOO  HKBOOO  HKSO00  HKS000
TEL THL THL THL TR TEL TR TER

Convertible bonds — liabilties TR & — 8EHH

component (note 28) (Hi28) - - - 20,000 (2,650) 1584 - 18934
Lease liablties (note 29) REBEMW:L29) - 3596 3,59 (2,833 - 106 - 869
Amounts due to directors classiied 2 17815 (kY

as current liabilties S 15,019 - 15,019 (6272) - 100 (8,847) -

15,019 3,596 18,615 10,89 (2,650) 1,790 (8847) 19,803
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36. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF 36. HMEHESRERMZT(E)
CASH FLOWS (continued)
(c) Total cash outflow for leases (c) HEMBRSRLAEE
Amounts included in the cash flow statements for lease comprise REEFABRSRERNSHEBRIEATSE -
the following:
2020 2019
—ECEHF —T-NF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Within operating cash flows BERERE 162 106
Within financing cash flows MERERE 2,650 2,727
2,812 2,833
These amounts relate to the following: ZESEHUTAR -
2020 2019
et St 23 —E-NEF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHAT
Lease rental paid EfHEE 2,812 2,833
37. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS 37. EBREE
As of 31 December 2020, and 2019, the Group did not have any capital N-E-_ZEER-_T-HE+-_A=+—8 Kx&EE
commitments. 7 5 AE 0] B A FHE o
38. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES 38. FAEE

Other than disclosed elsewhere in these financial statements, the Group
did not have any contingent liabilities at the end of reporting period
(2019: Nil).
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39.

40.

41.

42.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

Issue of promissory notes

On 26 March 2021, the Company and an independent third party (the
“Subscriber”) entered into a memorandum of understanding. Pursuant
to which the Subscriber is willing to subscribe for the Company’s
promissory note in an aggregate principal amount of HK$20,000,000.
The promissory notes bear fixed interest at 4% per annum and
repayable in 2 years.

LITIGATION

On 18 September 2019, Shenzhen Yucan Industrial Co., Ltd.
(“Shenzhen Yucan”), being the landlord of the production base of the
Group’s former indirect wholly-owned subsidiary, CPIT, had filed a
claim in respect of outstanding rental and charges in the PRC. The
Company, who deemed as a guarantor by Shenzhen Yucan in the
above tenancy agreement, is therefore named as one of the defendant
of the claim.

On 16 November 2020, the Company received a judgement issued by
the People’s Court, Shenzhen, Guangdong Province, pursuant to
which, among others, the Company shall repay to the plaintiff the
outstanding rental of approximately RMBO0.63 million plus overdue
interests and other costs (the “Settlement”). The Company, appealed
the above judgement to the Intermediate Court, Shenzhen Guangdong
Province in December 2020. Notwithstanding the final judgement which
subject to further hearing at the Intermediate Court, the Company had
recognised full provision under other payables for the Settlement during
the reporting period.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Other than those balances of related party disclosed elsewhere in the
consolidated financial statements, the Group had the following material
transactions with its related parties during the year.

Key Management Compensation

Other than those disclosed in note 13 to the consolidated financial
statements, there is no remuneration paid to key management
personnel of the Company during the year (2019: Nil).

APPROVAL OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The financial statements were approved and authorised for issue by the
Board of Directors on 29 March 2021.
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39.

40.

41.

42,

WMERBRSE

BITERAER

RIE-——F=ZA=-+X B AARHE—ZHIE=
F((RBADT SRR - Bt REBAGER
B N2 A AR & 4858 420,000,000 7 7T 2 H H B2 o

AR BBRETEFNEA% R - ARMENERER -

g{_}i

EA

RZFE-AFAATNR  RINTHEEEARRQF
(TCRINBE ] RAKEREEEENB AR DEM
BYAEEEMMET) RPERASNEERERR
HE R - ARRBIRINRESR R LB E B ER
A BRI BZERN—BREA °

RZZZZEF+—A+RE  ARRKREIERE R
MARZERNFR - it (R 8E)  NRFERR
EEERNEE L AR 630,0007T S A TS
REMER(MBRBE]) R-Z-_ZF+-/ K
RAGL s AR ERERYIT A RARERRE £
o BERKHAREFPREE - FFE - ARF
ERHERARZMNERRT RN HRIRER 2R
B

BBLX5
BiRa M mA R B AT ERORE T AR - N
BERFEREEB T A TIEARS °

TEEEENS
Bir e B mAME1ISMEREESN - FAMERAK
ARTEEEBABRINME (ZZ—NF ) -

T M R R
MBBREEN T —F=A-thABEFEHE
R TIE -
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Five Year Financial Summary

LFMBREE

Year ended/As at 31 December
BE+-A=+-ALEE /R+t=-A=1+-H
2020 2019 2018 2017 2016
—EEF —E-hE —E-N\& —E—+F —E—RE
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$ 000
THET FAET T FET T

OPERATING RESULT ¥
Turnover HETE 119,337 301,214 77,433 112,984 51,727
Cost of sales HERA (115253)  (289,904) (67,258) (107,419) (46,125
Gross profit EF 4,084 11,310 10,175 5,565 5,602
Other income HibUg A 93 2,445 3,311 2,756 2,701
Selling and distribution costs HE R KA (52) (254) (225) (640) (1,957)
Administrative expenses TR (18,355) (25,794) (46,784) (41,634) (51,366)
Other operating losses HEmEEER (750) - - - -
Reversal of impairment loss/(impairment losses) FEW R TR EEERR
on trade receivables CREE1E) 2,704 (3,085) - - -
Impairment losses on other receivables H W IERERE (438) - - - -
Loss from operation EEEE (12,714) (15,378) (33,523) (33,252 (44,083)
Finance costs W5 (2,360) (1,790) (396) (397) (10)
Gain on disposals of subsidiaries HEHB A AkE - 12,853 - 701 937
Share of results of associates DEEE AR EE 64 4,054 (478) - -
Share of results of a joint venture DA EhEEE 58 10 - - -
Loss before tax BB R (14,952) (251) (34,397) (33,649) (44,093)
Income tax expense PSRBT - @) (733) (38) (1)
Loss for the year EREE (14,952) (253) (35,130) (33,687) (44,094)
Other comprehensive (loss)/income ERHtEE(FR),/
for the year, net of tax: WA ERBE
ltem that will not be reclassified TEENNEEERN
to profit or loss: R :
Fair value changes of financial assets at fair value 12 AF(EzT )\ﬁ‘nﬂ%@”&)\
through other comprehensive income E’] SRMEENTES = (338) 125 - -
Item that may be reclassified to profit or loss: EEMHOERERNER
Exchange differences on translating ,ﬂiﬁgl\if‘zﬂﬁﬂ’]
foreign operations BN Z5 216 (776) 838 (2,198) 2,012)
Release of exchange reserve upon disposals HEWMBRRIERR
of subsidiaries [ A = (1,586) - - -
Share of other comprehensive income of associates B &/ Al fE(H E i 2 E LA 1,440 - - - -
Other comprehensive income/(I0ss) FRNEMPEWE
for the year, net of tax (B18) - f1kFE 1,656 (2,700) 963 (2,198) 2,012
Total comprehensive loss ZEFEAE (13,296) (2,959) (34,167) (35,885) (42,082)
(Loss)/profit for the year attributable to: Eﬂ? fF— W (F58),/%7
— Owners of the Company A 2N (14,880) (1,081) (36,293) (33,665) (44,004)
— Non-controlling interests - 3H 4 7 (72) 828 1,163 22 -
(14,952) (259) (35,130) (33,687) (44,094)
Total comprehensive (loss)/income EhEERE2E
for the year attributable to: (EE)/WJ\%%‘E :
— Owners of the Company NEHEAA (13,340) (8,747) (35,281) (35,866) (42,082)
— Non-controlling interests - 3H s 44 794 1,114 (19) -
(13,296) (2,953) (34,167) (35,885) (42,082)
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EEREE
Total assets BERE 78,879 113,294 48,087 55,471 20,743
Total liabiliies afEgE (36,564) (72,691) (42,400) (45,670) (14,612)
Net assets BEZE 42,315 40,603 5,678 9,801 6,131
Equity attributable to: PEfbREs
— Owners of the Company — ARBEEA 40,326 38,658 4,527 9,764 6,131
— Non-controlling interests — JEiE Hﬂ ER 1,989 1,945 1,151 37 -
42,315 40,603 5,678 9,801 6,131
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